42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Li mited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Sep 18, 2023
To MLPL/NEPRA/23/23

The Registrar
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority

SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF ELECTRIC POWER GENERATION/CONCURRENCE AND SUPPLJ:‘
LICENSE OF 25 MW SOLAR POWER PLANT

Dear Sir,

Please find herewith following documents with our Applicatfon under Regulation 3 of National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure
Regulations, 2021 for your information and consideration;

1. Corporate Information under Regulation 3

1.1.  Application fee (including Indexation).

1.2.  Application submitted in triplicate.

1.3. Prospectus.

1.4.  Certified Copy of Certificate of Incorporation.

1.5. Certified Copy of Memorandum and Articles of Association.

1.6.  Certified Copy of Annual Reports of the Company.

1.7.  Last Annual Return submitted to SECP under section 130 of Companies Act 2017 — Form A.

1.8. the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the applicant.

1.9. the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list of shareholders holding 5% or
more shares, number of shares held by each of them and percentage shares of the
total paid-up capital.

1.10. evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the applicant, along with bank certificates.

1.11. details of charges or encumbrances attached to the applicant’s assets, if any.

1.12. latest audited financial statements of the applicant.

1.13. expressions of interest to provide credit or financing along with sources and details
thereof.

1.14. documents describing the net worth and the equity and debt ratios of the
applicant, as on the date of the audited balance sheet accompanying the application.
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1.15.

1.16.

1.17.

1.18.

1.19.
1.20.

1.21.
1.22.

1.23.

a reasonably detailed profile of the applicant and the applicant’s senior management,
technical and professional staff;

employment records of engineering and technical staff of the applicant proposed to be
employed.

profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions of interest of such sub-
contractors.

verifiable references in respect of the experience of the applicant and its proposed sub-
contractors.

Technical proposal and Financial Proposal

An affidavit stating whether the applicant has been granted any other license under the
Act.

Board Resolution MLPL for Electric Power Supply License under the Act,

An affidavit stating whether the applicant has not been refused grant of any other
license under the Act.

An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and accuracy of the application, documents
and information submitted.

Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e)

2.1

Information relating to:

{i) Location (location maps, site map, land}.

(il Technology, size of the plant, number of units.

{iii) Water source at site for maintenance.

{iv) Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities.

V) Project commencement and completion schedule with milestones
(vi) Safety plans, emergency plans.

(vii) Plant characteristics (generation voltage, frequency etc.
(viii)  Control, metering, instrumentation and protection.

(ix) Estimated Capacity Factor at site.

(x) Degradation Factors.

Schedule Il (Regulation 3{4}(a}{D}

3.1
3.2,

3.3.
3.4.
3.5.

3.6.

Relevant feeder maps Number of consumers and expected load.

Consumer class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and voltage
level.

Tariff categories of consumer classes to be served.

Demand and consumption pattern on different time periods.

Procurement Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation and/or long-
term and short-term PPAs, as the case may be).

12-month projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected sale of units
for each consumer category. R




3.7.

3.8.
3.8.

3.8.
3.9.

Best & Kind Regards,

5-year Investment Plan indicating schemes/models/framework for undertaking supply
of electric power (including frameworks for providing non-discriminatory services and
acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service territories).

Training and development procedures and manuals.
Information relating to:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv}
(v)

Proposed service territory.

Billing and collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering).
Ability to access consumer metering systems and other services/equipment.
Emergency provisions and protocols.

Basis of common services for commercial and residential consumers and their
allocation thereof.3.7. 5-year Investment Plan indicating
schemes/models/framework for undertaking supply of electric power (including
frameworks for providing non-discriminatory services and acquisition/sale of
assets in relevant service territories).

Training and development procedures and manuals.
Information relating to:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
{v)

Proposed service territory.

Billing and collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering).
Ability to access consumer metering systems and other services/equipment.
Emergency provisions and protocols.

Basis of common services for commercial and residential consumers and their
allocation thereof.

Executive Director Fi'nénce
Maple Leaf Power Limited



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261

& 36302262
Maple Leaf Power Limited o o0az3eseera
Sep 18, 2023
To MLPL/NEPRA/ O /23

The Registrar
National Electric Power Regulatory Authority

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF ELECTRIC POWER GENERATION/CONCURRENCE LICENSE
25 MW SOLAR POWER PLANT

|, Sohail Sadiq, Executive Director (Finance) being the duly authorized representative of M/S
Maple Leaf Power Limited by virtue of [BOARD RESOLUTION / POWER OF ATTORNEY] dated 15
June 2023, hereby apply to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the grant of
ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY LICENSE to the M/S Maple Leaf Power Limited pursuant to section | of
the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997.

| hereby certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are prepared and
submitted in conformity with the provisions of the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021,
and undertake to abide by the terms and provisions of the above-said regulations. | further
undertake and confirm that the information provided in the attached documents-in-support is
true and correct to the best of my knowledge and no material omission has been made.

A [BANK DRAFT No. B.C No. 5510154 dated 18 September 2023 in the sum of Rupees 823,649/-
(Rupees Eight Hundred Twenty-Three Thousand Six Hundred Forty-Nine Only) being
the license application fee calculated in accordance with Schedule il to the National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and Cancellation)
Procedure Regulations, 2021, is also attached herewith.

Regards,

For/or on behalf M/S Maple Leaf Power Limited

Signature: 46%
i ML

Name: Sohail Sa
Designation: Executive Director (Finance)
Company Seal: L




o,
m [ ]

‘ : AC B MCB Bank Limited
: GULLAN KHEL DISTT M'NWW\L | {0855}

Not Over : PKR 823,649.00™

NATIOANL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY
Or Order|

Pay to

EIGHT HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE THOUSAND SIX HUNDRED
FORTY-NINE Only

Rupees

PKR/—j/\_
L1 N

B.C. No. : 5510154

Stationery/Ref No: 4 ga 61370 5,

Signato

Please do not write below this line,

PA/Attorney Ho‘*“% PA/Atiorney No

®*O0AEB 437050k 288848:1.00000000000000000 20



MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED
25 MW SOLAR POWER PLANT
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the authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the applicant.
the shareholding pattern of the applicant including list of shareholders holding
5% or more shares, number of shares held by each of them and percentage
shares of the total paid-up capital.

evidence of cash balances held in reserve by the applicant, along with bank
certificates.

details of charges or encumbrances attached to the applicant’s assets, if any.
{atest audited financial statements of the applicant.

expressions of interest to provide credit or financing along with sources and
details thereof.

documentsdescribing the networth and the equity and debt ratios of the
applicant, as on the date of the audited balance sheet accompanying the
application.
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management, technical and professional staff;

employment records of engineering and technical staff of the applicant proposed
to be employed.

profile of sub-contractors, if any, along with expressions of interest of such sub-
contractors.
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Technical proposal and Financial Proposal

An affidavit stating whether the applicant has been granted any other license under
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Board Resolution MLPL for Electric Power Supply License under the Act.

An affidavit stating whether the applicant has not been refused grant of any other
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An affidavit as to the correctness, authenticity and accuracy of the application,
documents and information submitted.



2. Schedule Ill {Regulation 3(4)}{a){A)(e)

2.1

Information relating to:

(i) Location (location maps, site map, land).

{ii) Technology, size of the plant, number of units.

(iii) Water source at site for maintenance.

(iv) Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities.

(v) Project commencement and completion schedule with milestones

{vi) Safety plans, emergency plans.

{vii)  Plant characteristics (generation voltage, frequency etc.
(viii)  Control, metering, instrumentation and protection.
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3.4.
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3.6.
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3.9.

Relevant feeder maps Number of consumers and expected load.

Consumer class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and
voltage level.

Tariff categories of consumer classes to be served.

Demand and consumption pattern on different time periods.

Procurement Plan for meeting expected loads (including own generation and/or
long-term and short-term PPAs, as the case may be).

12-month projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected sale
of units for each consumer category.

5-year Investment Plan indicating schemes/models/framework for undertaking
supply of electric power (including frameworks for providing non-discriminatory
services and acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service territories).

Training and development procedures and manuals.

Information relating to:

(i) Proposed service territory.
(ii) Billing and collection procedures (including provisions for remote
metering).

(iii) Ability to access consumer metering systems and other
services/equipment.

(iv) Emergency provisions and protocols.

(v) Basis of common services for commercial and residential consumers and
their allocation thereof.



PROSEPECTUS
Maple Leaf Power Limited
Introduction:

Maple Leaf Power Limited (“the company”) was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 October 2015 as
public limited company under the company’s ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The
company has been established to set up and operate a 40 megawatt coal fired power generation
plant at Iskandarabad, District Mianwali, Punjab, Pakistan for generation of electricity. The
Company’s registered office is located at 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore. The principal objective of
the company is to develop, design, operate and maintain the electricity power generation plant
and in connection therewith to engage in the business of generation, sale and supply of
electricity. The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (the
heolding company}. The ultimate parent company is Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited.

The company was granted electricity generation license (No. SGC/119/2016 dated December, 20
2016) under Section 16 of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric
Power Act 1997 (the “NEPRA ACT”) by National Electric and Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).
The company entered into a power purchase and steam purchase agreements with holding
company on 04 July 2017 and 31 October 20189 respectively which are valid for 20 Years.

MLPL is currently setting up 10 MW and 15 MW MV Solar Power Plant at its existing generation
facility, Iskandarabad district Mianwali. Major equipment (Solar Panel} of the aforementioned
plant is being purchased from “Jinko Solar” and inverter and data logger from “Huawei” which
are Chinese organization with market presence in many countries.

The total project cost is expected to be around be Rs. 3.34 billion (11.517 million USD, PKR/USD
rate of 290) and will be financed through 40% own generated funds (Equity) of the Company and
60% Debit.

Salient Features of Solar Power Plant:

Project Location : Iskandarabad near daud Khel dist. Mianwali

Rated Power Generation Capacity : 25 MV

Proposed Covered Area : 28 Acre (10 MW) and 42 Acre (10 MW)
approximately

Construction Period : 11 months

Source of water : UG Water Tank

Source of Power : Solar PV Panels

Air pollution abatement : Renewable Energy




Proposed Investment:

The expected cost of the solar power plant is 4.00 billion rupees which is being financed from
own-generated Funds.

Social and Environmental Impact:

Overall, while solar plant offers several environmental advantages such as renewable energy
generation and reduced greenhouse gas emissions and will reduce about 18,250 tons CO2
emission, it is crucial to consider and address potential social and environmental impacts to
ensure sustainable and responsible development, some of the key positive impact are following;

¢ Renewable Energy Generation

e Job/Employment Creation:

e  Energy Access:

e Land Use and Biodiversity:

e Less Water Consumption:

e Community Engagement and Consultation
e No Solid Waste

Since the project has been commenced on a reserved area and no human settlements exist within
Km of the selected site, construction related impact is not expected to extend to the community.
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IL

III.

The Registered Office of the Company will be situated in the Province of the

THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984
--:0:--
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
-~10:--
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

unjab.

The objects for which the Company is established are:-

1.

To carry on all or any of the businesses of generating, purchasing, importing,
transforming, distributing, supplying, exporting and dealing in electricity and all
other forms of energy and products or services associated therewith and of
promoting the conservation and efficient use of electricity and to perform all
other acts which are necessary or incidental to the business of electricity
generation, transmission, distribution and supply subject to permission from
NEPRA.

To identify, design, develop, construct, acquire, procure, manage, manufacture,
operate, maintain and own electricity generation station(s) using conventional
and non-conventional fuel/energy resources (including natural gas, oil, coal,
solar, hydel, wind, bio-mass or any other energy resources whether indigenous
or imported), fuel/energy resources supply chain and storage systems, water
desalination plants and related facilities, power grid stations, transforming,
switching, conversion, and transmission facilities, cables, overhead lines, sub-
stations, switching stations, tunnels, cable bridges, link boxes, heat pumps and
plant and equipment for combined heat and power schemes, together with such
other activities as are necessary to carry out the foregoing.

To carry on the business of an electric light company in all its branches and in
particular to construct, lay down, establish, fix and carry out all necessary cables
and wires, and to generate, accumulate, distribute and supply electricity to
private and/or public consumers includiing’ national grid and to light cities,

1



towns, streets, markets, theatres, buildings and places both public and private
subject to permission from NEPRA.

To carry on the business of electricians, mechanical engineers, electrical
engineers, suppliers of electricity for purposes of light, heat, motive power or
otherwise and of manufacturers and dealers in all apparatus and articles required
or capable of being used in connection with the generation, distribution, supply,
accumulation and employment of electricity or any light power or any power,
which can be used as a substitute thereof which, is or may be useful, convenient
or ornamental, and to carry on any other business of a like nature.

To carry on all or any of the business of trader, importer, exporter, supplicr,
distributor, designer, developer, manufacturer, installer, filter, tester, repairer,
maintainer, contractor, constructor, operator, user, inspector, re-conditioner,
improver, protector, remover, hirer, replacer, importer and exporter of systems
and things incidental to the efficient generation, procurement, transformation,
supply and distribution of electricity.

To acquire by concession, grant, purchase, barter, license either absolutely or
conditionally and either solely or jointly with others any land, building,
machinery, plant, equipment, privilege, right, license, trademark, patent, and
other movable and immovable property of any description which the Company
may deem necessary or which may seem to the Company capable of bcing
tumned to account, subject to any permission as required under the law.

To purchase or acquire, protect, prolong and renew, whether in Pakistan or
elsewhere, any patent right, invention, license, protection, concession, and the
like which may appear likely to be advantageous or useful to the Company and
to manufacture under or grant license or privilege in respect of the same and to
spend money in experimenting upon and testing in or improving or seeking to
improve any patent, invention or right which the Company may acquire or
propose to acquire.

To purchase, take on lease or in exchange, hire, apply for or otherwise acquirc
and hold for any interest, right, privilege, land building, easement, trademark,
patent, patent nght copyright, license, machine ,p]dnt stock-in- trdde and dny

2 "
purposes of or in connection with/fst 513 ¢ sme%s or any branch or
department thereof and to use, SER N
property, right and information s to“'a. y permission required
under the law.

) 03'

To acquire, hold or dispose of inveX{{ aresy odardba cemﬁcate term
q _ P \-‘ ; 1@

certificate, debenture, debenture stock, bond, obligatlon and securities issued or

guaranteed by any company, any government, commission, public body,




11.

12

16.

17.

authority, supreme, municipal, local or otherwise but not to act as an investment
company.,

To engage in reforestation and other works relating to pollution abatement and
to acquire land for this purpose.

To form new entity or entities, and enter into joint ventures for the purposes of
the business of the Company.

To enter into any arrangement with any government or authority, supreme,
municipal, local or otherwise that seem conducive to the -/.-ov -_ SR ect% or
any of them and to obtain from any such governmen N
concessions and privileges which the Company may thyi}
and to carry out, exercise and comply with any
privilege and concession.

publicity in the press or otherwise, exhibitions, publicatlon of books and

periodicals and by donations,

To conduct research and incur expenditures for the purposes and objects of the
Company's business,

To establish subsidiaries or associated companies, firms or entities and to carry
on business in any part of Pakistan or in any part of the world, and to take such
steps as may be necessary to give the Company such rights or privileges in any
part of the world as are possessed by local corporations in such location.

To ascertain the tariff for bulk supply that will secure recovery of operating cost,
interest charge and depreciation of assets, redemption at due time of loans other
than those covered by depreciation, expansion projects, payment of taxes, and
reasonable return on investment, to quote the tariff to bulk purchaser of electrical
power, and to prefer petition to the appropriate authority for approval of the
schedule of tariff and of adjustment or increase in its bulk supply tariff, where
desirable or necessary.

For the purposes of achieving the above objects, the Company is authorized to:-

a. purchase/import raw materials and allied items required in connection
thereto in any manner the Company may think fit;

b. do and perform all other acts and things as are incidental or conducive to
the attainment of the objects of the Company;



18.

19,

20.

c. open an account or accounts with any bank or banks and to pay into and to

withdraw money from such account or accounts.

d. borrow and arrange the repayment of money from banks/financial
institutions or any lawful sources whether in Pakistan or elsewhere and in
such manner as the Company may think fit, including the issue of
debentures, preference shares, bonds, perpetual or otherwise charge upon
the whole or any part of the Company's property or asset, whether present
or future, and to purchase, redeemn or payoff such securities;

e. putits assets as collateral on behalf of the holding company for the purpose
of any financing obtained by the holding company.

f.  purchase, hold and get redeemed shares, debentures, bonds of any company,
financial institution or any government institution.

To guarantee the performance of contracts, agreements, obligations or discharge
of any debt of the Company in relation to the payment of any financial facility
including but not limited tc loan, advance, letter of credit or other obligation
through creation of any or all types of mortgages, charges, pledges,
hypothecations, on execution of the usual banking documents or instruments or
otherwise encumbrance on any or all of the movable and immovable property
of the Company, either present or future or both and issuance of any other
security or surety by any other mean in favor of banks, Non-Banking Finance
Companies (NBFCs) or any financial institution and to borrow money for
purpose of the Company on such terms and conditions as may be considered
proper.

To support and subscribe to any charitable or public object including donation
to charitable and benevolent foundation and any institution, society, or club or
for any purpose which may be for the benefit of the Company or its employees,
or may be connected with or for the benefit and welfare of any town or place
where the Company carry on the business, to give pension, gratuity, to extend
benefits of provident fund or any other contributory scheme on behalf of the
Company, or charitable aid to any person who may have been Directors of or
may have served the Company, or the wives, children, other relatives or
dependents of such persons to make payments towards insurance, and to form
and contribute to provident an ent funds for the benefit of any such

pIAROPN rance fund or any other special
fund whether for depre " rapar Einsuring, improving, extending
or maintaining any of ' he Lfompany or any other purpose
conducive in the interest



21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26,

IV.

To distribute any of the Company’s property among the members in specie or
in any manner whatsoever in the event of winding up of company.

To deal with the surplus monies of the Company not immediately required in
such lawful form as may be thought expedient.

To pay all preliminary expenses of any kind and incidental to the formation and
incorporation of the Company out of the funds of the Company.

It is declared that notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing object
clauses of this Memorandum of Association nothing contained therein shall be
construed as empowering the company to undertake or tg indulge in the business
of banking company, investment, NBFC, lcasin' BeCY, payment
sales receipt scheme and insurance business digfetty g \s restricted
under the law or any other unlawful operation. f/ -' o, D

Notwithstanding anything stated in any object
such other approval or license from the compete

The company shall not launch multilevel marketing, pyramid, and ponzi
schemes.

The liability of the members is limited.

The Authorized Capital of the Company is Rs.6,000,000,000/- (Rupees Six
Billion only) divided into 600,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each with powers to the Company from time to time increase,
consolidate, sub-divide or otherwise re-organize the Share Capital of the
Company and to divide the shares in the Capital for the time being into
several classes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984.

The Clause V substituted and approved by the Members in Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 07, 2016.



We, the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being formed into
a Company, in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we respectively agree to take the number 7
of shares in the Capital of the Company as set opposite to our respective name(s).

Name and Surname Father’s/ Naflonallly . . Number of
s with any . Residential Address shares taken .
(Present & Former Husband’s Occupation . Signature
in Full) Name in Full Former (in Full) by each
Nationality subscriber
Mian Tariq Sayeed | Mian 01
Saigol Muhammad Pakistani Industrialist | 12-Main Gulberg, One
CNIC # 35200- Sayeed Saigol Lahore.
5293106-5
Mian Taufique Mian House No. 1, o1
Sayeed Saigol Muhammad Pakistani Industrialist | Kehinoor Colony, One
CNIC#37405- Sayeed Saigol Peshawar Road,
0436841-7 Rawalpindi.
Sayeed Tariq Saigol 01
CNIC#35202- Mian Tariq Pakistani Industrialist 12-Main Gulberg, One
0560944-1 Sayeed Saigol Lahore.
. 01
Walced Tarig One
Saigol Mian Tanq Pakistani Industrialist 12-Main Gulberg,
CNIC#35202- Lahore.
8546058-7
Mian Dania! House No. 1, 01
Taufique Saigol Industrialist Kohinoor Colony, One
CNIC#37405- Peshawar Road,
7481343-9 Rawalpindi.
Syed Mohsin Raza 01
Nagvi Business House No. 208-B, One
CNIC#352025- Executive Street No. 5, Cavalary
155530-7 Ground, Lahore
Arif Ljaz Mian [a Pakistani Business House # 113-X, 01
CNIC#35201- Al;m ch z Executive Phase-3, D.H.A., One
4540213-7 € Lahore Cantt.
Maple Leaf Cement Pakistani Company 42-Lawrence Road, 999,993
Factory Limited Lahore Nine Hundred
CUIN# 0001107 Ninety Nine
through ils nominge Thousand
Syed Mohsin Raz% Nine Hundred
Nagvi . Ninety Three
CNIC 5202CER D TO BE E COPY
15553 ~N }
Vi Total Number of 1,000,000
. SETSTRAR OF COMPANIES o0
ég ! mﬁ MFHCE. LAHORE Shares Taken One Million
D3 E.%l;ﬂma%m}iﬂ&mﬁ;‘ for purpese of bnu:
gy verify company’s recor
w gwm%mg}a&ﬁm&m by the SECP

Si tpreans ug win

O Nane: National Institutional Facilitation

Occupation :

NIET

Technologies (Private) Limited
Full Address: 5" Floor, AWT Plaza, 1. I. Chundrigar Road,

Karachi.
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

I RELIMINARY

1.

TABLE “A” Not to Apply

The regulations in Table ‘A’ in the First Schedule to the Companics Ordinance, 1984
shall not apply to the company except so far as the same are repeated or conlained in
these articles.

DEFINITIONS

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms used in these articles shall have the
meanings sct out below:

(a)

(b)

(©
(d)

(c)

@)

®

“Articles’” mean these Articles of Association as originally framed or as from
time to time altered by special resolution.

“Board” means the group of directors in a meeting duly called and
constituted or, as the case may be, the dircctors assembled at a board.

“Company” means MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED.

“Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan Act, 1997.

“Directors” mean the directors for the time being of the company including
alternate directors and, subsequently clected pursuant to Companies
Ordinance, 1984 or as the case may be, the directors assembled at a board.

“Electronic” includes electrical, digital, f
electro-chemical, wireless or electromagnetic {

“Electronic Transactions Ordinance” meang3l
Ordinance, 2002.

“In Person” includes attendance and/or voting at a meeting, personally or by
video or telephone-conference or other facility whereby all the participants of
the meeting can hear and / or see each other unless expressly stated othcrwise
by the directors.”

“Instrument of Transfer” includes transfer deeds.



(k) “Issue of Capital Rules” mean Companies (Issue of Capital) Rules, 1996.

(1) “Member”’ means a person whose name is for the time being entered in the
register of members by virtue of his being a subscriber 10 the Memorandum
of Association of the company or of his holding by allotment or otherwise
any share, scrip or other security which gives him a voting right in the
company.

{(m) “Memorandum” means the Memorandum of the company as originally
framed or as from time to time altered in accordance with law.

(n) “Month” means calendar month according to the English calendar.

(0) “Office” means the registered office for the time being of the company.

(p) “Ordinance’ means the Companies Ordinance, 1984 or any modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force.

Q) “Proxy” includes an attorney duly constituted under a power of attorney.

q y

() “Record” includes, in addition w a written or printed form, any disce, tape,
sound-track, film or other device in which sounds and / or other data is
cmbodied so as to be capable (with or without the aid of some other
instrument or machine} of being reproduced there from in audible, legible or
visual form.

(s) “Register’” mcans, unless the context otherwise requires, the register of

! cq g
members to be kept pursuant to section 147 of the Ordinance.

) “Registrar” means a Registrar, defined in section 2(1)(31), performing the
duty of registration of companies under the Ordinance.

(u) “Regulations” mean the rules of governance of the company made by the
board from time to time.

(v) “Seal” means the common or official seal of the company.

(w) “Section” means section of the Ordinance.

(x) “Sign” and “Signature” unless otherwise provided in these articles, includes
respectively tithography, printing facsimile, “advanced electronic signature”
which is capable of cstablishing the authenticity and integrity of an electronic
document, as defined by secction 2(e) of the Electronic Transactions
Ordinance, and names impressed with a rubber or other kind of stamp.

) “Special Resolution” means the special resolution of the company as defined
in section 2(1)(36) of the Ordinang

INTERPRETATION

In these articles, unless the cont

(a)

the singular includes the
shall include all genders;

ords denoting any gender



(b) references to any Act, Ordinance, Legislation, or any provision of the same
shall be a reference 1o that Act, Ordinance, Legislation, rules or regulations or
provisions, as amended, re-promulgated or superseded from time to time;

(©) the terms “include” or “Including” shall mean include or including without
limitation;
(d) expressions referring lo writing shall, unless the contrary intention appears,

be construed as including references to printing, lithography, photography,
and other modes of representing or reproducing words in a visible form,
including but not limited to, electronic transmission such as facsimile, and
clectronic mail or any other electronic process, as prescribed by section 3 of
the Electronic Transactions Ordinance.

(e) words importing persons shall include bodies corporate; and

) words and expressions contained in these articles shall bear the same
meaning as in the Ordinance.

PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY

4. The company is a Public Limited company within the meanings of section 2(1),
Clause (30) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The minimum subscription upon
which the directors may proceed to allotment as defined in scction 68 of the
Ordinance is fixed at Rs.10,000,000/- (Rupees Ten Million only).

BUSINESS

5. All branches or kind of business which the company is either cxpressly or by
implication authorized to undertake may be undertaken by the directors at such time
or times as they shall think fit, and further may be allowed by them 1o be in abeyance,
whether such branch or kind of business may have been actually commenced or not,
s0 long as the directors may deem it expedient not to commence or proceed with such
branch or kind of business.

1I. CAPITAL
SHARES

6. Subject to section 90 of the Ordinance and any
Ordinance, and without prejudice to any special

following as may be approved by the company by special resolilion:

(a) different voting rights; voting rights disproportionate to the paid-up value of
share held; voting rights for specific purposes only; or no voting rights at all;

(b) different rights for entitlement of dividend, right shares or bonus shares or
entitlement to receive the notices and to attend the general mectings;

(¢) rights and privileges for indefinite period, for a limited specified period or for
such periods as may from time to time be determined by the company; and

(d) different. manner and mode of redemption, including redemption in
accordance with the provisions of these articles, or as prescribed in the
Ordinance, including but not limited to, by way of conversion into shares

3
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with such rights and privileges as determined by the company in the manner
and mode provided in these articles.

Subject to provisions of the Ordinance and any rules in that regard made under the
Ordinance, the company may issue shares which are to be redeemed or any other
redeemable security, on such terms and in such manner as may be provided in the
Ordinance and rules.

Subject to provisions of the Ordinance and these articles, the shares in the capital of
the company for the time being, including any new shares resuliing from an increasc
in the authorized capital, shall be under the control of the directors who may allot or
otherwise dispose of the same or any of them to such persons as the directors shall
delermine and at such times and in such manner as the directors think {it, cither at par
or at a premium or subject to section 84 of the Ordinance at a discount. Provided that
the shares in the capital of the company shall always be issued as fully paid shares
and no shares shall be issued as partly paid shares.

The directors may allot and issuc shares in the capital of the company as payment or
part payment for any property sold or transferred, or for services rendered, to the
company in the ordinary course of its business, and shares so allotted shall be issued
as and shali be deemed to be fully paid shares.

The board shall, as regards any allotment of shares, duly comply with such provisions
of the Ordinance and rules as may be applicable.

The company may al any time pay a commission to any person for subscribing or
agreeing to subscribe (whether absolutely or conditionally) for any shares, debentures
or debenture stock in the company or procuring or agreeing to procure subscriptions
(whether absolutely or conditionally) for any shares, debentures or debenture stock in
the company. In case any commission is payable, the company shall comply with the
provisions of section 82 of the Ordinance. The company may also pay expenses on
any issue of shares or debentures or redeemable capital.

Except as permitted in the Ordinance and any rules in that regard made under the

Ordinance, no part of the funds of the company shall be employed in the purchase of

its own shares or in giving, whether directly or indirectly and whether by means of a
loan, guarantee, security or otherwise, any financial assistance for the purpose of or in
connection with a purchase made or to be made by any person of or any shares in the
company.

Save ‘as herein otherwise provided, the company shall be entitled to treat the
registered holder of any share as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not,
except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as by statute required, be
bound toc recognize (even when having notice thereofl) any benami, cquitable,
contingent, future, partial or other claim or right o or interest in such share on the
part of any other person.

Shares may be registered in the name of persons, any limited company or other
corporate body. Not more than four (04) persgns-shall be registered as joint-holders of
any share,

ersons, the person [irst
br bonus or service of

'[, y except voting at the
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CERTIFICATES

The Certificates of title to shares and duplicate thereof shall be issued under the seal
of the company and signed by two of the directors or by one such dircctor and the
secrelary provided that such signatures may if necessary be printed lithographed or
stamped subject to the approval of the directors.

The company shall within ninety days after the allotment of any shares, debentures or
debenture stock and within forty-five days after receipt by the company of the
application for transfer of any such shares, debentures or debenture stock complete
and have ready for delivery the certificate of all shares, the debentures and the
certificate of all debenture stock allotted or transferred, and unless sent by post or
delivered to the person entitled thereto within the period aforesaid the company shall
immediately thereafter give notice to that person in the manner prescribed in these
articles for the giving of notices to members that the certificate is ready for delivery,

If a certificate of shares, debenture or debenture stock is proved to the satisfaction of
the company o have been lost or destroyed or, being defaced or mutilated or torn, is
surrendered to the company, and the company is requested to issue a new certificate
in replacement thereof, the company shall, after making such enquiry as it may deem
fit, advise the applicant within thirty days from the date of application the terms and
conditions (as to indemnity and otherwise and as to payment of the actual expenses
incurred on such enquiry and of a fee not exceeding ten rupees) on which the
company is prepared to issue a new certificate and a time for compliance therewith or
of the reasons why the company is unable to issue a new certificate, as the case may
be, and in the former case if the applicant shall within the time allowed comply with
the terms and conditions specified, the company shall issue a new certificate to the
applicant within forty five days from the date of application,

The company shall not be bound to issue more than one certificate in respect of a
share or shares held jointly by two or more persons and delivery of a certificate for a
share to any one of joint holders shall be sufficient delivery to a

d(,u)mpdnwd by the certificate of thc sharc(s) 1
d1rc(.mrs mdy d]so dcc]mc lo rec,ogm/e any Instru

n.]atcs by such other evidence as the dlre(,torq may red ---------

show the right of the transferor to make the transfer. The dm.c,lors may
waive the production of any certificate upon evidence satisfactory on
them of its loss or destruction.

(b) If the directors refuse o register a transfer of any shares they shall, within
thirty (30) days after the date on which the Instrument of Transfer was
lodged with the company, send to the transferee and the transferor notice
of the refusal indicating the reason for such refusal; provided that if the
directors refuse to register a transfer of shares on account of a defect in or
the invalidity of the Instrument of Transfer, the transferee shall be
entitled, after removal of such defect or invalidity, to re-lodge the
Instrument of Transfer with the company.

The instrument of Transfer of any share shall be in writing in the usual common form, or in
the following form, or as near thereto as circumstances will admit:



The Maple Leaf Power Limited

i/We

of in consideration of the sum of Rupees

Paid to me /us by

of hereinafter called the transferee (s), do hereby transfer to the said Transferce(s)
the Ordinary Share(s) numbered

Standing in my/our name(s) in the books of  Maple Leaf Power Ltd  To hold unto the said transferee(s),
his/her/their executors, administrators and assigns subject to the several conditions on which I/We hold the
same at the time of the execution hereof, and I/'We the said transferee(s) do hereby agree 1o accept and take the
said shares subject to the same conditions.

As witness our hands the day of
Signed by the above named transferor in the presence of:

Witness : Transferor's
QOccupation: : Seller (s) Signature :
CNIC#: : CNIC#: |
Address : Address :

Signed by the above named transferee(s) in the presence of

"Ifwe hereby declare that [ am/we are not minor(s) and that [ am/we are Nationals of Pakistan”

Wilness Transferce (s)
Occupation : Buyer(s)
CNIC # : Signature :
Address : CNIC #: |
: Occupation :
Address :

Received Transfer fee Rs. Purchaser's Specimen Signature
On
Entered in Register of Transfer No.
Approved: Director /

Secretary
On

DIVIDEND MANDATE [Optional to be filled in by Transferee(s)/Buyer(s)] in case the transferee intends
that the cash dividend declared by the company, if any is directly credited in his/her/its Bank Account,
instead of issue of Dividend Warrants, then please fill in the following boxes:

DIVIDEND MANDATE DETAIL (TO BE FILLED IN BY TRANSFEREE/BUYER)

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank’s Name

Branch Name and Address

Cell Number of Transferee

Landline Number of Transferee, if any

It is stated that the above-mentoned information is correct, that I will intimate the changes in the above-
mentioned information to the company as soon as these occur.

SIGNATURE OF THE TRANSFEREE(S)
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No transfer shall be made to a minor or person of unsound mind. Further, no
transfer shall be made to an individual if the instrument of transfer is not
accompanied by a certified copy of the computerized national identity card of
the transferee.

All registered instruments of transfer shall be retained by the company for a
period of not less than 10 years, but any Instrument of Transfer which the
directors may decline to register shall be returned to the person depositing the
same.

The Instrument of Transfer of any share'in the company shall be duly stamped
and exccuted both by the transferor and transferee, and the transferor shall be
deemed to remain holder of the share until the name of the transferce is entered
in the register in respect thereof.

On giving seven days previous notice in the manner provided in the Qrdinance,
the transfer books and register may be closed during such time as the directors
think fit, not exceeding in the whole forty-five days in each year, but not
exceeding thirty days at a time.

The executors or administrators or the nominee appointed under section 80 of
the Ordinance of a deceased member (not being one of several joint-holders)
shall be the only persons recognized by the company as having any litle o the
shares registered in the name of such member, and in case of the death of any
one or more of the joint-holders of all registered shares, the survivors shall be
the only persons, recognized by the company as having any title to or interest in
such shares, but nothing herein contained shall be taken to releasc the estate of a
deceased joint-holder from any liability on shares held by hlm juintly with any
other person. Before recognizing any executor or AdpRT the directors
may require him to obtain a Grant of Probate or np#
or Letters of Administration or other legal Teppeae
from some competent Court in Pakistan prov1 13
where the board in their absolute discretion t
directors to dispense with the production of Pri
or such other legal representation upon such te\y
as the directors, in their absolute discretion, ma

Qfl,
Any committee or guardian of a lunatic or mino =—::-:. =0r any person
becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy or
insolvency of any member upon producing such evidence that he sustains the
characters in respect of which he proposes to act under this article, or of his title,
as the directors think sufficient, shall have the right to be registered as a member
in respect of such share, or may, subject to the regulations as to transfer
hercinbelore contained, transfer such share.

Neither the company nor the directors nor any other officer of the company shall
incur any liability for registering or acting upon a transfer of shares apparently
made by sufficient parties, although the same may, by reason of any fraud or
other cause not known to the company or the directors or any other officer of the
company, as aforesaid, be legally inoperative or insufficient to pass the property
in the sharcs proposed or professed to be transferred, and although the transfer
may, as between the transferor and transferee, be liable to be sct aside, and,
nolwithstanding that the company may have notice that such Instrument of
Transfer was signed or executed and delivered by the transferor in blank as to
the name of the transferee or the particulars of the shares transferred, or

7
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otherwise in defective manner. And in every such casc the person registercd as
transferee, his executors, administrators and assigns alone shall be entitled to be
recognized as the holder of such sharcs and the previous holder shall, so far as
the company is concerned, be deemed to have transferred his whole title hercto.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The company may by ordinary resolution and subject to compliance with the
requirements of section 92 of the Ordinance increase the authorized share
capital by such sum, to be divided into shares of such amount, as the resolution
shall prescribe. Subject to the provisions of section 92(1)(d), 92(3) and 93, the
company may, by ordinary resolution;

(a) consolidate and divide its share capital into shares of larger amount than
its existing shares;

b) by sub-division of its existing shares or any of them, divide the whole or
any part of its share capital into shares of smaller amount than is fixed
by the Memorandum of Association;

() cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution,
have not been taken or agreed Lo be taken by any person.

The directors may from time to time increase the issued share capital by such
sum as they think fit. Except as otherwise permitted by scclion 86 of the
Ordinance, all shares intended to be issued by the directors shall, before issuc,
be offered to the members strictly in proportion to the amount of the issucd
sharcs held by each member; provided that fractional shares shall not be offercd
and all fractions less than a share shall be consolidated and disposed of by the
company and the proceeds from such disposition shall be paid to such of the
entitled members as may have accepted such offer. Such offer shall be made by
notice specilying the number of shares offered, and limiting a time within which
the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to be declined, and after the expiration
of that time, or on the receipt of an intimation from the person to whom the offer
is made that he declines to accept the shares offered, the dircctors may dispose
of the same in such manner as they think fit. In respect of each such offer of
shares the directors shall comply with the provisions of section 86 of the
Ordinance and in particular with the provisions of sub-sections (3), (4) and (5)
thereof. Any difficulty in the apportionment of shares amongst thc members,
such difficulty shall, in the absence of any directions given by thc company in
general meeting, be determined by the directors,

Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issuc or by these
articles, any capital raised by the creation of new shares shall be considered part
of the original capital and shall be subject to the provisions herein contained
with reference to transfer and transmission and otherwise.

Subject to the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 86 of the Ordinance, il
owing lo any inequality in the number of new shares to be issucd and the
number of shares held by a member entitled to have the offer of such new
shares, any difficulty shall arise in the apportionment of such new shares or any
of them amongst the members, such diffic shall, in the absence of any
direction in the resolution creatin the company in gencral
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1. MEETINGS

36

37

38.

The company may, by special resolution, reduce its share capital in any manner,
with and subject to, any incident authorized and consent required by law.

The share premium account maintained pursuant to section 83(1) of the
Ordinance may, be applied by the company:

(a) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the company;

(b) in writing off the expenses of, or the commission paid or discount
allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the company;

(¢ in providing for the premium payable on the redemption to any
redeemable debentures of the company; or

) in paying up un-issued shares of the company to be issued as fully paid
bonus shares.

Subject to the provisions of secticn 96 to 105 inclusive of the Ordinance, the
dircctors may accept from any member the surrender on such terms and
conditions as shall be agreed of all or any of his shares.

VARIATION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Whenever the capital is divided into different classes of shares, all or any of the
rights and privileges attached to each class may, subject to the provisions of
section 108 of the Ordinance, be modified, commuted, affected, abrogated or
dealt with by agreement between the company and any person purporting to
contract on behalf of that class provided such agreement is (a) ratified in writing
by the holders of at least three-fourths in nominal value of the issued shares of
the class or (b) confirmed by a special resolution passed.-3
general meeting of the holders of shares of that clj

every such meeting. This article shall not by i
modification which the company would have if

The statutory general meeting of the company shall be held within the period
required by section 157.

A general meeting to be called annual general meeting, shall be held in
accordance with provisions of section 158, within eighteen months from the
date of incorporation of the company thereafter the company shall hold a
general meeting once at least in every calendar year within a period of four
months following the close of its financial year in the town in which the office is
situate and at such time and place as may be determined by the directors,
provided that no greater interval than fifteen months shall be allowed to elapse
between two such general meetings. The company may, for any special reason
and with permission of the Commission, extend the time within which any
annual general méeting, not being the first such meeting, shall be held.

The company shall hold its annual general meeting in the town in which the
registered office is situate; provided that, it may, for any special reason and with
permission of the Commission, hold the said meeting at any other place.
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All general meetings of the company, other than the statutory meeting or any v
annual general meeting, shall be called extraordinary general meetings.

The directors may, whenever they think fit, and they shall, on the requisition of
the holders of not less than one-lenth of the issued capital of the company,
forthwith proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the company.
If at any time there are not within Pakistan sufficient dircctors capable of acting
to form a quorum, any dircctor of the company may call an extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings may be called by the directors, and in the case of such requisition the
following provisions shall have effect:

(a) The requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the office and may consist of
several documents in like form cach signed by onc or morc
requisitionists.

(b) If the directors do not proceed within 14 days or as prescribed otherwisc
in the Ordinance, from the date of the requisition being so deposited o
cause a meeting to be called, the reguisitionists or a majority of them in
value may themselves convene the mecling, but any meeting so .
convened shall not be held after threc months from the date of the
deposit.

(c) Any meeting convened under this article by the requisitionists shall be
convened in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meelings are to be convened by the directors but shall be held at the
office.

(d) A requisition by joint-holders of shares must be signed by all such
holders.

(€] Notice of a gencral meeting shall be sent in the manncr hercinafter
mentioned at least twenty one (21) days or as prescribed otherwise in the
Ordinance, before the date on which the meeting is to be convened to all
such persons as are under these articles or the Ordinance entitled 0
receive such notices from the company and shall specify the place and the
day and hour of the meeting and the nature of the business 10 be
transacted thereat.

()] In the case of an emergency affecting the business of the company, an
extraordinary general meeting may be convened by such shorter notice as .
the Registrar may authorize.

«©) Where any special business, that is to say, business other than

the meeting provides for
(all such matters being
transacted at a general
such meeting a statement
the consideration of such
interest (whether direct or in¥
business involves approval

( wfacls as may be material lor
wedtighity the nature and cxtent of the
Lréi‘:lor, and where the item of
prnent, the time and place

a‘}in'ﬁi V 5T

10



42.

43,

45.

appointed for inspection thereof, and to the extent applicable such a
statement shall be annexed to the notice also in the case of ordinary
business 1o be transacted at the meeting.

) Where a resolution is intended to be proposed for consideration at a
general meeting in some special or particular form, a copy thereof shall
be annexed to the notice convening such meeting.

(c) If a special resolution is intended to be passed at a general meeting, the
notice convening that meeting shall specify the intention to propose the
resolution as a special resolution.

03] A notice for a general meeting at which an election of directors is to take
place shall state the number of directors to be elected at that meeting and
the names of the retiring directors.

(2 The notice of every general meeting shall prominently specify that a
proxy may be appointed who shall have the right to attend, demand or
join in demanding a poll and vote on a poll and speak at the meeting in
the place of the member appointing him and shall be accompanied by a
form of proxy acceptable to the company.

(h) The company shall comply with the provisions of section 160(1) and

section 50 of the Ordinance with regard to giving notices of general
meetings.

The accidental omission to give any such notice Lo, or the non-receipt of notice
by, any of the member, shall not invalidate the proceedings at any such meeting.
PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of
members is present at the ime when the meeting proceeds to business; save as

herein otherwise, provided two (02) members presepss %Dy proxy
representing (wenty five percent (25%) of the to gl be a
quorum

The Chairman of the board of directors shall B3R Qvery
general meeting of the company, or if there is n shall
not be present in person within fifteen minutes a% tha r the
holdmg, of the meeting or is unw1111ng to act, the \\c reside

acl, any one of the directors present in person may be eleci? C Chalrmdn of
the meeting, or if no director be present in person, or if all the dircctors present
in person decline to take the chair, the members present in person shall choose
one of their member to be Chairman of the meeting.

If within half-an-hour from the time appointed for the meeting, a quorum is not
present, the meeting if convened upon such requisition as aforesaid shall be
dissolved, but in any other case it shall stand adjourmned to the same day in the
next week at the same time and place, and if at such adjourned meeting a
quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for it, the
meeting shall be dissolved.

11
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The Chairman may adjourn the meeting from time o ime and from place 10
place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned mecting other than
the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the adjournment ook
place. When a meeting is adjoumned for more than seven days, notice of the
adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original meeting. Save as
aforesaid it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the
business 10 be transacted at an adjourned meeting. The following are the
directors of the company who shall hold office until first annual general meeting
and thereafter shall be eligible for re-election.

i. Mian Tariq Sayeed Saigol
ii. Mian Taufique Sayeed Saigol
ili. Sayeed Tariq Saigol
iv. Waleed Tariq Saigol
v. Mian Danial Taufique Saigo!
vi. Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi
vii. Arif ljaz

In the case of an equality of votes the Chairman shall, both on a show of hands
and al the poll, have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes to which he
may be entitled as member.

(a) Atany general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be
decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is (before or on the declaration
of the result of the show of hands) demanded in accordance wilh
paragraph (2) of this article, and unless a poll is so demanded, a
declaration by the Chairman of the meeting that a resolution has, on a
show of hands, been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a particular
majority, or lost, and an entry to that effect in the book or electronic record
of the proceeding of the company shall be conclusive evidence of the fact,
without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favor
of, or against, the resolution.

(b) Any of the following persons may demand a poll:
(i) The Chairman of the meeting, or

(ii} Two members having the right to vote on the resolution and present in
person or by proxy; or

(iii) Any member or members present in person or by proxy having nol
less than one-tenth of the total voting power in respect ol the
resolution.

If a poll is demanded, as aforesaid, it shall be taken (subject to section 168 of
the Ordinance) in such manner and at such time and place as the Chairman of
the meeting directs, and either at once or after an interval or adjournment of not
more than fourteen days from the day on which the poll is demanded, and the
result of the poll shail be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which
the poll was held. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn at any time by the
person or persons who made the demand. In_g€Kq* any disputc as to the
admission or rejection of a vote, the Chairmy &a the fmeeting shall determine
the same, and such determination made ]

conclusive.

Any poll duly demanded on the election o
question of adjournment shall be taken at th
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A poll demanded on any other guestion shall be taken at such time, not being
more than 14 days from the day on which the poll is demanded as the Chairman
of the meeting directs.

The demand of a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the
transaction of any business other than the question on which a poll has bcen
demanded.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

Subject to section 160 and any rights or restrictions for thc time being attached
to any class or classes of shares, every member present in person (where all the
participants of a general meeting can see each other) shall have, whether on a
show of hands or on a poll, votes proportionate to the paid up valuc of the shares
or other securities carrying voting rights held by him according 1o the
entitlement of the class of such shares or securities, as the casc may be provided
that , the provisions of section 178 shall apply in the case of the election of
directors.

On a show of hands, every member present in person shall have one votc and
upen a poll every member present in person or by proxy shall have onc vote in
respect of each share held by him,

On a poll a member eatitled to more than one vote need not, il he votes, use all
his votes or cast all the votes he uses in the same way.

Any company or other corporation which is a member of the company may by
resolution of its directors or other governing body authorize such person as it
thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the company or of any
class of members of the company, and the person so authorized shall be entitled
to exercisc the same powers on behalf of the company or corporation which he
represents as that company or corporation could exercise if it were an individual
member of the company, present in person. The production before or at the
meeting ol a copy of such resolution purporting Lo be signed by a director or the
sceretary of such company or corporation and certified by him as being a true
copy of the resclution shall be accepted by thecampany as sufficient evidence

celing in respect

; r of such shares,
provided that forty-eight hours at leg g the meeting or
adjourned meeting, as the case ma Ee 23 4 K to vote he shall
satisfy the directors of his right te %}ch “Wapinobr th cclors shall have
previously admitted his right to vote d FP meeting i pecl thereof. If any
member be a lunatic, idiot or non compOsfifetsis: figfiay vole, whether by a
show of hands or at a poll, by his committee, curator bonis or other legal curator
and such last mentioned persons may give their votes by proxy.

Where there are jointly registered holders of any share, any one of such persons
may vote at any meeting either in person or by proxy in respect of such share as
if he was solely entitled thereto; and if more than one of such joint-holders be
present at any meeting, ¢ither in person or by proxy, that one of the said persons
so present whose name stands first in the register in respect of such share shall
alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof. Several executors or administrators
of a deceased member in whose name any share stands shall for the purposes of
this article be deemed joint holders thereof.
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59.

60.

61.

62.

On a poll votes may be given either in person (including without limitation a
representative of a company duly authorized by proxy.)

No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the
meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered,
and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes.
Any such objection made in due time shall be referred o the Chairman of the
meeting, whose decision shall be final and conclusive.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the
appointer (such cxpression shall exclude any reference to the Electronic
Transactions Ordinance in accordance section 31(1) of the Electronic
Transactions Ordinance) or of his attomey duly authorized in writing (such
expression shall exclude electronic transmission as prescribed by scction 3 of
the Electronic Transactions Ordinance) or if such appointer is a corporation
under its common seal or signed by an officer or an attomey duly authorized by
it (Such expression shall exclude any reference to the Electronic Transactions
Ordinance in accordance section 31 (1) of the Electronic Transactions
Ordinance). No person shall be appointed a proxy who is not a member of the
company and qualified to vote.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority
(if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy of that power or
authority, shall be deposited Such expression shall hereinalter include, where
permitted by law, receipt in accordance with section 15 of the Electronic
Transactions Ordinance) at the office not less than forty-cight hours before the
time for holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as
valid.

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument appointing a proxy
shall be valid notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or
revocation of the instrument or transfer of the share in respect of which the vole
is given, provided no intimation in writing of the death, insanity, revocation or
transfer of the share shall have been received at the office before the mecting.
Provided nevertheless that the Chairman of any meeting shall be entitled (o

- require such evidence as he may in his discretion think fit of the duc exceution

63.

“TI/We

of

of an instrument of proxy and that the same has not been revoked.

Every instrument appoiniing a proxy shall, as nearly as circumstances will
admit, be in the form or to the effect following and shall be retained by the
company: :

PROXY FORM
MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

being a

member of Maple Leaf Power Limited hereby appoint.

14




1V,

of

another member of the company

or failing him / her

of

(Name})

another member of the company

as my / our proxy to atiend and vote for and on my / our behalf, at the {annual /

extraordinary, as the case may be) general meeting of the company 1o be held on the

day of and al any adjournment thereof.”

Provided always that an instrument appointed a proxy may be in the form sel out in
accordance with the relevant regulation of Table A of the First Schedule to the

Ordinance.
DIRECTORS
NUMBER OF DIRECTOQORS
64. Subject to the provisions of these articles and the Ordinance, all dircctors shall

05.

66.

67.

68.

be clected by the members in general meeting.

The company shall have at least seven directors. Subject to the said minimum,
the dircctors themselves shall determine from time to time in the manner
provided in this article the number of directors that the company shall have. At
least thirty-five (35) days before the date of every general meeting at which
directors are intended to be elected, the directors shall fix the number of elected
directors that the company shall have from the effective date of the election and
the number of such directors who shall be elected at the meeting. The number of
elected directors so fixed by the directors shall not be changed except with the
prior approval of the company in general meeting.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS

A director who is out of Pakistan for not less than three (3
the approval of the board of directors and by notice in W
appoint any duly qualified person to be an alternativefidi
absence and such appeointment shall have effect, and su
holds office as alternate director shall be entitled to notic)

or removed the appointee from office by nolice in writing under his hand.

An alternate director, even if not a member, shall, in the absence of a direction
Lo the contrary in the instrument appointing him, be entitled to notice of general
meetings of thc company and to vote at such meetings on behalf of his
appuinter, il his appointer is a member of the company, and generally to
represent his appointer.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND OTHER
PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The company shall have an office of Chief Executive which shall be filled from
lime 10 time by the directors who may appoint a director or (subject to section
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69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

201 of the Ordinance) any other person to be the Chief Executive of Lhe
company for a period not cxceeding three years and on such terms and
conditions as the directors may think fit, and such appointment shall be made
within fouricen days from the date on which the office of Chicl Executive lalls
vacant. If the Chief Executive at any time is not already a director he shall be
deemed to be a director of the company notwithstanding that the number of
directors shall thereby be increased and he shall be entitled 1o all the rights and
privileges and shall be subject to all liabilities of the office of dircctor. Upen the
expiry of his period of office, a Chief Executive shall be cligible for re-
appointment. The Chief Executive may be removed from office in accordance
with the provisions of section 202 of the Ordinance notwithstanding anything
contained in these articles or in any agreement between the company and the
Chief Executive.

The directors may appoint other principal officers of the company including
chief operating officer, chief financial officer and the company secretary and
give such officer such designations and with such terms and conditions as the
directors may determine from time to time.

A Chief Executive of the company shall receive such remuneration as the
directors may determine and it may be made a term of his appointment that he
be paid a pension and/or gratuity and/or other benefits on retirement from his
office.

The directors may from time to time entrust to and confer upon the Chicl
Executive for the time being such of the powers exercisable under these articles
by the directors as they may think fit, and may confer such powcers for such
time, and to be exercised for such objects and purposes, and upon such terms
and conditions, and with such restrictions as they think expedicent; and they may
confer such powers, either collaterally with, or to the exclusion of, and in
substitution for all or any of the powers of the directors in that behalf; and may
from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers.

QUALIFICATION AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Any director who serves on any committee or who devotes special attention o
the business of the company, or who otherwise performs services which in the
opinion of the directors are outside the scope of the ordinary dulies of a dircetor,
may be paid such extra remuneration as the directors may determine from time
to time. The remuneration of a director for altending meetings of the board shall
from time to time be determined by the directors.

Each director of the company may, in addition lo any remuneration receivable
by him, be reimbursed his reasonable travelling and hotel expenses incurred in
atiending meetings of the directors or of the company or otherwise whilst
employed on the business of the company.

The qualification of an elected director, in addition to his being a member,
where required, shall be his holding sharg -‘—""‘----- g 1ml value of Rs. 10,000 a1
least in his own name, but a dircct( 5 qlerests of a member or
members holding shares of the no 0( 0 at least shall require
no such share qualification. A dirg ‘-.. quah | as representing the
interests of a member or membcr 2 réquisite value unless he
. g Or members concerned by
notice in writing addressed to the \\- PRSP ‘.v', tha-";hart,s of the requisite
JEC ?m];\a.! ‘thus appropriated for
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75.

76.

7.

qualifying a director shall not, while he continues to be such representative, be
appropriated for qualifying any other director. A director shall acquire his share
qualification within two (2) months from the effective date of his appointment
director.

The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in their body so
long as their number is not reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant to
these articles as the necessary quorum of directors.

The office of a director shall ipso facto be vacated if:

(a) he ceased to hold the share qualification, if any, nccessary for his
appoiniment; or

(b} he is found o be a unsound mind by a court of competent jurisdiction;
or

(c) he is adjudged an sclvent; or has applied to be adjudicated as an
insolvent and his application is pending or is an un discharged
insolvent; or

(d) he has been convicted by a court of law for an offence involving moral
turpitude;
(e) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any private company of which

he is a director without the sanction of the company in general meeting
accepts or holds any office of profit under the company other than that
of a chief executive or legal or technical adviser or a banker in
contravention of the provisions of section 188 (c) (i) of the Ordinance;

(N he absents himself from three consecutive meetings of the directors or
from all meetings of the directors for a continucus period of three
months, whichever is the longer, without leave of absence from the
board of directors; or

) he or any firm of which he is a partner or any privay
he is a director accepts a loan or guarante
contravention of section 195 of the Ordinance;

=2

(h) he acts in contravention of section 214 of ¢
(i} by notice in writing to the company he resigns

G) he is removed from office by resolution of the
meeting in accordance with section 181 of the Ordinz

(k) his appointment is withdrawn by thc Authority nominating him as
director;
)] he has betrayed lack of fiduciary behaviour and a declaration to the

effect has been made by the court under section 217 of the Ordinance at
any time during the preceding five years.

Subject (o authorization being given by the directors in accordance with section
196(2)(g) of the Ordinance, a director shall not be disqualified from contracting
with the company either as vendor, purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such
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78.

79.

80.

81.

contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the company with any
company or partnership of or in which any director of the compauny shall he a
member or otherwise interested, be avoided, nor shall any such director so
contracting or being such member or so interested be liable to account to the
company for any profit realized by any such contract or arrangement by reason
of such director holding that office or of the fiduciary relationship so
cstablished. A director who, or whose spouse or minor child, is in any way,
whether directly or indirectly, concerned or interested in any contract or
arrangement or proposed contract or arrangement with the company shall
disclose the nature of such concern or interest in accordance with section 214 of
the Ordinance that is Lo say:

(a) in the case of a contract or arrangement to be entered into, at the
mceeting of the directors at which the question of entering into the
contract or arrangement is first taken into consideration or, il the
director was not, on the date of that meeting, concemed or interested in
the contract or arrangement, at the first meeting of the directors held
after he becomes so concerned or interested; and

(b) in the case of any other contract or arrangement, at the first meeting of
the directors held after the director becomes concerned or interested in
the contract or arrangement.

A general notice that any directer of the company is a dircctor or a member of
any other named company or is a member of any named firm and is to be
regarded as interested in any subsequent transaction with such company or firm
shall, as regards any such transaction, be sufficient disclosure under this article.
Provided, however, that any such general notice shall expire at the end of the
financial year in which it was given and may be renewed for a further period of
one financial year at a time by giving fresh notice in the last month of the
financial year in which it would otherwise expire.

Whereby any contract or resolution of the directors an appoiniment or a
variation in the terms of an existing appointment is made (whether effective
immediately or in the futurc) of a Chief Exccutive, whole time director or
secretary of the company, in which appointment of any dircctor of the company
is, or after the contract or resolution becomes, in any way, whether directly or
indircctly, concerned or interested, or whereby any contract or resolution of the
directors, an appointment or a variation in the terms of appointment is made
{whether effeclive immediately or in the future) of a Chiel Exccutive, the
company shall inform the members of such appointment or variation in the
manner required by section 218 of the Ordinance and shall comply with the
requirements of that section in regard to the maintaining of such contracts and
resolutions open for inspection by members at the office, the provision of
certified copies thereof and extiracts there from and otherwise.

In accordance with section 219, the company shall maintain at its officc a
register or electronic record, in which shall be entered scparately particulars of
all conlracts, arrangements or appointments in which the direclors are interested.
Such register or electronic record shall be open to inspection 10 the members
during business hours, subject to any reasonable restriction that may be imposced

i @h\xm Ynpany may be interested as a
.,
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82,

&3.

&4.

85.

86.

87.

88.

vendor, shareholder or otherwise, and no such director shall be accountable for
any benefits received as a director or member of such other company.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The number of directors determined by the directors under section 178 shall be
clected to office by the members in general meeting in the following manner,
namely;

(a) a member present in person or by proxy shall have such number of
voles as is equal to the product of voting shares held by him and the
number of directors to be elected

(b) a member may give all his votes to a single candidate or divide them
between more than one of the candidates in such manner as he may
choose, and

(c) the candidate who gets the highest number of votes shall be declared

elected as director and then the candidate who gets the next highest
number of votes shall be so declared, and so on until the tolal number of
directors to be elected has been so elected.

If the number of persons who offer themselves to be elected as directors is not
more than the number of vacancies for which elections are being held, such
persons being otherwise eligible shall be deemed to have been elected as
directors from the date on which the election was proposed to be effective.

A director elected under section 178 shall hold office for a period of three years
unless he carlier resigns or becomes disqualified from being a director, or
otherwise ceases o hold office. A retiring director of the com
eligible for re-election. s

not fill a casual vacancy by appomtmg any pcrson who has bcen removcd from
the office of a director of the company.

No person including a retiring director of the company shall be eligible for
election to the office of director of the company at any general meeting unless
he has, not lcss than fourteen days before the date of the meeting, left at the
office, a notice in writing, duly signed, signifying his candidature for the office.

The company shall keep at the office a register of the directors and officers,
containing the particulars required by section 205 of the Ordinance and the
company shall otherwise comply with the provisions of that scction as regards
furnishing retumns to the Registrar and giving inspection of the register.
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90.

91.

92.

93.

94,

9s.

96.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The directors shall meet in accordance with the Ordinance. Questions arising at
any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes and in casc of an equality of
votes the Chairman shall have a second or casling vote.

The quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of the directors shall
be one-third of the number of directors or four directors, whichever is greater,
present in person. An altemate director whose appointment is effective shall be
counted in a quorum. If all the directors except one are disqualified from vaoting,
the matter should be decided in general meeting.

A director may, and the secretary on the requisition of a dircctor shall, at any
time summon a meeting of the directors. Such meetings may be held using any
technology consented to by all the directors, including but not limited to
telephone and video conferencing. The consent may be a standing onc,
withdraw able by a director only within a reasonable period of time before the
meeting. It shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting of directors to any
director for the time being absent from Pakistan.

The board of directors of the company shall from time to time elect one of the
directors as Chairman of the board of directors of the company and determine
the period for which he is to hold office and his remuncration. The Chairman or
in his absence the Chief Executive shall preside over all meetings of the board
of direclors, but if at any meeting neither the Chairman nor the Chiel Exceutive
is present in person within half an hour of the time appointed for holding the
same, the directors present in person may choose one of their number to be
Chairman of the meeting.

A meeting of the directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent o
exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretion by or under these
articles for the time being vested in or exercisable by the directors generally.

The directors may from time to time delegate of their powers to commitlecs
consisting of such two members or more members of their body as they think
fit, and may from time to time revoke such delegalion. Any committee s0
formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegaled, conform o any
regulations that may from time to time be imposed upon it by the directors.

The meeting and proceedings of any such committee consisting of lwo or more
members shall be govemed by the provisions herein contained for regulating the
meetings and proceedings of the directors, so far as the same are applicable
thereto.

All acts done by any meeting of the direclors or by a commiltce of the directors
or by any person acting as a director of the company shall, notwithstanding that
is shall afterwards be discovered that there was some defect in the appointment
or continuance in office of any such directors or person acling as aforesaid, or
that they or any of them were disqualified or had vacated office, or were not
enlitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed or
had duly continued in office and was qual:ﬁed and had continued to be a
director and had been entitled to be a s ided that nothing in this
article shall be deemed to give valids fﬁ\idggmy,)re “by any such director after
the appointment of such director h en shuwn-m bc mvahd
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100.

A resolution, other than resolution in respect of any matier specified in section
196(2) of the Ordinance circulated through fax or email or any form of
clectronic transmission (o all the directors for the time being entitled to receive
notice of a meeting of the directors, passed without any meeting of the directors
or of a committee of directors and signed or affirmed through fax or email or
any form of electronic transmission, by a majority of all directors in writing
under the hands of all directors (or in their absence their altemate directors) for
the time being in Pakistan, being not less than the quorum required for meetings
of the directors, or as the case may be of the members of the committee, shall be
valid and effectual as if it had been passed at the meeting of the directors, or as
the case may be of such committee, duly called or constituted. The resolution in
writing of the company may consist of several copies of a document signed by
one or more director(s) and takes effect at the date and time on which the last
director, necessary for the resolution to be passed, signs a copy of the resolution;
or a record of several signed electronic messages each indicating the identity of
the sender, the text of the resolution and the sender’s agreement or disagreement
to the resolution, as the case may be and such a resolution takes effect on the
date on which the last director’'s message, necessary for the resolution to be
passed, is reccived.

If any dircctor of the company, being willing, shall be called upon o perform
cxtra services or 10 make any special exertions in going or residing away from
his place of business for the time being for any of the purposes of the company
or in giving special attention to the business of the company as a member of a
committee of the directors, the company may remuncrate such director so doing
cither by a fixed sum or by a percentage of profits or otherwise as may be
determined by the directors, and such remuncration may be either in addition to
or in substitution for his or their share in the remuneration above provided for
the directors.

MINUTES

The directors shall cause minutes to be duly entered in books provided for the
purpose of or as an electronic record, of,

(a) all appointments of officers;

(b) the names of the directors present in perso

() all orders made by the directors and com

(d) all resolutions and proceedings of general Wg:afi
the directors and of the committees of the dir@

and any such minutes of any meeting of the dircctors or 0fes
or of the company, if purporting to be signed by the Chairman of such meeting
or by the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting, shall be prima facic
evidence of the matter stated in such minutes.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The directors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Ordinance, and
without prejudice to the generality of the foregaing, the company shall comply
with the provisions of the Ordinance in regard to the registration of the
particulars of mortgages and charges affecting the property of the company or
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102.

created by it, to the keeping of a register of the directors, and to the sending o
the Registrar of an annual list of members and a summary of particulars rclating
thereto, and notice of any consolidation or increase of share capital, sub-division
of shares, and copics of special resolutions and a copy of the register of directors
and notifications of any changes therein. All such information may be stored as
an electronic record and transmitted accordingly, where possible.

The control of the company shall be vested in the directors, and the business of
the company shall be managed by the directors who may excrcise all such
powers of the company and do all such acts and things as may be excreised or
done by the company as by the Ordinance or by these articles or by a special
resolution expressly directed or required o be exercised or done by the
company in general meeting., subject nevertheless to any regulations of these
articles, 1o the provisions of the Ordinance, and to such regulations being not
inconsistent with the aforesaid regulations or provisions, as may be prescribed
by the company in general meeting; but no regulation made by the company in
general meeting shall invalidate any prior act of the directors which would have
been valid if that regulation had not been made.

Without prejudice to the general powers conferred by Ordinance and to any
other powers or authorities conferred by these articles on the directors, it is
hereby expressly declared that the directors shall subject 1o the exercise in
accordance with the Ordinance have the following powers, that is o say, power:

(a) To purchase or otherwise acquire for the company any property, rights
or privileges which the company is authorised to acquire at such price
and generally on such terms and conditions as they think fit, and to scli,
let, exchange or otherwise dispose of absolutely or conditionally any
part of the property, privileges and undertaking of the company upon
such terms and conditions, and for such consideration, as thcy may
think fit.

) At their discretion to pay for any property, rights, privileges acquired by
or services rendered to the company cither wholly or partially in cash or
in shares (subject to the provisions of section 86 of the Ordinance)
bonds, debentures or other securities of the company. Any such bonds,
debentures or other securities may be either specifically charged upon
all or any part of the property of the company or not so charged.

(c) To open account with any bank or financial institution and deposit into
and withdraw money from such accounts from time to time.

(d} To make, draw, endorse, sign, accept, negotiale and give all cheques,
.bills of lading, drafts, orders, bills of exchange, and other promissory
notes and negotiable instruments required in the business ol the
company.

(e) To secure the fulfillment of any conlracts, agreements or cngagements
entered into by the company by mortgage or charge of all or any of the
property of the company for the time being or in such other manner as
they may think fit.

() Subject to the provisio

Agents), managers, i pa Eﬁcers};’cmployces for permanent,
temporary or speci cé i ’(_\ ay from time to time think fit,
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(h)

®

@

(k)

®

(m)

(n)

()

(o))

and to determine their powers and duties and fix their salaries or
emoluments and to require sccurity in such instances and to such
amount as they think fit.

To appoint any person or persons (whether incorporated or not) to
accept and hold in trust for the company any preperty belonging to the
company or in which it is interested or for any other purposes, and to
execute and do all such deeds, documents and things as may be requisite
in relation to any such trust and to provide for the remuneration of such
trustee or trustees.

To institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal
proceedings by or against the company or its officers or otherwise
concerning the affairs of the company and also to compound and allow
time for payment or satisfaction of any debits due and of any claims or
demands by or against the company.

To refer claims or demands by or against the company to arbitration and
observe and perform the awards.

To make and give receipts, releases and other discharges for money
payable to the company and for the claims and demands of the
company.

To act on behalf of the company in all matters relating to bankrupts and
insolvents.

To determine who shall be entitled to sign on the company’s behall
bills, notes, receipts, acceptances, endorsements, cheques, releases,
contracts and documents.

manner as they think fit, and in partig
lo appoint any persons 1o be the atio
such powers (including power to s
may be thought fit.

D)

/\ﬁ?;.

i, Rpany wxlh
%

terms as

mpany not

{¥securitics and
in such manner as they may think fit, and Ttem=tza€ To time to vary or
realize such investments.

To exccute in the name and on behalf of the company in favor of any
director of the company or other person who may incur or be about to
incur any personal liability for the benefit of the company, such
mortgages of the company’s property (present and future) as they think
fit, and any such morigage may contain a power of sale and such other
powers, covenanls and provisions as shall be agreed on.

To give to any person employed by the company, a commission on the
profits of any particular business or transaction or a share in the general
profits of the company, and such commission or share of profits shall be
treated as part of the working expenses of the company.
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104,

(q) From time to time to make, vary and repeal bye-laws for the regulation
of the business of the company, ils employces.

(r) To enter into all such negotiations and contracts and rescind and vary all
such contracts and execute and do all such acts, deeds and things in the
name and on behalf of the company as they may consider expedient for
or in relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the
purposes of the company.

(s) To establish, maintain, support and subscribe 1o any charitable or public
object, and any institution, society, or club which may be for the benefit
of the company or its employees, or may be connected with any town or
placc where the company carrics on business; 10 give pensions,
gratuities, or charitable aid to any person or persons who have served
the company or to the wives, children, or dependants of such person or
persons, that may appear to the directors just or proper, whether any
such person, his widow, children or dependants, have or have not a legal
claim upon the company.

Q9] Subject to the provisions of section 227 of the Ordinance, before
recommending any dividends, to set aside portions of the profits of the
company to form a fund to provide for such pensions, gratuitics, or
compensation; or to create any provident or benefit fund in such or any
other manner as to the directors may seem [it.

(u) Subject to the provision of the Ordinance to accept from any member on
such terms and conditions as shall be agreed a surrender of his shares or
any part thereof.

(v) To make advances and loans without security or on such security as
they may deem proper and as permissible under the law.

(w) . To make and alter rules and regulations concerning the time and manner
of payment of the contributions of the employees and the company
respectively to any such funds and the accrual, employment, suspension
and forfeiture of the benefits of the said fund and the application and
disposal thercof, and otherwise in relation to the working and

- management of the said fund as the directors shall from time o time
think fit.

(x) To delegate all or any of the powers hereby conferred upon them to
such person or persons as they may from time to time think fit.

(y) Subject to section 213 of the Ordinance to authorize the having of an
official seal of the company for use abroad.

REGISTER OF DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS

In accordance with section 220, the company shall maintain at its office a
register or electronic record of the directorg as said in the section.

e by power of attorney
palirector or officer of the
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direclors, lo be the attomey or attorneys of the company for such purposes and
with such powers, authorities and discretions and for such period and subject to
such conditions as they may think fit, and any such powers of attorney may
contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing
with any such attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and
discretions vested in him; and without prejudice to the generality of the
foregeing any such power of attorney may authorize the attorney to institute,
conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by or against the
company, whether generally or in any particular case.

BORROWING POWERS

(a) The directors may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow money
and to mortgage or charge its undertaking, property and assets (both present
and future), and to issue debentures, debenture stocks, and other securities,
weather outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation
of the company or of any third party.

(b) In exercising the powers of the company aforesaid the directors may, from
time to time and on such terms and conditions as they think fit, raise money
from banks and financial institutions and from other persons under any
permitted system of financing, whether providing for payment of interest or
some other form of return, and in particular the directors may raise money
on the basis of the mark up on price, musharika, modaraba or any other
permitied mode of financing, and without prejudice to the gencrality of the
foregoing the directors may exercise all or any of the powers of the company
arising under section 19(2) of the Ordinance.

{¢) In regard to the issue of securities, the directors may grerergrall or any of

the powers of the company arising under sections#3

section 2(1)(34) of the Ordinance or may issue (;,
representing redeemable capital as defined ng'
Ordinance or participatory redeemable capital ﬁrgi

assignable free from any equities between the company and the person to whom
the same may be issued.

Any debentures, debenture-stock, bonds or other securities may be issued at a
discount, premium or otherwise and with any special privileges as to
redemption, surrender, drawing, allotment of shares, attending and voting at
general meetings of the company, appointment of directors of the company or
otherwise.

The directors shall cause a proper register to be kept in accordance with the
provisions of section 135 of the Ordinance, of all mortgages and charges
specifically affecting the property of the company, and shall duly comply with
the provisions of the sections of the Ordinance, namely, sections 121 and 122
(Registration of morigages and charges), section 128 (Endorsement of
certificates), section 129 (Filing of prescribed particulars), section 130 {Keeping
of a copy of every instrument creating any morigage or charge by the company
at the office) "and‘ section 132 (Giving of intimation of the payment or
satisfaction of any charge or mortgage created by the company).
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ACCOUNTS AND DIVIDENDS

109.

110.

111.

112.

113.

114,

BOOKS OF ACCOUNT

(References to books of account, balance sheet, profit and loss account and
auditors’ report shall hereinafter mutatis mutandis include all electronic forms
of record or storage of the company.)

The directors shall cause to be kept proper books of account with respect to the
matters set out in section 230 of the Ordinance.

The books of account shall be kept at the office or at such other place as the
directors think fit, and shall be open to inspection by the directors during
business hours.

The company shall preserve in good order the books of account of the company
in respect of any financial year for a period of ten years following the close of
that year.

The directors shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and
at what times and places and under what conditions or regulations the accounts
and books of the company or any of them shall be open (o the inspection of the
members, and no member (not being a director of the company) shall have any
right of inspecting any account or book or document of the company except as
conferred by law or authorized by the directors or by the company in general
meeting,

(a) The directors shall arrange to place before the annual general mecting of the
company in every vear a duly audited balance sheet and profil and loss
account having the auditors’ report attached thereto, and a report of the
directors conforming to the requirements of section 236 of the Ordinance,

(b) As required by section 241 of the Ordinance the balance sheet and profit
and loss account shall first be approved by the directors and when so
approved shall be signed by the Chief Executive and at lcast onc director
but if on account of his absence from Pakistan or other reason the signature
of the Chiefl Executive cannot be obtained, the balance sheet and profit and
loss account shall be signed by at least two directors for the time being in
Pakistan, and in every such case a statement signed by those two directors
shall be subjoined to the balance sheet and profit and loss account stating
the reason why the signature of the Chief Executive was not obtained.

(¢) The direclors may authorize the Chairman or the Chief Exceutive to sign
the report of the directors which may then be signed accordingly, but in the
absence of any such autherity the report of the directors shall be signed as
required by section 236(3) of the Ordinance in the same manner as the
balance sheet and profit and loss account.

(a) A copy of the balance sheet, profit and loss account and the reports of the
directors and auditors shall be sent not less than twently one (21) days or as
prescribed otherwise in the Ordinance, before the date of the annual gencral
meeting to the messbersand other persons entiled o receive notices of

o el which notices are to be given,
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115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

121.

122.

123,

124,

(b) After the balance sheet, profit and loss account and the reports of the
directors and auditors have been laid before the annual general meeting of
the company, two copies thereof (or such larger number as may be
prescribed under section 242(1) of the Ordinance) signed by the signatories
thereto shall be filed with the Registrar within thirty days from the date of
the meeting,.

The directors shall in all respects comply with the provisions of sections 230 to
236 of the Ordinance.
ANNUAL RETURNS

The company shall make the requisite annual returns in accordance with the
provisions of section 156 of the Ordinance.

DIVIDENDS

The company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall
exceed the amount recommended by the directors.

No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of the profits of the year or any
other undistributed profits, and in the determination of the profits available for
dividends the directors shall have regard to the provisions of the Ordinance.

The declaration of the directors as to the amount of the net profits of the
company shall be conclusive.

The directors may from time to time pay to the members such interim dividends
as in their judgment the position of the company justifies.

All dividends declared shall be paid within the periods spg
of the Ordinance. No dividend payable in respect of a ghdfc sp_a]l bear %y

against the company.

The directors may retain any dividends on which thgfc
may apply the same in or towards satisfaction
engagements in respect of which the lien exists.

paid and satisfied wholly or in part in cash or by the distribution of specific
assets, and in particular by the distribution of paid-up shares, debentures,
debenture-stock or other security of the company, or paid-up shares, debentures,
debenture-stock or other security of any other company, or in any one or more
of such ways.

Any general mecting may resclve that any moneys, investments, or other assets
forming part of the undivided profits of the company standing to the credit of
the reserve fund or in the hands of the company and available for dividend (or
representing premiums received on the issue of shares and standing to the credit
of the share premium account) be capitalized and distributed amongst such of
the members as would be entitled to receive the same if distributed by way of
dividend and in the same proportion on the footing that they become entitled
thereto as capital and that all or any part of such fund be applied on behalf of
such members in paying up in full any un-issued shares, debentures, debenture-
stock or other security of the company, which shall be distributed accordingly,
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125.

126.

127.

128.

129.

130.

131.

and that such distribution or payment shall be accepted by such members in full
satisfaction of their interest in the said capitalized sum.

For the purpose of giving effect to any resolution, the directors may scttle any
difficulty which may arise in regard to the distribution as they think cxpedicent
and may fix the value for distribution of any specific assets and may determine
that cash payments shall be made to any members upon the fooling of the value
s0 fixed in order to adjust the rights of all parties and may vest any such cash or
specific assets in trustees upon such frusts for the persons entitled o the
dividend or capitalized fund as may deem expedient to the dircctors. Where
requisite a proper contract shall be filed in accordance with the provisions of
section 73 of the Ordinance, and the directors may appoint any person o sign
such contract on behalf of the persons entitled to the dividend or capilalized
fund, and such appointment shall be effective.

A transfer of shares shall not pass the rights 1o any dividend declared thereon
before the registration of the transfer.

The directors may retain the dividends payable upon shares in respect of which
any person is entitled to become a member or which any person under that
article is entitled to transfer until such person shall become a member in respect
thereof or shall duly transfer the same.

Any one of several persons who are registered as the joint-holders of any share
may give effectual receipts for all dividend and payments on account of
dividends in respect of such share.

The dividend in respect of any share shall be paid to the registered holder of
such share or to his banker or to a financial institution (as defined in section
2(1)(1SA) of the Ordinance) nominated by him for the purpose. Unless
otherwise directed, any dividend may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through
post to the registered address of the member or person entitled thercto, or, in the
case of joint-holders, to the registered address of that one whose name stands
first on the register in respect of the joint-holding, or to such financial institution
or bank as the member or person entitled thereto or such joint-holders, as the
casc may be, direct, and every cheque or warrant so sent shall be made payable
to the order of the person to whom it is sent, or to the order of the institution or
bank, directed as aforesaid.

All dividends unclaimed for one year after having been declared may be
invested or otherwise made use of by the directors for the benefit of the
company until claimed and all dividends unclaimed for three years afier having
been declared may be forfeited by the directors for the benefit of the company,
but the directors may annul the forfeiture wherever they may think proper.

RESERVE AND DEPRECIATION FUNDS

The directors may from time to time before recommending any dividend set
apart any and such portion of the profits of the company as they think fit as a
reserve fund to meet contingencies or for the liquidation of any debentures,
debts or other liabilides of the company, for equalization of dividends or [or
repairing, improving, and maintaining any of the property of the company, and
for such other purposes of the company as the direclors in their absolute
discretion think conducive to the interests of the company; and may invest the
several sums so set aside upon such investments (other than shares of the

; wthey may think fit, and from time to time deal with and vary such
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VI.

VII.

investments, and dispose of all or any part thereof for the benefit of the
company, and may divide the reserve fund into such special funds as they think
fit, with full power to employ the reserve funds or any part thercof in the
business of the company, and that without being bound to keep the same
scparate from the other assets,

132.  The direclors may, from {ime to time before recommending any dividend, set
apart any and such portion of the profits of the company, as they think fit, as a
depreciation fund applicable at the discretion of the directors, for providing
against any depreciation in the investment of the company or for rebuilding,
restoring, replacing or for altering any part of the buildings, work, plant,
machinery, or other property of the company destroyed or damaged by fire,
flood, storm, tempest, earthquake, accident, riot, wear and tear, or any other
means whatsoever, and for repairing, altering and keeping in good condition the
property of the company, or for extending and enlarging the buildings,
machinery and property of the company with full power to employ the assets
constituting such depreciation fund in the business of the company, and that
without being bound to keep the same separate from the other assets.

133.  All moneys carried to the reserve fund and depreciation fund respectively shail
nevertheless remain and be profits of the company applicable, subject 1o due
provision being made for actual loss or depreciation, for the payment of
dividends and such moneys and all the other moneys of the company not
immediately required for the purposes of the company may be invested by the
directors in or upon such investment or securities as they may select or may be
used as working capital or may be kept at any bank on deposit or otherwise as
the directors may from time to time think proper.

134.  The directors may also carry

AUDIT

ti€s&ifgulated in accordance with
tory modification thereof for

135.  Auditors shall be app i
sections 252 to 255 of thg
the time being in force.

SEAL

136.  The directors shall provide a common seal of the company which shall not be
affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the board or
by a committee of directors authorized in that behalf by the directors, and two
(2) directors, or one (1) director and the secretary of the company, shall sign
cvery instrument to which the common seal is affixed.

137.  The directors may provide for the use in any territory, district or place not
situated in Pakistan, of an official seal which shall be a facsimile of the common
seal of the company, with the addition on its face of the name of every Lerritory,
district or place where it is to be used. The official seal shail not be affixed to
any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the board or by a
committee of directors authorized in that behalf by the directors, and two (2)
directors, or one (1) director and the secretary of the company, or such other
person as the dircctors may appoint for the purpose, shall sign cvery instrument
to which the official seal is affixed. The provisions of section 213 shall apply to
the use of the official seal.
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VIII. NOTICES

138.

A notice may be given by the company to any member cither personally or by
sending it by post to him at his registered address or (if he has no registered
address in Pakistan) to the address, if any, within Pakistan supplied by him to
the company for the giving of notices to him or in electronic form as prescribed
by section 3 of the Electronic Transactions Ordinance.

IX. AMALGAMATION, DIVISION AND RECONSTRUCTION

139.

Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of section 287, the company
may reconstruct, amalgamate into another company or divide into two (2) or
more companies in the process of which the whole or any part of the
undertaking, property or liabilities of the company or any other company, may
be transferred to any other company or the company, respectively, as the case
may be. Provided that any sale of the undertaking of the company, the dircctors,
or the liquidator on a winding up, may, if authorized by a special resolution,
accept fully paid shares, debentures or securities of any other company, whether
incorporated in Pakistan or not, either then existing or to be formed, lor the
purchase in whole or in part of the property of the company, and the dircctors if
the profits of the company permit) or the liquidator (in a winding up) may
distribute such shares, or securities, or any other property of the company
amongst the members without realization, or vest the same in trustees for them,
and any special resolution may provide for the distribution or appropriation ol
the cash, shares or other sccurities, benefits or property, otherwise than in
accordance with the strict Tegal rights of the members or contributorics of the
company, and for valuation of any such securitics or property at such price in
such manner as the meeting may approve, and all holders of shares shall be
bound to accept and shall be bound by any valuation or distribution so
authorized, and waive all rights in relation thereto, save only in case the
company is proposed to be or is in the course of being wound up, such statutory
rights (if any) under section 367 of the Ordinance as are incapable of being
varied or excluded by these articles.

X. SECRECY

140.

141.

Every director, manager, adviser, auditor, trustee, member of a commitiee,
officer, servant, agent, accountant or other person employed in the business of
the company shall, if so required by the directors before entering upon his
duties, sign a declaration pledging himself to observe a strict secrecy respecting
all transactions of the company with its customers and the state of accounts with
individuals and in matters relating thereto and shall by such declaration pledge
himself not to reveal any of the matters which may come to his knowledge in
the discharge of his duties except when required to do so by the directors or by
any meeting or by any Court of law and except so far as may be necessary in
order to comply with any of the provisions in these articles contained.

No member or other person (not being a director) shall be entitled to enter upon
the property of the company or to inspect or examine the company’s premiscs or
properties of the company without the permission of the directors for the time
being or to require discovery of or any information respecting any detail ol the
company’s lradi matter which is or may be in the nature of a trade
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XIL

opinion of the directors it will be inexpedient in the interest of the members of
the company to communicate.

ARBITRATION

142.

143.

145.

WINDING UP

146.

147.

Whenever a difference arises between the company on the one hand and any of
the members, their executors, administrators, or assignees on the other hand
touching the true intent or construction or the incident or consequences of these
presents, or of the status of enactment’s of the legislature, or touching anything
then or thereafter done, executed, omitted or suffered in pursuance of these
presents or of the status of enactment’s touching any breach or alleged breach or
otherwise relating 1o the premises or to these presents, or to the status or (o any
of the affairs or officers of the company, the company by writlen agreement
refer to arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Act 1940 (X of 1940) and
every such difference shall be referred 1o the decision of an arbitrator 10 be
appointed by the parties in difference or if they cannot agree upon a single
arbitrator, to the decision of two arbitrators, one appointed by such party, or in
the event of disagreement of the arbitrators, to that of an umpire appointed by
arbitrators themselves. The provisions of Arbitration Act 1940 (X of 1940) shall
apply to all arbitrations between the company and persons having such
difference.

If either party to the difference makes default in appointing the arbitrator for
fiftecn days after the other party has given to him notice to appoint the same,
such other party may appoint an arbitrator to act in the place of the arbitrators of
the defaulting party.

The costs of, or incidental to any such reference and award shall be in the
discretion of the arbitrator/arbitrators or umpire as the case may bc who may
determine the amount there of and may award by whom, and to whom, and in
whal manner the same shall be borne and paieF
In the event that a dispute, claim, or ¢ r
management or its shareholders, or
the dispute and resolve the issue D
before taking recourse to forma é
litigation.

een the company, its
ay be taken to scttle
dceredited mediator
as arbitration or

Pakistan *
If the company shall be wound up and He<zsss

among the members as such shall be insufficient to repay the whole of the paid-
up capital, such assets shall be distributed so that as nearly as may be the losses
shall be borne by the members in proportion to the capital paid up on the shares
held by them respectively. And if in a winding up the assets available for
distribution among the members shall be more than sufficient to repay the whole
of the capital paid up at the commencement of the winding up, the excess shall
be distributed amongst the members in proportion to thc capital at the
commencement of the winding up, paid up on the shares hcld by them
respectively. But this article is to be without prejudice to the rights of the
holders of shares issued upon special terms and conditions.

If the company shall be wound up, whether voluntarily or otherwise, the
liquidator may with the sanction of a special resolution divide among the
members in specie or kind any part of the assets of the company, and may with
the like section vest any part of the assets of the company in trustees upon such
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trusts for the benefit of the members or any of them as the liquidator with the
like sanction shall think fit.

XIII. INDEMNITY

148.

Every director or officer of the company and every person employed by the
company as auditor shall be indemnified out of the funds of the company
against all liability incurred by him as such director, officer or Auditor in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is
given in his favor, or in which he is acquitted, or in connection with any
application under section 488 of the Ordinance in which relief is granted to him
by the Court.
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being formed
into a company, in pursuance of this Articles of Association, and we respectively agree to take the
number of shares in the Capital of the company as set opposite (o our respective name(s).

Number of

Name and Nationality Residential shares
Surname Father’s / Husband’s with any o . ) . ) ) .
e . ccupation Address (in taken by Signature
(Present & Name in Full Former Full) cach
Former in Full) Nationality subscriber
Mian Tariq ) 01
Sayeed Saigol Mian Muhammad Pakistani Industrialist | 12-Main One
CNIC #135200- | SayeedSaigol Gulberg, Lahore.
5293106-5
Mian Taufique House No. 1, 01
Sayeed Saigol Mian Muk}ammad Pakistani Industrialist Kohinoor One
CNICH#H37405- SaycedSaigol Colony,
0436841-7 gesha]WjdrdRoadv
awalpindi.
Sayced Tarig 01
Saigal . - " Pakistani Industrialist | 12-Main One
CNIC#35202- Mian Tariq SayeedSaigol Gulberg, Lahore.
0560944-1
01
Waleed Tariq One
Saigol I T Pakistani Industrialist | 12-Main
CNIC#3s202- | Mian Tariq SayeedSaigol Gulberg, Lahore.
8546(58-7
Mian Danial EOE_SG No. 1, (?11
Taulique Saigol Industrialist C"] Inoer ©
CNIC#37405- MianTaufiqueS PO ;]my, Road
7481343-9 eshawar soad,
Rawalpindi.
Syed Mohsin Busines House No. 208- 01
Raza Nagvi Syed Munawer u.tmc.as R B, Street No. 5, One
CNICH3S2025- | Nagvi Exccutive | i valary
155530-7 Ground, Lahore
Arif Tjaz o Business House # 113-X, o1
CNIC#35201- Mian [jaz Ahmed Pakistani Executive Phase-3, D.H.A., One
4540213-7 Lahore Cantt.
Maple Leaf Pakistani Company 42-Lawrence 999.,993
Cement Factory Road, Lahore HNIS: g
Limited undrec
CUIN# 0001107 Ninety Nine
through its TIFIED ,w TRUE COPY Thl(\)]l.ls‘znd
nominee, Syed F\/S ine
Mohsin Raza l-lu'ndrcd
Nagvi Ninety
CNIC#352025- Three
155530-7
i orp bréfs 1 1,000,000
ateount opening. The Banks may verify ‘°mr¢q ke One
throagh bank portailannched by th . Million

Dated this 8" day of Qctober 2015

Witness (o Lthe above Signatures:

Signature :

Occupation :

Full Name:

NIFT

National Institutional Facilitation

Technologies {Private) Limited

Full Address: 5" Floor, AWT Plaza, I. I, ChundrigarRoad,

Karachi.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leat Power Limited Fax: 9204236368721

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 7" Annual Report along with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Principal Activities

Maple Leaf Power Limited was incorporated on October 15, 2015 under the Companics
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). It is a Public Limited Company with
principal activity to generate, purchase, transform, distribute and supply electric power.

Performance and Financial Review

In the year under review, the Company throughout the year successfully operated 40 MW coal
tired power plant and provided not only uninterrupted power supply but also supplied steam to
the Holding Company, Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCF) by efficiently operating
its boiler capacity. The Company recorded net sales of Rs. 5,252 million against Rs. 4,236
million in the corresponding period last year. The Company achieved gross profit of Rs. 928
million against Rs. 1,127 million in comparative year with decrease of 17.66%. Operating profit
for the year was Rs. 967 million as compared to Rs. 1,290 million during the corresponding
period last year. Finance costs during the reporting period decreased to Rs. 21 million as
compared to Rs. 31 million during the last year. The Company earned net profit of Rs. 916
million against Rs.1,153 million in the corresponding period last year. Earnings per share for
the year ended June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 1.82 against Rs, 2.30 last year,

The Company’s capacity utilization was 84% for the
previous year mainly due to varying demand fro
Company) resulting in decrease in gross profit.

Non-Financial Review
dedication. The Chinese power plants are recognized as cost effective and efficient in the
energy sector.

Name of Directors

For the year under review, following were the Directors of the Company: -

Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol Chairman

Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol Chief Executive
Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol Director

Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol Director

Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol Director

Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi Director

Mr. Arif [jaz Director

The details of the remuneration paid to the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company are
disclosed in Note 32 of the Financial Statements.



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

During the year, the Company faced the challenge of rapid increase in coal prices in
international market and devaluation of Pak Rupee against US Dollar. To ease out the pressute
on cost sides, the Company successfully shifted to usage of Afghan coal that was procured from
local market, resultantly, the Company was able to avoid huge foreign currency exchange loss
and was able to dilute the impact of major increase in coal rates in international market.

The Cement demand is highly correlated to the Government’s spending in development
projects through Public Sector Development Program (PSDP). The PSDP in FY 2022-23 has
been enhanced with special emphasis given to regional connectivity, investment on building
large dams and water conservation systems.

In light of the above factors, the company is expected to produce electricity for Bulk Power
Purchaser (The Holding Company) with almost full operational capacity during the year 2022-
23.

Change in Nature of Business

No changes have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of
the Company.

Auditors’ Report

The Auditors have expressed un-modified opinion on the audited financial statements of the
Company.

Default of Payments, Debt/Loan etec.

cut of date of these financials.

Adequacy of Internal Controls

The Directors are aware of their responsibility with resp Nerialyh ancy 1 controls.
Through discussions with management and auditors (both int
that adequate controls have been implemented by the CompanyN

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 as at June
30, 2022 is annexed.



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Map]e Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Auditors

The present auditors of the Company, M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
audited the financial statements of the Company and have issued report to the members. The
auditors will retire at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM} and they are eligible
for re-appointment.

Acknowledgment
We would like to thank all our stakeholders who have placed their confidence in us and also
appreciate the efforts put in by the management team for their unwavering commitment and

hard work.

For and on behalf of the Board

(Sy

QV )} 7 (Sayced Tariq Saigol)

Chief Executive

Lahore: August 31, 2022 Director
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 227(2)(H)]
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
PART-1
(Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals.}
LI Name of the Company Maple Leaf Power Limited |
PART-II
2.1, Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at {3lol-Jolel-J2Tal2l2]
2.2 No of
shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held
[ 7 ! | shareholding from | to 100 shares | 7 |
| - | | sharcholding from 101 1o 500 shares ] 1 - )
l - | | sharcholding from SOI to 1000 shares ] R }
[ » |  [Shercholding from 1001 to 5000 ] - |
l - ] [shareholding from 5001 1o 10000 || - )
l ] | | shareholding from 501,995,000 w0 502,000,000 | 501,999.993 |
(Add appropriate slabs of shareholdings)
| 08 o Total: || 502,000,000 ]
Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not been shown.
2.3, Categories of
Shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Mr. Tariq Saveed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Officer, and their spouse and Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol 1 0.0000002
minor children. Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol | 0.0600002
Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol 1 0.0006002
Syed Mohsin Raza Nagvi 1 0.0000002
Mr. Arif ljaz 1 {1.0000002
Sub Total : 7 0.0000014
2.3.2 Associated Companies, Maple Leaf Cement 501,999,993 99.9999986
undertakings and related Factory Limited
parties.
2.3.3 NIT and ICP { - - )
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial - -
Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies | -
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds. i -
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% | _ Refer2.3.2

2.3.8 General Public :
a. Local - .
b. Foreign - "

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
Granrd Total :
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jail Road,

Lahore 54000 Pakistan :

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9307

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Maple Leaf Power Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qpinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Maple Leaf Power Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the siatement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanaticns given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 0f2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ESAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities
Sfor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We arf€:

accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Acc

Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountanss’ of.
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with th¥&ods;

CBthics for Professional
(th&gode) and we have
€ thathe audit evidence

N 9_]” &7 .
Management is responsible for the other information. Other inform gg? p?}sgg; #information included
in the director’s report for the year ended 30 June 2022, but does no inancial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. : '

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially incomsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, 1f, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. \&\

N\
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Responsibilities of pinnagement and board of direciors for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017(X1X of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability fo
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from matetial misstatenent, whether due to fraud or emror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicab!e in Pakistan will always detect a nmaterial misstatement when it exists.

financial statements.,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise %
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: ‘

’ Identlfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemen ,

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control

. Obtain an undcrstandmg of internal control relevant to the audit in order to de31gn audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal conirol,

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropnatcness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence abtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

COncern. \@




) 7
hi-
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
. Evaluate the overall presentation, struciure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing ofthe
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements .

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017(XIX
of 2017}

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017} and are in
agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢} Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zaket and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Rehan Chughtai,

W@W&Wéaw MM.

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Date: 31 August 2022
UDIN: AR202210183PBymS0yTQ

AR4B22
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Maple Leal Power Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2422

022 2024 2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note {Rupees in thousands) ASSETS Note {Rupcss in thousamls)
Stuere capitul und reserves Now-ctirrent assets
Aulliorized share capital
600,000,000 (202 1: 600,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 cuch 6,000,000 6,000,600 Property. plaat and equipmem i 4693357 4,934,690
Long tenn foan 1o Holding Company 2 2,060,000 1,000,000
fssued. subscribed and paid - up share capital 5 5.020,000 5,420,000 6,693357 5.934.690
Accumulated profiy 1,603,458 675,521
Surplus on revaluatien of properiy, plant and cquipment ¢ 177,626 188,584
6,801,084 5.984,105
Nau onerrent fabilisies Current ussers
Deferred taxation 31,244 41,633 Stores md spares including coal i3 471,721 309,010
Advances -4 11,082 10.649
Citrreut liabllitdes Duc from Holding Company 13 132,596 61,225
Murgin ond prepayments 16 15,027 15021
Trade and other pavables 540,713 |. Advance tax- el 109,190 133936
Shart termy borrowings - securcd 30,000 Accrucd mark-up . 17 247 21492
Aceryed inngk-up 624] . - Cashand bank balancey 15 23,668 11,002
571,337 - ’ 793,701 562,385
7491058 6.497.075 791,058 6497.075 YK\

Conlingencles and conunitments e C,Q}@

The annesed notes (fom 1 o 35 form an infegral part of 1hiese (inancinl statentents.
.

\ AM——=—=N_

' Chief E;c—e;utive

Lubote
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
Far the year ended 30 June 2022

Sales - net
Cost of Sales
Graoss profit

Administrative expenses
Other income
Olher charges
Profit from opcrations

Finance cost
Profit before taxation

Taxation
Profit after {axation

Note

19

LCE WO XY
W by —

24

25

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousands)

5,252,091 4,236,412
(4,324,351) (3,109,406)
927,740 1,127,006
(6,020) (6.676)
133,148 235,829
{88,317) (66,250)
966,551 1,289,909
(21,416) (1,151)
945,135 1,258,758
(29,115) (106,057)
916,020 1,152,701

The annexetl notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial statements.

),

Lahore

DIreCtor

. —._
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2022

2022

2021

(Rupees in thousands}

Profit after taxation 916,020 1,152,701
Other comprehensive income
Dtems thar will 101 be reelassified to statement of profit or loss
Surplus en revaluation of property, plant and equipment - -
Related tax - (3.339)
- (3.339)
Total comprehensive income for the year . . 916,020 1,149,362 ‘&

The apnexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financial siatements.

&

Chief Executive

_ N
@]O. A NN

Lahor T

o Director ,

e
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
I-or te year ended 30 Jime 2022

AS at 30 Junc 2020

Tosul comprehensive income for the veur,

Profit nfler taxution

Other comprehensive income

Ineremental deprecigion relating to surplus on
revaluation of fixed assels

Trunsuciivns with owstees pf the Company

luterim cash dividend @ Rs. 7 per shere for the
year cnded 30 Juoe 2021

As at 3 June 2021

Total comprelensive Incpme for tre vear

f*rofii afier wxation

Oiher comprehensive income

Incremental depreciition relating to surphus on
revaluution of Fixed assels - nel o lax

LifTect of change in ciTective lax mte

As at 30 June 2022

Surplus on

é :I::;‘“ revajuation of A“;::;.::"cd Tatal Equity
* property, plient
and cquipment
{Rupees in thansiands)
5,020,000 203,990 3,024,753 £,248,743
- . 1,152,704 1,132,703
. {3.33%) - (3.339)
- (3.319) 1,152,701 1.149.562
- (12.067} 12.067 -
- - (3,514,000) (3.514,000)
3,026,000 188,584 675,521 5,884,105
. - 216,020 916,020
- - 916,020 914,020
- {1,917) 11,917 -
- 959 - 059
5,020,600 177,624 1,603,458 6,801,084 \&S

The annexed notes fram 1 1o 35 form an integral pont of these financial staiements.

Lahore

&

— Chief Executive

——— .
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Siatement of Cash Flows
or the yuar euded 30 Juise 3022

Cush flow from opepating aetivigles Nute
Prodit before taxation
Adjusnnent for:

Depreciation H

Mackup on jong (ern [oan to Holding Company
Workers' Profit Participatior Fund

Workees* Welfare Fund

Finance cost

Murkup from bank deposils

Cash geaernted from eperations Lefore working enpiinl changes

Effect on gosh flone diee g warking copital changes

{Increase) / decrease In chrveni assels:
Stares and spares
Due front the Holding Compeny
Advances
Short terms depasits sod prepuyments
Otler receivables

Increase - tifeerease) in curremt liahtfitivs:
Teade and other payables

Net cash generated lrom operations
Workess' Profit Participation Fund Paid
Finuney cost paid

‘faxes paid

Ner eash genersted from operating activities

Cagh flow fraps ivesting aeghvitdes

Fixed capital expepdilure

{Increase) / deerease in long term [oun 10 [Holding Compauy 12
Mackup reeeived from bank deposits

Markup reeeived from long term loan to Halding Company

Net cash {used In) / generited Trom favesting netivities

Cash flow fram Joageing activifiss

Short terms bareowings - nel

1.ong e loans paid

Dividend paid

Nut cash used in Bnanciog nctivitics

Net inerense in eash wnd exsh equivaients

Cush and cash equivalents st begioning of Ihe yoar
Cash nnd cash equivatents at end of (hiv year

Cash in hand
Current und other scconnis
Short term nmning linance

Total cash wndl eash equivabents

‘The annexed netes from § to 35 form an integezl pan of the; ciad statements.

f.ahore

2022 202t
{Rupees in thousnnds)
945,135 1.258,758
324,170 307,205
(104,170) {197.878)
50,814 66,230
20,325 .
2416 31151
{1,207 {1.371)
1,256,483 1,464,k
(174924) 133.613
{71,371) 226,034
33 67,504
(G) 830
- 16
(246.734) 453,403
26473 {37.116)
1,036.2322 1.880,112
(3.080) -
(22.040) (54.389)
(13.749) (10.81%)
997,353 1,815,208
(49,139 -
(1,000,000} 2,000,000
1,151 2.060
93,301 237,378
954,087) 2.239.638
- (331513
- (32,956)
- (3.314.000)
- (3.873.469)
42,666 176,377
(18998} (393,373}
23,668 (13.998)
(13} sl
23.067 10.446)
- {30.000)
23,068 {18,908}

Chief ﬁxecutive

S —
——




Maple Leaf Power Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Corporate ard general information

Maple LeaF Power Limited ¢ the "Company™) was incorporated in Pakistan on 15 Cclaber 2015 es a public
limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company has
been established 10 sct up and operate a 40 megawatl coal fired power generation plant at Iskanderabad,
Distric! Miamwali, Punjab, Pakistan for peneration of electricity. The Company's registered office is Jocated
al 42 - Lawrence Road, Lahore. The principal objective of the Company is 1o develop. design, operate and
maintain electric power generation plant and in connection therewith 1o engage in the business of gencrntion,
sale and supply of electricity. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leaf Cement Faclory
Limited (“the Holding Company"). The ultiimaie parent company is IKohinoor Textile Mills Limited.

The Cotnpany was granted electricity goneration Yicense from Nmional Electric and Power Regulatory
Authority (NEPRA) on 20 December 2016, The Company enlered {nto a power purchase and sleam
purchase agreements with Holding Company on 04 July 2017 and 31 Qctober 2019 respectively which are

valid for 20 years.
Basis for preparation
2.1 Statement of complinnce

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounling and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

- [nternational Financial Reporting Standards ((FRS} issued by the Interatianal Accounting
Standards Board (LASB) as notified under the Companies Act 2017,

- Islamic Financinl Accounting Standards ([FAS) issued by the [ustilute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been [ollowed.

22 Basis of measurement

g been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
d:plant, machinery and eleciric installation which are measured a

23
MS-Nave begdf prepared in Pak Rupees ("Rs.”) which is the Company's
3fiits aéyounded ofT 10 nearest thousand.
24

The preparation o Statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management 1o make judaments, estimales and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reporied amounts of assets. liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are belivved 1o be
reasonable under circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgiient about
carrying value of nassets and liabilities thay are not readily apparent from other sources, Actual
resulis may differ frowm these estimates.

N\
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The estimales and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions lo
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if 1he revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision aflects
both current and fiture periods.

The areas where assumptions and estimntes or where judgment was exercised by the management
in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses uscful lives and residual value for cach tiem of
property, plant and equipment annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefils that
the Company expects lo derive from that item and the maximum period up to which such benefits
are cxpecled to be available. Any change in estimates in futwre yenrs might affect the carrying
amounts of respeclive ilems of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and Impaitment. Dwring the year, the Company hes changed depreciation
methacl for all class of assets oller than plant, machinery and electrical installations to straight line
basis. The effect of change in the depreciation method is not considered material to the financial
statements, hence, no disclosure to this effect is made in these finuncial siatements.

Revaluntion of property, plant tnd equipment

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers.
The Company uses revaluation model only for its buildings on leasehold land and plant, machinery
and elecirical installations.

The frequency of revaluntions depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property,
plant and equipment belng revalued, When the faii value of a revalued asset differs materially from
its carrying amount, a further revaluation is required. Such frequent revaluations are unnecessary
for items of property, plant and equipment with only insignificant changes in fair value. Instead, it
may be necessary to revalue the item only every three to five years.

Expected credit loss (ECL) / Loss allowanees ag
shart term deposits atd other recejvables s
ECLs are based on the difference belween (fé Lontraciih
contract and all the cash flows that the Compgnf;expedé
at an approximation to (he assel original effec ¥

8 in accordance with the
arefall is then discounted

o] B
The Company has clccted to measure loss & \ganccs" Fos s
approach and has calculated ECLs based on "?izgg;.ﬁ"c* WS L ompany has established a
provision mairix hat is based on the Company's histaneal-credll Joss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specilic to the deblors and Lhe economic enviconment. When determining
whether 1he credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable snd supporiable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, besed on the Company's ‘historical experience and informed credit
assessmenl including {orward-laoking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximem contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for finnncial asscts measured at
amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amouat of the assets.

Impairment on financinl assels other than trade debi has been measured on a 12-month ¢Xpested
loss basis and reflects the shorl maturities of the exposures, The Company considers that s cash
and cash equivelents have low eredit vigk based on the external credit mtings of the counterparties,
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2.4.6

The Company reviews the recoverabilily of its financial assets to assess emount of loss allowances
required there against on an annual basis.

Recoverable amount of nssets / cash generating unit and impairment

The management of the Company reviews carrying amnounts of its assets and cash generaling wnits
for possibie impnirment and, makes formal estimotes of recovernble amount i there is any such
indication,

Pravisions and cantingencics

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based
on the judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated Anancial ouicome,
appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual oulcome of lhese litigations and claims can
have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the reporting date.

Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Company's views differ from the visws taken by the income lax
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as cantingent liabilities.

Summary of significant accovnting policies

The significant accounting policics adopied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below, These policies fiave been consistensly applied to all years presented,

a1

Property, plant and equipment and revaluation surplus

Owngd

Tangible assels except buildings on leasehold land, plant, machinery and electrieal installations are
stated at cost less accumulaled depreciation and impairment, if any. Builklings on leaschold land,
ptant, machinery and electric installation are stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the
date of revaluation, less any subsequent accunulated depreciation and impairment losses. Surplus
on revaluation is booked by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets being revalued,
proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due lo revaluation. The accumulated
depreciation a1 the date of revaluation is also adjusted to equal difference between gross carrying
amounls and the carrying snounts of the assels aller taking into account accumulated impairment
losses, i€ any. Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets to the exient of the annual incrementat
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset is transferred annually to retained
earnings net of related deferred tax il any, Upan disposal, any revalualion reserve relating 1o the
particular assets being sold is wansferred to retained earnings. All transfers 1o / from surplus on
revaluation of fixed assets account ave net of applicable deferred income tax, if any.

Capital work-in-progress is slated al cost less identified impnirment fosses, if ary. All expendiwre
connected with specific assels incurred during inslallation and construction period are carried under
capilel work-in-progress. These are transferred 10 specific assets as and when these are available fay
use,

Major renewals and improvements Lo an item of property, 1
the carrying amount of the item if it {s probable that the ﬁﬁwe—iimmib encfits will
flow 1o the Company and the cost of renewat or nnprovcm mcfm IJ% ?‘ Ty ‘rph @

loss as incurred.
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Gains / losses on disposal or retirement of assets, i any, are taken 1o statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation is caleulated at the rates specified in note 11 using sraight line method. Depreciation
on additions 1o property, plast and equipment is charged from the month in which the item becomes
avaitable for vse. Deprecintion is discontinued from (he month in which it is disposed or classified

as held for disposal.

Increases in the carrying nmownts arising an revaluntion ol building, plant and electvical equipment
is recognised, in other comprehensive income and aceumulated in reserves in sharchiolders’ equity.
To the extens that the increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in profit or loss, the
incrense is first recogmised in profit or loss. Deereases thal reverse previous increases of the same
asset are first recogaised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the rentaining suiplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Recognition and initial measwrement

All financial assets or Anancial liabilities are inilinlly recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contracual provisions of the instrument.

A [linancial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or

financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an jtem not a1 FVTPL, transaction costs
that are direcity aurfbutable to its acquisition or issue. A receivable withoul a significant financing

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial gssets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is ¢

theough other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
N

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to theirs

changes its business model for managing financial assets, iy wiitich ¢ase all affected financial assets

are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business

model. :

Amoriized cost

A financial asset is meastired at amontized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

. it is held within a business mode] whose objective is (o hold assets to coliecl contractual
cash flows; and

- its contraclual terms give eise on specilied dates to cash {lows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the clfactive interest method, The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. luterest income, forefgn exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in prolil or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
proft or loss.

Financiat assets measured al amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, due [rom Holding
Compnny, long term loan to Holding Company and accrued profit .
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Debt nstrizment - PVYOCIT

A debt invesiment is measured at FVQCH if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designnied as ot FVTPL:

- it is held within a business modct whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and seiling finaacinl assets: and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assels are subsequently measured al [air value, Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange pains and fosses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derccognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCJ are reclassified to profit or loss. [owever, the Company has no such instrument al the
reporting date.

Equiry Instrument - FYOCT

On inilinl recognition of an cquity investment that is not hekl for wading, the Company may
jrrevocably clect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election
is made on an investment-by-investinent basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in profit
or loss unless ihe dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the invesiment. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OC! and are never reclassified to profil or loss. However, the
Company has 1o such instrument ai the reporling date.

Fair valne throueh profit or loss (FIYTPL)

All financia) assets not classified as measured al amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FYTPL.

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial nsset that othenwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL If doing so
eliminates or significanily reduces an asccounting mismateh that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair vafue, Net gains and losses, including any inderest or
dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss. IHowever, the Company has no such instrinent at
the reparting date.

Financial assets — Buginess mode! assessment;

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as Lhe fnir value of the financial assel an
initial recognition. *Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time valuc of money and for the
credit risk assoctated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular periad of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administalive costs), as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractuat cash Nows are solely paymenis of principal and interesl, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This encludcs assessing whether the
financial assel conlams a confractual term thal could change lhc ] Wl of contractual

- prepayment and extension (eatwres; and
- terms that lingit the Company’s claim to cash flows i
features).
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financinl liability is
classified ns at FYTPL. if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designatcd as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and nel gains
and losses, including any interest expense, are recogilzed in profit or loss, Other financial Habilivies
are subsequently measured et amartized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition Is also recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, short term borrowing and acerued markup.
Derecognitioty

Finenciul ussets

The Company derccognizes a financinl asset when the contraclual righis to the cash flows [fom the
financial asset expire, or it transfesrs the rights to receive the contracival cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the finangial asset are (ransferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does nat retain control of the financial asset.

The Company miglt enter into transactions whereby it translees assels recognized in its statement
of financial position, bul retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of (he
transferied assets. In these cases, the transferred nssels are not derecognized.

Finuncial liubilitics

The Company derecognizes a finaneial liability when its contraciual obllgatlons are discharged or
cancclled or expire. The Company nlso dcrccogmzes a finaneigl, when ils terms are
hlch cise a new

financial liability, the dilference between the carrying aryiol L.ﬁ?p)gu&mg
paid (ingfuding any non-cash assets transferred or linbilitifss: ¥ g

Due from Elelding Company - trade debt

These are classified at amortized cost and are inilially rec -u e“éhﬁ_'i
3
measured at [air value of consideration receivable. These asscis ara-writhy

reasonable expectation of recovery.,

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legatly enforceable right to
set of T the amounts and it intends either to seitle them on a nat basis or to realize the asset and sellle
the liability simullancously,

[mpairment
Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

. financial asscts measured ot amortized cost;
- debt investments measured al FYOCT; and
- cantract assots.

i\
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equat to lifetime ECLs, excepl for the
following, which are meesured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk a1 the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
cccurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has nol increased siguificantly
since initiaf recognilion.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result (rom default events that are possible within the
12 months afier the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less

than 12 montlis).

When determining whether the credit visk of a financial asset has increased significanily since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Campuany cansiders reasonable and supportabie
information that is relevant and aveilable withoul undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantiiative and qualitative information and annlysis. based on the Company’s historieal experience
and informed credit agsessment and including forward-looking information,

The Company assumes that 1he credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if ¥ s
more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a linancial instrument. [2-month ECLs are (he
portion of ECLs that result from defoult events that are possible within the 12 months afier the
reparting date (or a shorter period il the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The
maximum period considered whien estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed lo credit risk.

The Company has elecled to measure loss allowances {or trade debts using [FRS 9 simplified
approach and bas calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Compony has esieblished o
provision mairix that is based on ihe Company's liistorical credit loss cxperience, adjusted for
forward-looking factars specific to the debtors and the ecanomic envirosument. When determining
whether the credit risk of & financial asset has Increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers ceasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and availsbie withew undue cost or efferl, This includes botls quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credil
assessment including forward-looking information.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amorlized cost are deducied from the Gross
carrying amount of the assets.

The Gross carrying amount of a linancial asset is written off when W 1o reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial assel in ils entirety or, cpﬁrhon lhcmcﬂ'*‘6 g, Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing Q:! amupq.
whether there is a ncasonablc expectaifon of recovery. TI Qom

=

subject to enforcemem activilies in on‘.ler o camply with 1he
amounts due. .

Nou-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Coinpany’s non-(inancial assets, other than so 5 and deferred 1ax
assets, if any are reviewed ot each reporting date to detennine whether there is any indication of
impairment. 1f any such indication exists, then the asset’s recovernble smount is estimated. The
recoverable mnowunt of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 10
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the
lime value of money and the risks specific to the nssel or cash generating unit.
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An inpairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or ts cash generating unil
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, impailment Iosses arc recognized in profil or loss.
Impairment losses recognized in respect of cnsh generating wnits are allocated W reduce the
corrying amounts of the asseis in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed a1 each reporting date for any indications thar the loss has decreased or ne
longer exists. An impairment loss is reverse! if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed only to that extent thal the
assel’s carrying amount afier the reversal does not exceed the carrying amouni that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Stores and spares
These are stated oL cost less provision for slow moving item and obsolescence, if any. Cosl is

determined using the weighted average method. lieins in transit are valued ot cost comprising
ivoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Revenue recognition

Sule of Electricity and Steant under IFRS 13

Revenue from sale of electricity and steam are recognized os delivered, The Company views each
kilowau hour (KWh) of electricity and per tons of steam delivered 10 be a series of distinct goods
that bave the same pattern of transfer (o the customer. The amount that the Company has a right to
bill the customer reflects the pattern of transfer and value of the completed performance 1o the
customer, As a result, the Company applies the “right 1o invoice” practical expedient under IFRS 15
(o measure and recognize revenne,

Interest income

the gross carrying ameatnt of the financial assel.
Contract lizbilities

A comract linbility is the obligation of the Compnny to ransfer goods o si
which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services (o the
cnstonter, a contract liability is recognized when (be payment is made or the payment is due
{whichever is earlier), Conlract liabilitics are recognized as revenue when the Company performs
under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities arising owl of customers* right to claim amounts
from the Company on account of contractual delays in delivery of performance obligations and
incentive on largel achievements.

Trade and other payables

Creditors and other payables are carried at amortised cost which is the fair value of consideration 1o
e paid in the future far goods nnd services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents

running finance and cash at banks.

)

Cash and cash equivalents for lhe :gg(osc of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand, short torm
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Taxation

Currenf

Profits nad aains of the Company derived from electric power generation project are exempt from
tax subject 1o the conditions ax limitations provided for in terms of clause (132) of Part | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Further, the Company is also exempt from
minimum tax on twnover under clause (11 A) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001,

However, profit from steam operaions, profit on bank deposils and interest on long term loan to the
Holding Company are liable 10 be taxed as per the applicablc corporate tax rate.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assels aad liabilities for the financial reperting purposes and the amounts used
for 1axation purposes.

Deferced tax assel is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences only to the extent that
it is probable thm futere @xable profits will be available against which the assel may be utilized,

Deferred tax asset is reduced 10 the extent that it is no longer probable that the related ax benefit
will be renlized. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for afl the taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ave measured at the tax rates that are expected lo apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the siatement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statgment of profit or [oss , except in the case of items

credited or charged to comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is included in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares fwe classified as equity. Incremenial costs direclly attributable 10 the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized ns a deduction from equity, net of any tax effecis.

Dividend to ovclinary shareholders

Contingent liabililies

A contingent liability is disclosed whea:

not wholly within the conuol of the Company; or
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- there is present obligation ihat arises from past events bat il is not probable that an omflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the
antonnt of the obiigation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Foreign currency translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are inilially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dntes
of iransactions. Monetary asseis and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reiranslated
into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the statement of financisl position date. All
exchange differences arc charged o statement of profit cr loss,

Borrowings

All borrowings are recorded al the proceeds received. Berrowing costs directly alributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily toke a
substantinl period of time to get ready for lheir intended use are added to the cost of those assels.
wuntil such time as the assels are substantially ready for their intended use, All other borrowing costs
are charged to statement of profit or loss in the period in which these are fncurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a result of
past evenls and it is probable that outfiow of resources embodying economic benefils will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provision is recognized at an amount thel is the best estimate of the expendiutre required 1o settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. Where outflow of resources embedying economic
benefits is not probable, or where a reliable estimaie of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a
contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outlow is remote,

Mark-up bearing borrowings

the fair value of

iajtialghognition, mark-up
\gﬂsﬂ,,. Whije the difference

lﬂﬁ uné dewption value

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initial
consideration received less alfribuiable (ransaction cofiszSul

bearing borrowings are stated at original cost less ﬁﬁpw’ﬁ !
between the original recognized amounts (as reduced hy peti
is recognized in the stutement of profit or loss ove \ io
basis. The borrosing cost on qualifying asset is inclu

Leases
The Company is the lessee, |

At inception of & contracy, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a peried of time in
exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negoliated on aw individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions.,

At initial recognition, leases are recogniscd as a right-of-use assct and a corresponding Hability at
the date at which the leased assel is available for use by the Company.

The lease Hability Is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nol paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in thg.lease. or if that rae
cannot be readily determined, the Company's increniental borrowing rnte, \&s
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Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate amounts expected 1o be payable by the lessee under residual value guurantees. the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of
penaltics for terminating he lease, if the lease teym reflects 1he lessee exercising that option. less
any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in
determination of lease tetin only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these oplions.

The lease labiiity is subsequently measured at anorised cost using the effective interest rate
method. 1t is remeasured when there is a change in fature lease payments arising from a change in
fixed lepse payments oF s index or rate, change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residtial value gunrantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of
whether if will exercise a purchasc, extension or terinination option. The correspanding adjustment
is made to the enrrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss aceount if the carrying amoum of right-of~use asset has been reduced to

ZCro.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusied
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, phis any initial direcs costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore (he
underiying asset or the silc on which it is located, less any lease incentive received, The right-of use
assel is depreciated on u straight line method over the lease term as this method most closely
reflects the expecied pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The right-ol-use assct is
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability,

Payments associated with shor-terin feases and all Jeases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with o lease term of

12 months or less without a purchase option.

New/ revised accounting standards, amendments tu published nceounting standards, and
interpretations that are not yet effective

The following International Financial Reporting Stendards {IFRS Standards) as nolified under the
Companigs Act, 2017 and the ameadinents and interprelations thereto wilk be effective for accouming
periods beginning on or afler 1 July 2022:

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling 2 Contract {Amendmenis (o LAS 37) cffective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling a contract’ for the
purposes of the onerous contract assessinent comprises the costs that relaie directly 1o the conract,
mcluding both the incremental costs and an allocation of oiher direet cosis to fulfil the contract. An
entity is required 1o apply the amendments to coniracts for which it las not yet filfilled all s
obligations at the beginning of the annual reperting period in which it first applies the amendments
(the date of initial application), Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the
amendments require an entily (o recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to Ui opening balance of retained earnings or other component of
equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

i,
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IFRS 16 — The amendment partinlly amends lflustraiive Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illusiration of reimbursement of Jeasehiold improvements by the Yessor, The objeclive
of tlie amendment is to reselve any potential confusion that might arise in fease incentives.

IAS 41 — The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of §AS 41 for enlities to
exclude taxntion cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present
value technique, This amendment enables the fair value measurement of biological assets on a post-
tax basis.

Propesty, Plunt and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendmenis Lo 1AS 16) cffective
for annual periods beginning on or afier | January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of
items produced while bringing an item of properly, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operaling in the manner intended by management e.g.
when testing etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The
entity measures the cost of these items applying (he measurement requirements of 1AS 2. The
standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An
entity shall apply those amendments retrospeetively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipmentt that are bronglit 1o the location and condition necessary for them io be capable of
operating fn 1le manner inended by management on or after the beginning of the earfiest period
presented in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity
shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment {o the
opening balance of retnined earnings {or other component of equily, as appropriaic} al- the
beginning of that earliest periad presented.

Reference (o the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3} - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 'md 23 of 'md nddcd
parﬂgrﬂplls 21A, ZIB, 21C and 23A 0 II‘RS 3.An cnuty shalt apply thoss-atpEmhTien

for lhe sinual periods begiming on or afier 1 January 2023, l'h
have been added 10 further clarify when a liabilily is classified )
need (o be reclassified as 'current’, The sinndard also amends the aspy {9

defer Lhe scitlement of liability For at least twelve months afier the reporitppersd. An entily's
expectation and discretion at the reporling date to refinance or to reschedule payments on a long-
term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a linbility as current or nor-current. An
entity shal apply those smendments retrospectively in accordance with TAS 8,

Disclosuie of Accounting Policies (Amendments to TAS ] and IFRS Practice Statemert 2) - the
Board has issued amendments on the application of materinlity to distlasure of accounting policies
and to help companics provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key mmendments to tAS |
include:

s roquiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies:

¢ clarifying that accounting policies relaled 10 imntaterial wansactions, other cvents or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and tﬁ@

¢
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«  clarifying that not all accounting policies that relaie 1o material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves malerial to a company’s financinl statements.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statemenl 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiatity lo accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
effective for annun) reporing peviods beginning on or afler | January 2023 with earlier application
permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments 10 JAS 8) inlroduce 8 new definition for
accounting estimates claritying that they arc monetary amounis in the financial statements that are
subject t0 measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate o achieve the objective set out by an aceounting policy. The amendents are effective for
periads beginning on of after | January 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply
prospectively 10 changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or
after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company npplies the
amendiments,

Deferved Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to
1AS 12) narrow ile scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to
fransactions thal give rise (o equal and offseiting temporary differences. As a result, companies will
ieed to recognize a deferred 1ax assel and a deferred tax Hability for temporary differences arising
on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For lzases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred (ax asset and liabilities will need 10 be recognized from the
beginning of the eacliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustment to retained earnings or other components of cquity at that date, The amendmenis are
effective for annual reponing periods beginning on or afier | January 2023 with carlier appiication
permitted.

Sale or Contribution of Assels between an [nvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture {Amendments
to IFRS 10 and 1AS 28) - The amendment amends accounting wreatment on lass of control of
business or assets. The amendments also inteoduce new accounting for less frequent transaction
that involves neither cost nor full step-up of cerlain retained inlerests in assets that are not
businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely untdl she completion
of a broader raview.

The above improvemenis are fikely to have no timpact on the Company's financial staiements.

Share capital
3.1 Issued, subseribed and paid-up capltal me

>
i 5

2022 2021
(Number of sharcs)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 502,000,000

Maple Leaf Cement [Faciory Limited

Company. \\ﬁ{
{
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2022 2021
Surplus on revaluation of property, {Rupees in thousands)
plant and equipmont- net of tax
Al beginning of the year ’ 191,923 203,999
Transfer 10 wnappropriated profil in respect of
incrementa! depreciation chiarged during the
year (12,067) {12,067)
Atend of the year 179,856 191,923
Deferred toax fiability on revajuation surplus
Al beginning of the year 3,339 .
Transferred 10 unappropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation chasged during the year (150)
Surplits on revajuation of propenty, plant and equipment - 3,339
Effect of change in fax rate (959) -
Atend of the year 2,230 3,339
177,626 188,584
6.1 The Company's buildings on leasehold land and plant, mnchinery and eletrical installations were

revalued by Arif Evaluators, an independent valuer not connccled with the Company and approved
by Pakistan Banks' Association (PBA) in “any amount® calegory, at 30 June 2020. The basis of
revajuation for items of these fixed assets were as follows:

6.1.1  Buildings on lessehold land
Construction specifications were noted for each building and stnlclur ¥ R nucllon rales
are applied according 1o consirnction specifications for curgftxs gﬁcﬂ "-\ . After
determining current replacement values, depreciation was cajf
assessed market value,
6.1.2  Plant and machinery
Suppiiers and different cement plant consultants in Pakistan ant
information regarding current prices of comparable power plant 19
value, Fair depreciation faclor for ench item is applied according to
and maintenance.
2022 2021
Delerred taxation (Rupees in thousand)
Qe{errgd tex fability on taxable tesiparary differences
urising in respect of:
- accelerated tax deprecialion on fixed assels 29,014 38,294
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 2,230 3,339
31,244 41,633
31,244 41,633

i
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7.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
2022 2021
Note {Rupees in theusands)
Al beginning of the year 41,633 -
Recagnized in statenent of profit or loss;
- accelerated tax depreciation on {jxed assets (9,280) 38,204
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets {150} -
(9,430) 38,294
Recognized in other comprehensive income: - 3,339
Recognized in surplus on revaluation of fixed gsseis
Effect of change in effective 1ax rate {959) -
At end of the year ) 31,244 41,633
Trade and sther payables
Trade creditors 18,545 15,26]
Income tax deducied a3 source 96,077 111,409
Retention money 1,287 1,587
Bills payable 5,464 1,704
Provision for eleciricity duty 180,652 136,312
Accried lisbilities 37,773 13,227
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 8.4 275,643 227,909
Punjab Workers’ Welfare Fund 23 20,325
Sales lax payable - net 22,095 32,913
Other payables 869 391
658,730 540,713
8.1 _ Workers® Prefit Participntion Fund ( WPPE)
At beginning of the year 227,909 161,659
Provision for the year 23 —30,814 66,250
o - IOI:I . y! ﬁm::b 2
Less: Paid during the year u 208
At end of the year
811

Ra. 3 million has been paud during the year, Opcmng L
amount payable to Workers Welfare Fund in terms &)
Act, 1968, According to the 18th amendment 19 the &
lnbor welfare laws have becotse provincial subject, and d8ud] dingly) the: =36 over amount is no
more payable to the Federal Treasury, Major strength of Company's eniployees eligible for benefit
of WPPF are working in the Province of Punjab and accordingly potential amount of left aver
amount of WPPF is required to be paid 1o the relevant provincial authority as held by the
Honourahie Sindh High Court in its judement in C.P. No. D-1313 of 2013 announced on February
12, 2018. The Government of Punjab has enacted Companies Profits (Workers' Participation)
(Amendment) Act, 2021, however this has not specified the payment mmodalitics and therefore the
company is constrained 1a deposit the lefi-over amount 10 Government of Pakislanw&

&
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2022 2021
Shart term borrowings - sccured (at amortised cost) Note (Rupees in thousands)
Borrowings from banks under conventional mode
Short term runping finance 9.1 - 30,000
- 30,000

9.1

9.2

9.3

Contingeneigs and commitaicuts

10.1

1051

10.1.2

Last year figure represents utilized amount of short term yunning finance facility availed from
National Bank of Pakistan with a accumulated sanctioned limit of Rs, 200 million. During the
cusrent year the ulilized amount of Rs. 30 million was paid ofl"and the amount of short term
borrowing was reduced to zero as no further fnancing was obiained.

The Company at the year end has unavailed FATR facility will sanction limit of Rs. 500
million from the Bank of Punjab which carrles markup at the rate of 1lwee month KIBOR plus
0.75%, payable quarterly. This is secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.867 million over
all present and future moveable fixed assets and current assets of the Company with 25%
margin, corporate guarantee of the Holding Company, assignment ol receivables of the Holding
Company, trust receipts and lien on title of goods under import docunents. The expiry date of
the facility is 30 November 2022,

The Compnrny at the year end has unavailed Rcility under islamic mode of financing from MCB
[slamic Bank Limited with a sanction fimit of Rs. 400 million (2021: Rs. 400 million). This
facility carties markup of 3 months KIBOR + 1%, The facilily is secured against first joint
parri passu charge aver current assets for Rs. 467 million, first joint parel passu charge over
fixed assels of the Company with a margip of 25%, lien over iinport title documents and cross
corporate gurantee of Holding Company. The expiry date of facility is 31 January 2023.

Contingencics

The Deputy Conwnissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order
27 May 202] created demand amounting Rs. 367.6 million undgSections
Act, 1990 for the tax period from July 2016 ¢ June 20i8 B;\'" AL 0T
adjusiment of input tax credit. Being aggrelved, 1he Compan :ﬁbﬁiief‘"»
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR{A) wha vide order no. .
December 2021 reduced the demand to Rs. 134.8 million and remanded the remaining demand
to DCIR. The Company has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the remaining demand wiich is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of the
faverable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these
financial statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no, 04/2021 dated 15 July 2021
created demand amouating Rs, 843.6 million under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from
July 2017 to December 2020 on account of non-apportionment of input tax credit against
Capacity Purchase Price (CPP) component of electricity tarifT. Being aggreived, the Company
filed an appeal before Commissioner nland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 151-
ST/A-VI dated 20 January 2022 reduced the demand 10 Rs. 580.3 millioh and annulled the
remaining demand.
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10.1.3

10.1.4

10.1.5

10.2

“The Company has filed an appeal before Appellate Tribuna! Inland Revenue (ATIR) against tie
remaining demand which is pending adjudication, Management is hopeful of the favorabie
outcome of case and uccordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these financial

statements.

The Deputy Commissianer Inland Revenue (RCIR) vide order no. 05/2021 dated 17 July 2021
created demand amounting Rs. 182.8 million under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from
July 2016 to June 2017 on account of non-apportiomnent of input 1ax credit against Capacily
Purchase Price {CPP) component of electricity tarifl. Being aggreived, the Company filed an
appeal before Commissioner Injand Revenuc (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 150-ST/A-
V1 dated 20 January 2022 reduced the demand to Rs. 96.5 million and annulled the remnining
demand. The Company has filed an appeal before Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the remaining demand which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of (he
favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these
financial statements.

The Depuly Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-11/165/2021 dated
15 February 2022 created demand atnounting Rs. 13.38 million {including [00% penaily
amouonting Rs. 6.78 million) under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the 1ax period July 2019 and August
2019 on account of in-admissible adjusimem of input tax credit. Being agareived, the Company

fifed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) whe vicle order no. 258

ST/A-V1 04 July 2022 upheld the order of DCIR, The Company has filed an appeal Lefore
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order of CIR(A) which is pending
adjudication. Management is hapeful of the favorable owtcome of case and accordingly, no
provision has been incorporated in these financial statenents.

The Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) vide order no. U-13/Enl-[1/168/460 dated
12 April 2022 created demand amounting Rs. 14,76 million (including penally amounting Rs.
0.70 million) under Special Procedure Witholding Rules, 2007 and Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the
tax period July 2016 and June 2018 on account of non-payment of witholding sales tax in
respect of purchascs. Being aggreived, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner
[nland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. Management is hopeful of
the favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has bzen incorporated in these
[inanc¢ial statements,

Commitments 2022 2021
{Rupees in thousands)

In respect of:

- Spares 13,716 3,053
- Qutstanding letter of credits === 12,171 31,508

’-—‘-—'-v\
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s eg, 887 34,561
ﬁ
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The Company has amanged guarantees. from ‘(ﬁkrcnt‘*bmksm@g\‘au@ ta Rs, 25 million
5 Ban rited worth Rs.13
Limited worth Rs.10
million in favour of Direcior E‘{CISE and Taxallo ‘1@}1@]} h : ranlee vas also given by o
bank on behalf of the Company, amounting to RsX millio (segura against 15% lien on
P/L accouni), in favour of Pakistan Railways. ’KQY \i' ’f:r*’ wod > =
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2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)
11 Property, plant and equipment 1L 4,695,557 4,934,690
{1.1 Property, plant and equipment
2022
Cost / Revalued amgunt Depreciation Book value
As at Asat Asat For the Asat Asat
1 July Additions / 30 June Rate I July year 30 June 30 Junc
2021 Adjustments 2022 2021 2022 2022

{Rupees in thousands)

Buildings on leaschald land  {(Nore 11.2)

- cost 1.475.578 - 1.475,578 5%-10% 262,073 $2.658 344,751 1,130,347
- surplus on revaliarion 58,349 - 58,849 5%-10% 10,463 2,969 13.432 45,417
1.534,427 - 1,534,427 272,536 85,627 358.163 1,176,264

Plant, machinery sad clectrical installation
- cost 4,320,337 84.838 4.405,175 5-20% 302517 222 118 1,024,435 3,380,740
- surplies on revatnation - 176,082 5-20% 32,545 9,098 41643 134,439
84.838 4,381,257 834.862 231,216 1.066.078 3,315,179
Furniture, fixtures and equipment - 7.264 10% 2,735 1,274 4,009 3,255
IT equipment - 1,108 30% 930 178 1,108 -
Heavy cquipment for coal handling: . 9,140 20% 5.598 3,542 2.140 -
Vchicles - 6.581 20% 3.588 3,334 3922 639
34,838 6,139,776 1,120,249 324,170 1,444,420 4,695,357

K
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Buildings on leaschold land
- cost
- surplus on revalnarion

Plant, machincry and clectrical Instablation
- cost
- surplus on revaluation

Furniwre, fixtures

1
. el —
I'T equipment /{ggjdtloﬁ O
W2 (be .'c:,\
Heavy oquipfiehit froal handling
A _

Vehicles

C3 C3 32 C3O o 3 3 3 3 o

2021
Cast ! Revalued amount Depreciation Book value
Asat Asat Asnt For the Asal Asal
1 July Additions 30 June R ¥ July year 30 June 30 June
2020 2021 ue 2020 2021 2021
{Rupees in thousands)

1,475,578 - 1,475,578 3%-10% 187,633 74,438 262,073 1.213,505
53,849 - 58,849 5%-10% 7,494 2,969 10,463 48,386
1,534,427 - 1,534.427 195,129 77.407 272,536 1,261,891
4,320.337 - 4,520,337 5-20% 583,831 218,486 802,317 3,518,020
176,082 - 176,082 5-20% 23,447 9,098 32,5435 143,537
4,496,419 - 4,496,419 607,278 227.584 834,862 3,661.557
7,264 - 7.264 10% 22352 503 2735 4.529
1.108 - 1,108 30% 833 77 930 178
9.140 - 9,140 20% 4713 885 5.398 3.542
6.581 - 6,581 20% 2859 749 3,588 2,993
6,054,939 - 6,034,939 815,044 307,205 1,120,249 4,934,690

The foreed sale vatuc of building on Iease Gold land is Rs 1.071.44 miflion and plont, machinery and cleciric installations is Rs. 3.11 1.3 1 million based on latest revaluation

report of 30 Junc 2020.

Depreeiation charge for the year has been allocated to cost ol sales. (@

&
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Long lerm loan to Tolding Company- unseeured, Cousidercd good

Note

Long lerm loun 27

2022

302t

{Rupees in thonsiuds)

2,000,400

1,000,000

2.000,000
E

1.000.000
———rea

12,5 This reprosents conversion of balance reccivible from Maple Leal Comem Frelory Linvited, the Holding Company, in licu of
elegtricity sold dusing the current and prior years o long tenn lean, On 30 June 2022, addendum 10 ngreement dated 01 June 2019
for conversion of outsinnding bnlance inte long term toan wns signed between the Compiny and the 1lolding Company, As per the
addendum, Rs 1,000 smillion which was payable fram 01 Sepiersber 2022 hos been cescheduled and further outstanding balance
of "Due from 13okling Company amounting io Rs. 1,000 million has been couvered into u Jong tenn foan The ol loun of Rs.
2,000 otillion is now receivable in cight equat quarterly iustalnents stastivg rowm 01 April 2024 including grice period of tweniy-
one months. Thig loan carrics tarkeup at 3 month Kibor plus 1% per annum, feccivable querterly. The effective rmie during 1w
year ranges from 8.13% 10 12.95% annunlly (2021: 8.23% 10 8.59%). The maximiim aggregdic umouat ollstanding ot nay month

end during the yeac was Rs. 2,000 million (2021 ; Rs. 3,000 million).

Stores nd spares includiing cond Note
Coal
Stores othier Than coat
Spares
Loose wools
13!

131 Spares incluge m-lransit srounting wo Rs. 2.6 .milliun (2021 Rs. 1 7 million) ot 1he yeor end,

Advances Aot

Considered good - nnsecired:
Advanees 1o supplicrs

Due from Molding Company - unsecured, cousidered gaod

Due from Holding Company agains snfe ol electricity and Sienm

Due fromw JIolding Company for sale of scrap

150 The moximum aggregate amount oulstanding at any month end during the year
million).

Margin and prepayments

Mg ngainst;
« bank gunrauees
Prepayments

Aceried mnck-up

Protit ort bunk deposits 8.}
Markup on long tenm leant 10 | lolding Company - baseguwed - i2.7

Cash nuts baak balonges
Cush in kand

Caste i bank:
Curment accounis
Deposit accounts 18.t

2022 202)

{Rupecs ju thansuids)
202,621 71875
49,909 36,882
218,076 199,378
Li1S 8§75
474,721 309010

2022 021

{Rupees in thousnnds)

11,082 10.64%
1£.082 lolﬁ-lf)
132,590 45,925
- 15.300
G1.225
Rs 137717
2021
us:als)
15,000
21
15021
3 75
32,286 217
32417 25492
(4]} 3
ki bl
22,360 9,041
23,668 11,002

18.1 Al balanees are plrged wnder magkup besed arrangemeny with convenlioned binks and casry retlum at 6,0% to 12.25% {2024,

4.0% Lo 6.0%] per smpm

Sales - et

Reveaue from clectricity
Revenug from stepen
l.2ss Sales 1ax

1022

2023

(Rupees ia thousands)

5,381,850 4,660,625
263,097 205917
(892,856) (720.190)

5,252,001 4236412 v
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2022 2021
Cost of sales Note (Rupeas in thousands)
Fuel 3,735,817 2,522,249
Depreciation on property, plant and equipiment 114 324,170 307,205
Salaries, wages and other benefits 90,475 87.626
Stores and spares consumed 65,124 08,291
Repairs and maintenance 29,677 15,968
Power and assoctated costs 9,187 10957
Insurance ' 10,348 14,472
Vehicle sunning and mainienance 13,046 10,779
Travelling and conveyance 645 59
Electricity duty 44,340 44006
Rent, rates nnd 1axes 461 406
QOther expenses 1,061 378
4,324,351 3,109,406
Administrative expenses
Entertalnment 112 382
Salaries, wages and other benefits 2,220 2,812
Legal and professional charges 211 2,678 1,886
Poslage, telephone and fax 190 100
Vehicle running and maintenance 212 239
Printing and stationery 323 251
Rent, rates and taxes 285 6
6,020 6,676

21.1 Legal and professional charges include following in respect of auditors' remuneration;

2022 2021
Nate (Rupees in thousnnds)

* Annual statutory andit : 750 750
Out of pockel expenses 75 75
Taxalion services 630 840

1,455 [,665 -

Otleer income

fucome {F Tnancial assels

Profit on bank deposits 1,371

Markup on long term loan to Holding Company 197,878

Income from non-financiaf asseis

Sale of scrap 33,155

Exchange gain- nei 3413

Miscellaneous income Nl * i2
== 33,148 235,829

22.1 This includes sale of scrap to the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 24.9 miltion (2021: Rs.
32.1 million).
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Otlhier charges

Workers' Profit Purticipation Fund
Workers' Welfure Fund
Ixchange loss - not

Finanee cost

Interess / markup on:
- Short wen borrowings
- Bouk ehasges

Tuxution

lncome 1ias
- CHrrens year

Peferred

I
o

Relntionship benween (he tax expense and
uceounling profit

Profit hefore taxalion

“Tax coleulaced at the rate of 29%
Tax effect of

- Lxempd mcome

« Impnet of pemmanen dilferenees
« lmguce af clumge in efiective tax mle

Related party Iransuetions and balances

w022 202)
Note (Rupees in theusands)
21 0,814 66,250
20325 .
17,078 -
887, 86230,
20,489 29,986
927 1165
e ldlf 31153
38,545 57,763
(9.430) 38,294
29,115 106 052
et T
945,035 §,258.758
274,089 365,040
(235,624) (286,300}
1,654 27,317
(18,00 .
29115 106.057 -

The Company is o wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leal Cement Factory Limited which is a subsidinry of Kehinoor Textile Mills Limited.

Accordingly 1l the subsidiarics aud associnied compantes of Kohineor “Textile Mills Limited are yelnted parties of the Company. (n pdklition,

ns follows:
Name of party Belativnship ‘Transoctions //r
]

Maple Leaf Cement 11olding Compimy Coat seceived from Eolding Company "\ Cé‘

Faxtory Limited (100% equity held) A
Coal previded to Halding Company \U &

e

Sale of ¢lectsicity {inclnsive of soles 1nx) ‘x‘;ﬁ#&l].{&Sﬂ
Dividend paid Tl
Advance ax deducted w/s 235 - 49,7201
Paymiext of loan by llelding Company - 2.000.000
Sale of sieam (inclusive of sales Lax) 263,097 295,977
Sale of serap (inchisive ol'sales tax) 20,47 37.510
Conversion, of dne fron Il;ﬂdlng Company to Jong
werm loan 1.006.000 -
Markiup reccived un long term lean (v Holding
Company 93,30( 237.57%
[tenl charged by Jkolding Compdny 435 360
'uyanents saade on the Company’s behalf 134,307 224,544
Pagoment made by i Company on behalfof 108,211 .

relaed pany

1olding Company has provided corporule guorantes L binks in relation tw borrowing focilities provided to the Company a3 diselosed in note
9.2 and 93 ‘Ihere was no lauisaction with directors und key managemenl personnel during the year, Further, ao remwneralion or olher benefit

wus paid 1o dire and key manng persounel during the year. @‘

¢
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26.0  Key munngement persounel are (hose porsans having autharity snd responsibitity for plaaning, directing and controlling llie
activities ol the entity. The Company considers 1!l members of lheit manngement team, including Chiel Exeemive Officer
und Direetors to be jis key management peesonted and thess sre diselosed below.

Name

Mr. Soyeed “Tuery Snigel

Mr. Tariq Sayecd Snigol

Mr. Taufique Seyeed Saigol
Mr. Waleed Tarig Saigol

Mr. Danial "Taudigie Snigol
M. Syed Mohsin Rezs Naqvi
Mr, Aril [juz

Me. Sahail Sadiq

Mr. T'ariq Ahmed Mir

Relationship

27 Reconciliation of movement of linbifities re cash Mows arising from financing activities

As al 30 Juyse 2021
Changes fron: fiancing casis flews

Short ienn borrowiugs paid - net

Total clisnges from fnancing cash fows

Orirgr chonges

Running finence paid
Totual Jiability relateil ather chahges

Asat 30 ,lun 2022

As ar .30 June 2020
Clignees fiam fugncing caslt flows

Short term bocrawings paid- net

l.ong tenn lonn paid

Dividend paid

‘l'otal changes fram financing cash flows

Othrer clanges

Runing lnnce paid

Markup expense

Dividend declared

Tota? liabitiyy relnted other changes

As a1 30 Juac 2021

% of shareholding In the Campany

Ditector / Key managument personne) 0.0000002%
Dircclor / Key management personncl 0.0000002%
Darcetor / Key management personng) £.0000002%
Director / Key management personncl 0.0000002%
Director / Key manngement personncl 0.0000002%
Dircector / Key management persorncl 0.0000002%
Director / Key manugenent personnc 0.00050002%
Key manngemnent personsicl NIA
Key monngement personnel NIA
2022
Issued,
subserfbed Short term e
Tatnl
nag paid-up horrowlngs
capital
--------- (Rupess in thousand) - - === coou -
5,020,000 30,000 5,050,000
- {30,000) (3¢,800)
- (30,000) (30,000)
5020500 - 34020.000
2021
Issued, . e .
subseribed and Shori Ix:rul Dividend Long 1erm “Total
. - borrowing Payible loan
puid-up cepital
--------------------- (Rupees inthousund) « - covacccccercvscrocnee
3.020.40¢0 531513 - 32,956 5.584.469
- (331513 (33L513)
- . (32,956}
- . 13,315,000y
. (331,513} (3.878.469)
. (170,000} {170.000)
. 3,514,000
. (170,0001 3344000
5.020.000 30,000 - - 5,050,000
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Financial risk management
The Company has exposure 1o the following risks arising from financial instrumenis:

- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

This note presents infonmation aboul 1lre Company’s exposine to each of Lhe above risks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of
capital.

Risk inanugenrent framewark

The Company’s Baard of Directors (“the Board") has overall responsibility for eswblishment and oversight
of the Company's risk management framework. The Board has developed a risk policy hat sels out
furklamentals of risk management framework.

The Cowmpany's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by lhe
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence o limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly o reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activitics, The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
develop a diseiplined and constructive contro) environment in which all employees understand their roles
and obligations.

performance, and forecast transactions of the Company and the man
as (ollaws:

28.1 Crodit risle

instrument fails to mest lts contraciual obligations. To manage credlbﬂs ompany naimains
procedures covering the application for credit approvals, granting and renewal of caunterparty
limits and monitoring of exposures against these limils. As parl of these processes the financial
viability of all counterpariies is regularly monitored and assessed.

28.1.1  Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credil exposure. The maximum
exposure o credit risk as at the end of the reporting period was as follaws:

2022 2021
Note (Rupees in thousands)

Tinanclul assets af tinortized cost

Accrued mark-up i7 32417 21492
Due from the Holding Company 13 132,596 61,223
Bank balances 18 23,067 10,461
Long term loan to Helding Company i2 2,000,000 1,000,000
Margin against bank puarantee i6 15,000 15,000

2,203,080 1,108,178
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18.1.2

28.1.3

Coneentration of credit rislk

The Compiy identilies concentration of eredit risk by reference to 1ype of caunler pasty. Maxinun exposues lo
eredit risk by tepe of counterparty is ng follows:

2022 2021
(Rupees i thousands)
Flolding Company 2,164,882 1,082,612
Bunking companics 38,198 25.530

2,203,080 1,108,178

Credit guality and impairment

Credit quality of Jinancinl asscts is assussed by reference 10 externot credit rtings, where availuble. or lo
Isstorical inform:ion ubom counterparly defavll rates. Al coumterpactics, including Halding Company. bive
external credit Tatings delermined by various credil ruting agencies. Credit quality of customers is assessed by
riference to historicn] defiukts rates and present ages.

Counterpartics with external eredit ralings

‘These ineludo banking companics and Fnuneial ingtitutions, which ure counlerparties to bank balances, murgin
against bank guarsniees and acerwed returm op deposits, Credit risk is considered minimal as these counterpanties
have reasonably high eredit rutings us detesmined by wvarious credit roling agencies. Due 1o Tong stnding
business relstionships with these counterparlies and considering their sireng finoucial standing, manigement
daes not expect non-pecformance by these counterpartivs on liwir obligations to the Company. Following ure the
credit ratings of counterpactics with exiernl eredi rutings:

Rating Rating 2022 2024
Shorl term Long term apency {(Rupees in thousands)
Askari Bank Eintited Al AAE PACRA 1,299 421
Bank of Punjab Al+ AA* PACRA 2,637 104
MCR Bank Limiux] Al+ AAA PACRA 1,126 1,554
MCB Islamic Bunk Limited Al A BACRA 7,104 777
Nutional Bank of Pakistan Limiled Al+ AAA PACRA 11,032 7.305
23,198 10,461
Margin against hank guarantee
Asknei Bank Litnited Al AN+ PACRA 15,060 13,00
Margin against Letter of Credits
MICB Istamic Bank Limited Al A PACRA - -
38,198 25461
Holding Company
Muple Leal Cement Faclory Limiled Al A VIS 2,164,882 1,082,612

28.2

Linuidity risk

Liquidity risk i3 the risk hat the Company will encountes ditficulty in meeting the abligations associned with its
financiad labilities thit sre seuled By delivering cash or another Minanciv) sssct, or that such obligations will have
to be sculed Ja a manner unfavorable to the Company. The Campany Linances ils eperations through equily and
working capital with a view to mainlaining an appropriale mix between various sources of finaace 1o ivininnze
risk.

long-term funding ano quuldlly nnuug
adequatc reseeves, bunking fncilities
aciual casly flows und nwiching the m
linancial siateineats are Ficililics et e

1 linbilitics. Included in nate 9 ni (llL'iL
f’ riher reduce Yiquidity risk.
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28.3.4u}

Exposure to liquidity risk
Contractiual mturities of fnanciut Kabitities, Including estimuted ieerest payirents

The following are the remaining controciual mstucitios s the reporting <me. The amounts are grossed ond
undiscounted, ond include estimated imerest payments and exclude the impact of nelting ugreements.

2022
Carrying Conteaictunl  One yearor  One to three
xmount ensh Mows less yenrs
Non-derivative finunglal fiubifities  ~  c-avces +eeneeean(Rupeesin thousands) s=emvovanan-
Trade and other payables 63,938 63,938 63,938 -
63,938 63,938 63,938 .
2021
Carrying Conteactunl Oncyearor  Onetathree
ameunt cash flows less years
Non-derivative financin! liabilities R L e {Rutpees in Hiousands) - - - - -« - - veves
Trade und othier poayables © 32,09 32.096 32,096 -
Shon term borrowings 30,000 30,000 30,000 -
Accrucd murk-up 624 624 624 -
62,720 62,720 62,720 -

Market risk

Mawkot risk is the risk fmay changes in market prices, such as foreign exchunge rotes. interest rates and equity
prices will affeet the Company’s income or the value ol its holdings of financial fnstruments. The objective of
market risk management is to mannge and conwrol inarkel tisk exposures within nccoptable paramuicrs, white
oplitnizing retum.

Currency risk

“The Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent tluat there is & mismuich betveen the currencics in which
advances, seles and purchases and bank bilances nre denomning nective functional currency ol the

Exposure to currency risk

The summarized quintitative duta about the Compan
of the Company is as follows. The figures represent
using exchange rates prevailing at the siatement ot fint

RMB Rupees
Flnanelal Hagilitios ' crernw ve=(Anount in Mousandshececes
‘Trade and other paynbles (24 {16) (5,464)
Net statement of financlel position exposure 24 {16} (5.464)
Qff sturewei of finenciul position ftoms
Outstanding letiers of credit (59} - {12,171}
Net exposure {83) {16) {17,635}

2
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28.3.110)

831t

28.3. 1d)

28.3.2

2021
usn RMB Rupces
-------- {Amoum in thousands) - - - - - = -«
Enancinl Habifities
Trade and other {6) (28) {1.704)
Net statemern of finuncial position exposure [{a] (28) (1.704)
Off siatenient of finuncial jrioy fte,
Quistanding leiters of credit {200} - {31,508}
Net expusure (206) 28) (33.212)
Exchauge rates appiied during the yenr
The [ollowing significant excliange yotes have been applied during the year;
2022 2022 2021 2621
UsD RMB UsD RiMB3
Reporting dnte spol rate
- selling 205.50 30.85 152,54 24.39
Averuge rate [or the year 178.01 27.57 16¢.30 24.20

Seasithvity analysls

A rensonnbly possible sirengthening 7 (weukening) ol 10% in ak Rupee againsi the following curreneies wonld
hive sileeted the mensurement of financiab instruments denominnted in foreign currency and affected stalcmen)
of prafit or lass by the amounts shown below al the statement of financial positien date. The analysis assumes
hat all other variables, in panticular interest mies. remain constant and ignores any impact of forccast purchuscs.

Deerease in profil due o
inerease in exchange rafe nt
the yearend
2022 202)
(Rupees in thousands)

uso (193) (93)
RMB (€L (68)

These will have apposile effect on profil on reduction in exchange raie of the yeur end,

Curreicy risk managenent

Since thx maximuem anount exposed 1a currency rvisk is 0.07% (2021: 0.03%) ol he Company's total asscts, myy
adverse / favorpble movement in fanctional eurrency with respect 10 US Dollar and RMB will not hove my
malerinl impact on the operstional resulis,

-
=N
Indevest rate risk ///
4

lrerest rate risk is the risk 1ha Fair vadues or future e

changes in interesl sales. Sensitivily to interest vale it *’

liabilities that mature of re-price in u given period. g
A\

AWl Nuclunie beeouse of
| ussels end finoncinl
&
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28.3.2(n)

28.3.2(b)

28.3.2(c)

28.3.3

Fixed rate financlal instrnnents

The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing financial insiruments are wentioned in
relevant nates to thie linancial statements.

Fuir valpe senshivitp analpsis for fived rote inspraments

‘I Company does nol account for iy fixed cue (innneial assels and liabilities at fnir value through staement
ol profil or lass. Therefore, a change in murk-up 7 interest rales at the reporting date would not affeet stalemeant
of profit or loss.

Variuble cate fingueiu] Listrinrents

2022 2021
Financial Financial Firaneial Finunetal
assely linbilitics 1SS0S linbilitics
(Rupees in thousnnd) {Rupecs in thousand}
Noy-derivative fnopelal instranrenis
Long term Jans 1o Holding Commpony 2,600,000 - 1.000.000 -
Shbort tenn borrowings . - - 36,000
Bunk bolonce 22,360 - 9.0:1 -
2,022,360 - 1,009,94( 30,000

Cush flow sensitivite analvsls for veriable rare Insiruments

A reasonnbly possible change ol 100 busis poimts in interest rates a1 the reponing date would have (decrensed) /
increased profil by dmoums shown below. The analysis nssumes that afl other variables, in particular foreign
exchange rates, remain canstonl.

022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)

Dcreasy of 100 basis points

Variable rate instruments

9.7992

Decrvase aff 1) basis polnts
Variable ric instouments

The yensitivity anabysis prepared is non necessun
outstonding liabilities ol the Compuny m the yenr en

Tregerase rate visk janugenent

The Company manages these mismatches tirough risk management strategies where signilicent changes in gop
position con be adjusicd. The Company's significant borrowings are based on variable vaie pricing that is mosth
dependent on Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rate ("KIBOR") s indicnied in respective noles.

{'rice risk

Price risk represcnts 1he risk that the fair value or future cush Aows of finnncial instrument will flucivate beeause
of changes in market prices, other than Uwese arising Irom interest rote risk or currency risk. whether those
chunpes are caused by factors specilic 10 the individual financint instrument or i1s issper, or faciors aflecting all
similar financial instruments. The Company is currenily nos expased 10 price risk.
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Finacci! instruments-fniv values
Fair valuc is (hc price that would be received 10 sell m asset o paid w mnsfer i Wability i an orderly waasection bewvceu marked participants st the metsurement dte.

Underlying the definition of fair vaie is the presumpiton that the Company is a going concern and there 1s no imention or requircment 4 enttail materially the seale of its operations or 1o undenake it transaction
an adverse terms.

A financinl instrument is regarded as quoted @ an active market if quoted prices are readily end regulacly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or repulatory agency. and
thase prices kpresent actual and regularly oceurring market trnsactions oi an amn's length basis.

IFRS 13 *Fair Value Mecasurement’ requires the Company (o classily fivis value measurements and faic vidue hicearehy that reflects #he significance of the inputs used in nuking the mcasurements af Gir value
hicrarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markels lor identicad assets or liabilitics (Level 1)
- inpuis other than quoled prices included within levet | shal are abservable for the asset either directly (ihat is, desived from prices) {Level 2)
- Inputs for the asscl or liability that arc not based on observable market data (thes is. unadjusted) inputs (Level 33

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierrchy are recognized at the end of the reporiing period doring which the changes buve cccurred.

Carrying Amount Falr Value
Financizt) Ouier financial Totab T Level 1 Level2 Level 3
assets it linbilitics at

wmoriized cost  amovtised cost

Note (Rutpees in thousands)
32417 - 32,417 - - .
23,668 - 23,668 - - -
132,596 - 132,596 - - -
3,000,000 - 2,000,600 - - -
13,000 - 15,000 - - -
29.1 2,203,681 - 2,203,681 - - -
Fimancial lubilities measured at Libr vaine - - - - - -

Finnnciul liubitities wot measurcd at fulr value
“Teade aud ather payables - 63,938 63.938 - - -

4 . 63938 53938 P - - @
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On-statement of fisancial position finencial insiremenus
30 0
Finnncial assels neastred at fair vatue

Funancial agsets 110t sepsired af fair value

Accrued merk-up

Cash and bank batunces

Due ram the Holding Coimpany
{.ong 1enm loan to Holding Company
Margin against bank guarantee

Financial liabilitics measured al lair value
Fuancial fiahifigies ssor mgasimed at fair valiue

Trade and olher payables
Short tern borrowing.
Accrued inark-up

Carrying Amaunl Fair Value
Financiad assel  Other Anancin! Tolal foved § Lewel 2 Level 3
at amortiscd linbilities ag
cost smortised cosl
(Rupees in thousands)

21,492 . 2£,492 . - -
11,602 . 11,002 - . .
G1.225 - 61,225 - - .

1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15,000 - 15,000 - - .
2%.1 1,108.719 - 1,108,719 - - -
- 32,096 32,090 - - -
- 30.000 30.000 - - B

- . b4 624
29.¢ - 652,720 62.720 - - -

391 “flie Company hes not disclosed e Bir values of these fimncial nssets and Mixbitities as thesc are for short term or reprise oves short Lenn. Therefore, their carrying dntouuls ans rensonable

npgroxinution of fir vilue.
9.2 Buildings on feaschold land, plant, aachinery nind electrical instulla

the Compmy’s propedics. For revakeation of buildings
construction specifications for curnent replaccment valu
plant aud machinery and electrical installations, supplichs:s
poser plaot 1o deteomine cumrent replacement value. ,g'j} dept
unobscrvable inputs used in the villugtions ¢itnnot be d ejﬂ?uinc’"a;l

ave been cacried at revilucd amotints determined by professional valuers (level 3 messurenent) based on their assessmem of

jon expest appointed by thie Company. The valuation expent used a markel based approath to arve a1 the fair vatuc of
speciftcations were noted for each building and structive and new coustruction rates are applicd according to

iy grerbadacement values, depreciation was caleulated (o determine tiie current nssessed masket value. Far revaluation of

:13@@5 sultants in Pakistan and ubroad were contacted 1o colect inforation segarding current prices of compamable
emy is applicd according to ticir physical condition, wsage and mainteaance. The cffect of changes in iv
a qualitalive disclosvre of sensitivity las not been presentedl i these nancial statenenls,

@)‘ls.
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Capiial managemeni

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, credilor and
market confidence and to sustain the future development of its business, The Bosrd of Directors
monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating Income divided by
1otal capital employed.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

- to safeguard (he entity's ability to continue as a going concern. so that it can continue to
provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
eharacteristics of the untlerlying assets.

Fhere were no changes in the Company's approach lo capital managenment during the year.
Impact of COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)

The pandemic of COVED-19 that has rapidiy spread all across the world has not anly endangered
hurman llves but has also adversely impacied the global economy. However, afier implementing all the
necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to ensure safely of employees, the Cempany
continved to carry oul ils operations and has taken all necessary steps to ensure smoath and adequate
continuation of its business. Management is actively monitoring the impact of the pandemic on its
financial condilion, liquidity, operations and workforee, which at this point is not considered to be
significant. Management believes thai the Company has sufficient liquidity avzilable to continue 10
meet its financial commitments for the [oreseeable future when they become dite, From the very owisel
of Covid-19, the management has adopted various policies and practices to minimize adverse impact of
Covid-19 on the business and is continuously monitoring the sifuation in order to pronctively address
any challenges which may arise from Covid-19.

Remunreration of ¢hicl exceative, directors and exccutives

The aparegate amount charged in the financial s1atements for the year in respect of remuncration,
including all benefits 1o the Chief Exeeutive, Directors and Executives ol the Company is as follows:

2022
Directors
Chicf Executive Non-Executive
eseenrer————e-u (Rutpees in thousamdls) ~m-ssevesvsereess

Executives

Managerial remuneration - - 15,828
Perquisites and other benefits - - 8,788

- - 24,616
MNumber of persons as at y 1 6 8

&



2021
Directors Exccutives
Chief Executive  Non-Executive
enmmveeneerem-—aas (RUpees i thousands) —es-em—mceeeeneeee
Managerial remuncration - - 13.976
Perquisites and other benofits - - 7,866
- - 21,842
Number of persons as at year end t 6 [
No remuneration is paid to chicf exccutive and directors of the Company.
33 Capacity and production
Capncity Actual Production
2022 202] 2022 2021
Mit MW
Coa! lired power plant 316,800 316,800 265,494 302,017

The normal capacity has becn detennined on the basis of 330 production days keeping in view the
maintenance schedule of the plant. Lower production of power plant is due to the lower number ol

production lays.
34 Number of employees

The total average aumber of employees during the year and

Number of employees as at 30 June
Average number of employces during the year

35 Dale of authovization of issue

These financial stalements were awthorized for issue on 3 /—e g “’Z‘?z’zﬂby the Board of
Directors of the Companyr.\(%

A

A ——\

d Chlef ﬁxgcutive.

— —— - R —
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‘\. Form A

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
. s [Section 130(1) and Regulation 4}
- ANNUAL RETURN OF COMPANY HAVING SHARE CAPITAL

PARTA

{Piease complete in typescript or In bold biock capitals)

1.1 CUIN { Regislration Number} 0095705

1.2 Name af the Company !MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

1.3.1 Challan No E-2022-1264155 1.3.2. Amounl
1.3 Fee payment details
40 mm o yyyy

1.4 Form A made upto 28102022
1.5 Date of AGM 28/10/2022

PART -1l

ﬁ

Section A

42-LAWRENCE ROAD LAHORE PUNJAB
2.1 Registered Cffice Address

2.2 Email Address [MUHAMMAD.ASHRAFQKMLG.CDM

2.3 Office Tel. No. 042-36278504
. 2.4 Office Fax No. 042.36368721 T

2.5 Principle line of busingss l--POWER GENERATION - ALLIED {OTHER)

2.6 Mobile No, of Autorized officar 03217775170
(Chiet Executives Direclor/ |
Company Secretaryf i
Chief Financial Officer) [

2.7 Authorized Share Capital

Classes and kinds of Shares No. of Shares Amount Face Value

Oitinary Shares L Hs.ooo.ouo.ouo.oo ” l

l | | |
l I l l

Classes and kinds of Shares No. of Sheres Amount Faca Valua

2.8 Paid up Share Capital

Ordinary Snares l "5 020.000.000.00 ” l

[ | 1l |
I I | l

2.9 Particulars of the holding fsubsidiary company, it any

Name of Company Holkding/Subsidiary % Shares Held

. lMaule Leaf Cernent Factory Limited —|DDO11D7 | [B —I
/ e —

2.10 Chief Exwcutive

Name ESIYMG Tariq Saigol I
i
Address 12-Main Guiberg, Lahors l

NiC No 3520205509441 I




2.11 Chief Financial Officer

Name

Address

NIC No

2.12 Secretary

Name

Address

NIC No

2.3 Legal Advisor

Name

Address

NIC No

2.14 Particulars of Auditars

Name

Address

[Syed Mohsin Raza Nagvi

l

l;l No. 208-B, Street No. 5, Cavalry Ground, Lehore Cantt.

'3520251555307

Muhammad Ashraf

I

House No. 689-8 Mohallah Faisal Town Lahore

3520115150523

|

Mr. Najam U] Hassan

K, K and K Plsza, 2-Mozang Road, Lahere

IW&. A. F. Ferguson and Co., Chartered Acce

|23-C. Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank. Gulberg V. Lahore

2.18 Particulars of Shares Reglstrar (if applicable)

Namea*

Addrass . -

Email

Section-B

l

[

c

2.46 L1st of Diractors on the date Annual return Is made

S# |Namae of Director Residential Address Nationality NIC (Passport No. sf | Dale of appointment | Name of Member/Creditors
igner) lectl nominating/appointing
IT EMIan Tatiq Sayeed Saigol | 12-Main Gulberg, Lehote Lahore Punjab IPaklstan [35200529310(35 | [15110:2022 "]
i Pakistan

[z ][Mian Danial Taufique Saig:] House No. 1. Kohinoor Colony, {Pakistan [praos74s13430 | anurznzz | |
& Road, indi Rawalplndt
Punjab Pakistan

[3 IMinn Taufique Sayeed Sais|| jHouse No, 1, Kohinoor Colony, [Pakistan |?740504365417 || 15102022 [ E
ech Ruad, Rawalpindi Rawalpindi
Punjab Pakistan

[+ Aoz J Haouse # 113.X, Phase-3, D.H.A., Lahore [Pnklsmn 3520148402137 | [151arz022 [ ;
iICantt Lahore Punjab Pakistan

[5 [Syec Monsin Raza Nagvi | House No. 208.B, Street No. 5. Cavalary |Plkislan |aszuzs1555307 ] |15110I2022 ( !
[Ground, Lahore Lahare Punjab Pakistan .

fe |Sayee=| Tariq Saigol | 12.-Main Gulbarg, Lahore Lahore Punjab ||[Pakistan |3520205509441 | |1s¢1o:2022 {
Pakistan

]7 -IWnlund Tariq Saigol J 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore. Lahore Punjab [Pakimn |Tszozes4w5&7 | |15{10rzozz I :




» -

s 2.17 List of members & debenture hoiders on the date upto which this Form is made
- IS# {Folioﬂ }Name‘ lAddress htionalily No of shares “Percemane NIC No{Passport if foreigner) ]
iMambcrs I

Mian Tang Sayeed Saigol 12-Main Gulberg Lahore Pakistan 1 3520052931085
Mr. Sayeed Tarig Saigol 12-Main Gulberg Lahore Pakistan 1 3520205608441

E Kian Taufique Sayeed Saigol H. No. 1. Kohinoor Colony Peshawar Road R|Pakistan 1 3740504368417
Mr. waleed Tarig Saigol 12-Main Gulberg Lahore Pakistan 1 3520285460587
Mr. Danial Taufique Saiglal H. No. 1. Kohinoor Colony Peshawar Road F||Pakistan 1 3740574813439

ESyed Mohsin Raza Nagvi H No. 208-8. SiL. No. 5, Cavalary Ground La||Pakistan 1 3520251555307
Mr. Arif |jaz H. No. $113-X, DHA, Lahore Cantt. Pakistan 1 3520145402137
Maple Leat Cement Factory Limited | 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore Pakistan | 501999993] |

‘Debenture Holders

ol

* In case the member or debenture holder 1s holding shares or debentures on bahaif of other personis), the name of such other person{s) shall be mentior

the name of the memkber or debenture holder
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2.18 Transfer of shares (debentures} since last Form A was made

; s
l S#  |Name of Transferor Name of Transferee No of Shares Transfarred Date of Registration
| of transfer

\Mem bers
Lo L L I
J;Jebenture Holders )

1 [ IE I

PART-3

3.1 Declaration:
| do hereby solemnly, and sincerely daclare that tha information provided in the form is:
(i) true and correct to the best of my knowledge, in consonance with the record as maintained by the Company and nothing has been concealed; and

(i) hereby reported after complying with and fulfilling all requitements under the relevant provisions of law, rules, reguiations, directives, circulars and
notifications whichever is applicable.

3.2 Name of pammad Ashraf Secratary

i |
ﬁEleclron lly signed by Muhammad Ashraf

3.3 Signatuggs

3.4 Registr
Day Manth Year

0
FFICE, LAHORE 22112022

3.5 Date

“Thiz Cortified Trne Co
Py is not valid for
ucuntthopenhg. The Banks may vertly eo'::f::;’:r't::.r:
rongh bank portal lannched by the SECP

et e
e S ey

/eegistra;
Lahore 05

2 e,
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42-Lawrence Road,

Maple Leaf Power Limited Latore, (Pakstan)

Tel: 0092-42-36278904-05
Fax: 0092-42-36368721

June 09, 2023

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

This is to certify that the Present Authorized Share Capital of Maple Leaf Power Limited,
is Rs. 6,000,000,000 (Rupees Six billion only) divided into 600,000,000 (Six hundred
million only) Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees ten only) each with issued, subscribed and paid up
share capital of Rs.5,020,000,000/- divided into 502,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs.10/-
each as on June 09, 2023.

Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,
For Maple Leaf Ppwer Limited,

(Muhammad/Ashraf)
Company Secretary




Maple Leaf Power Limited

42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)

Tel: 0092-42-36278904-05
Fax: 0092-42-36368721

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Form 34

THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018

[Section 227(2)(f)]

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

PART-I

(Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals.)

1.1 Name of the Company I Maple Leaf Power Limited ]
PART-II
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at I 30 ] - | OJ 6| - l 2102 | 2 |
2.2 No of
shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held
[ 7 | [ shareholding from 1 to 100 shares [ 7 ]
t - | | shareholding from 101 to 500 shares 1 1 - !
[ - | [ shareholding from 501 to 1000 shares ] - i
[ - | | shareholding from 1001 to 5000 1] - |
| - | [ shareholding from 5001 to 10000 || - |
[ i | [ shareholding from 501,995,000 to 502,000,000 | | 501,999,993 |
(Add appropriate slabs of shareholdings)
| 08 ] Total: | | 502,000,000 |
Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not been shown.
2.3. Categories of
Shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Mr. Tariq Sayced Saigol 1 0.0000002
Officer, and their spouse and Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol 1 0.0000002
minor children. Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol 1 0.0000002
Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol 1 0.0000002
Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi 1 0 0000002
Mr. Arif ljaz 1 0.0000002
Sub Total : 7 0.0000014
2.3.2 Associated Companies, Maple Leal’ Cement 501,999,993 99,9999986
undertakings and related parties. Factory Limited
2.3.3 NIT and ICP | - | | -
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial - -
Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies L - 1 ] - ]
2.3,6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds. [ - ] | - |
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% L Refer 2.3.2 1] - ]
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local - -
b. Foreign - -
2.3.9 Others (to be specified) [ - |

Grand Total :




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited ™3¢

Cash Reserve For Project

Maple leaf Power Limited does not have any specific cash reserve for the solar power
plant. The same is verifiable from the audited financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

AR

JalahIwriq Shah B ST ol
Manager Finance \ \"* i




.. ACI Services Email: aciservices.pak@gmail.com

SECP Services, Stock Inspection, Corporate & Tax Consultants,
Private & Partnership Company Registration

Search Report
From The Company’s Records at Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, Lahore
File No: Printed Date: 10-11-2022
Company Name: M/S. MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED.
Registered Office: 42-Lawrence Road, Lahore.
Telephone # 042-36278904
Fax # 042-36368721
Nature of Business: —-Power Generation-Allied (Other)
Email: Muhammad.Ashraf@Kmlg Com
Date of Incorporation Registration Number Date of Latest Form-A Date of Latest Form-29
15-10-2015 0095705 27-09-2021 7 13-01-2022

Sayeed Tariq Saigol 35202—0560944-1 15-10- 2019 1 | 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
Arif az 35201-4540213-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | HNo. 113-X, Phase 3, DHA, Lahore.
Mian Danial Taufique Saigol | 37405-7481343-9 [ 15-10-2019 1 | HNo. 1, Kohinoor Colony, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi
Mian Tariq Sayeed Saigol 35202-5293106-5 | 15-10-2019 1 { 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
Mian Taufique Sayeed Saigol | 37405-0436841-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | HNo. 1, Kohinoor Colony, Peshawar Road, Rawalpindi
Syed Mohsin Raza 35202-5155530-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | H No. 208-B, Street No. 5, Cavalry Ground, Lahore Cantt
aleed Tariq Saigol 35202 8546058-7 | 15-10-2019 1 | 12-Main Gulberg, Lahore.
A LI NAL A ULA OIS i 1 £ -Lz,u,, oA : SR E R e ;
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd 501,999,993
Total | 502,000,000
S. #Contents of Report: Pages #
1. Summary of Charges Date Wise/Bank Wise 02
2, Details of Existing Charges 03
3. Details of Satisfied Charges 05

. Search conducted on charges from: 15-10-2015 to 10-11-2022

ACI SERVICES cannot be held responsible for any inaccuracy, lapses or typographical mistakes at SECP.
The public record items reported may have been paid, terminated, vacated or released prior to today’s date.
For & Behalf of

M/s. ACI Services

Authorized Signatory

Suit # 38, 2nd Floor, Big City Plaza Liberty Round About, Main Boulevard Gulberg I, Lahore.

Ph: 0333-4143005



- All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned ACT
For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab. Services

Summary of Charges
M/S. MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

i MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 26-07-18 267,000,000 0 0
2 MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 27-07-18 e 0 0
1-A | MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 28-01-19 [t TOIRO0% M 0 0
3 National Bank of Pakistan 28-02-19 0 0
4 JOINT BANKS 25-10-19 1,535,000,000 0

NBP, MCB Islamic
5 JOINT BANKS 25-06-21

BOP, MCB, NBP,

MCB Islamic
4-A | JOINT BANKS 12-10-22

NBP, MCB Islamic

MCB, BOP

Bank
MCB
'z :

Tslamic Bank Ltd 260718

1 0 0
2 MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 27-07-18 0 0
1-A | MCB Islamic Bank Ltd 28-01-19 0 0

National Bank of Pakistan
(3 National Bank of Pakistan |  28-02-19
Joint Banks
4 JOINT BANKS 25-10-19
NBP, MCB Islamic
5 JOINT BANKS 25-06-21
BOP, MCB, NBP,
MCB Islamic
4-A | JOINT BANKS 12-10-22
NBP, MCB Islamic
MCB, BOP

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited. Page2 of 5



All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned
For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

MCB Islamic Bank

it

M/S. MA

19 1N¢
Hypothecation

267,000,000

PLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

All e and future curent assets of the |

"26-07-2018]

Form-17

comprising of all present and future stocks
work in process stocks in trade and all such
aforesaid goods in the course of transit
including goods referred by and released under
trust receipts and all future goods/stocks that
may be brought into the above place of
storage/godowns.

Al present and futurew book debts and

receivables accounts, outstaings, moneys,
receivables, claims, bills, contracts,
engagements, securities, investments,

accessorics, cash and right etc including all
documents related thereto, together with the
benefits of all rights and contracts entered into
by the customer in this regard.

Ltd Agreement for company including but not Itd to stocks, other File Dated
T-59, Phase-II, Current Assets, raw materials, finished goods, work in process, 10-10-19
DHA, Lahore. 06-07-18 stores and spares, deposits, investments, book But Not
debts/account receivables, cash and bank Registered
balances, stock in transit, goods in transit and
any other movables etc.

2 MCB Islamic Bank | Hypothecation 134,000,000 All present and future current assets of the | 27-07-2018| Form-17
Ltd Agreement for company including but not ltd to stocks, other File Dated
T-59, Phase-1I, Current Assets. raw materials, finished goods, work in process, 10-10-19
DHA, Lahore. 06-07-18 stores and spares, deposits, investments, book But Not

debts/account receivables, cash and bank Registered
balances, stock in transit, goods in transit and
any other movables etc.

1-A | MCB Islamic Bank 1St Supp 467,000,000 Charge enhanced from 267,000,000/~ to | 28-01-2019] Modi of Sr.
Ltd Hypothecation 467,000,000/- No. 1
T-59, Phase-1l, Agreement for Form-17
DHA, Lahore. Current Assets. File Dated

17-01-19 10-10-19
But Not
Registered

3 National Bank of Letter of 667,000,000 Ranking charge over all present and future | 28-02-2019
Pakistan Hypothecation current assets of the company incluidng but not
105-B-1I, for Current Itd to goods, goods in bond, goods in transit,

M.M Alam Road, Assets godowns, stock stocks in trade, raw material,
Gulberg, Lahore Letter of finished/semi finished goods work in process
Hypothecation etc
for Movable All present and future movable fixed assets of
Fixed Assets the company including but not ltd to plant,
21-02-19 machinery, vehicles, equipment, computers,
fixtures, fittings etc lying/stored/placed
anywhere in Pakistan whether in transit or not
belonging to the company

4 National Bank of Joint Pari Passu | 934,000,000 All present and future current assets of the | 25-10-2019
Pakistan Letter of 601,000,000 company including but not Itd to goods, goods
105-B-11, Hypothecation 1,535.000.000 in bond, good in transit, stock, stocks in trade,

M. M Alam Road, for Cucrent raw material, finished/semi finished goods,
Gulberg, Lahore Assets work in process, stores and spares, instruments,
MCB Islamic Bank 10-10-19 equipments, now or hereafier stored or located
Lid or lying at company’s premises/godowns or
T-59, Phase-1l, placed wheresoever or in transit or any other
DHA, Lahore. place of storage/godowns in  Pakistan

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited,
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All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned
For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

5 The Bank of Punjab | Joint Pari Passu | 666,667,000 All present and future movable fixed assets of
MCB Bank Ltd Letter of 666,670,000 the customer including but not to plant,
National Bank of Hypothecation 934,000,000 machinery, vehicles, equipment, computers,
Pakistan Movable Fixed fitting fixtures etc of whatsoever nature
MCB Islamic Bank Assets 601,000,000 installed or to be installed at coil fired power
Lid 22-06-21 plant (cfpp) 40 mw constructed on the m/s.
2.868.337,000 maple leaf cement co. Itd iskandarabad, district
mianwali along with assets located anywhere in
Pakistan.
4-A | Naticnal Bank of 15 934,000,000 Amount of charge increased from | 12-10-2022| Modi of Sr.
Pakistan Supplemental 1,535,000,000 to 2,868,334,000 No. 4
MCB Islamic Bank | Joint Pari Passu | 601,000,000
Ltd Letter of
MCB Bank Ltd Hypothecation 666,667,000
The Bank of Punjab | for Current 666,667,000
Assets
10-10-22 2,868.334.000

M/s, Maple Leaf Power Limited.
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All terms in Pak Rupees else Mentioned
For Exclusive use of The Bank of Punjab.

ACT
Services

i S
M/S. MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED
T ‘ i_,:j
et ol ARSI T
The Bank of Deed of Floating | 2,000,000,000 | All present and future movable fixed assets of the Satisfied on
Punjab Charge. company including but not Itd to plant machinery 16-10-17
Bop Tower, 10-B, | 09-02-16 fixtures and fittings etc.
Block E-II,
Main Boulevard,
Gulberg-IIl,
Lahore.
MCB Islamic Bank | Hypothecation 601,000,000 | All the company’s present and future fixed assets 26-10-20 | Satisfied on
Ltd Agreement for including but not Itd to plant, machinery, 22-06-21
59-T, Phase-II, Plant And equipment, fixtures both imported or local, tools
DHA, Lahere. Machinery. and equipments both electrical and mechanical
14-10-20 with alf kind of standard accessories and essential
parts fittings, fixtures installations power
generation sets etc erected or to be erected
installed or to be installed stored or located or
lying at factory, godowns, office premises of the
company sitvated at anywhere in Pakistan or in
transit or in interest
National Bank of Letter of 267,000,000 | Ranking charge over all present and future current 28-02-19 | Satisfied on
Pakistan Hypothecation assets of the company including but not itd to 22-06-21
105-B-11, for Current goods, goods in bond, goods in transit, godowns,
M. M Alam Road, | Assets stock stocks in trade, raw material, finished/semi
Gulberg, Lahore Letter of finished goods work in process etc
Hypothecation All present and future movable fixed assets of the
for Movable company including but not Itd to plant,
Fixed Assets machinery, wvehicles, equipment, computers,
21-02-19 fixtures, fittings etc lying/stored/placed anywhere
in Pakistan whether in transit or not belonging to
the company
National Bank of Deed of 667,000,000 | First and exclusive charge on specific receivables 26-02-19 | Satisfied on
Pakistan Assignment of maple leaf power Itd to secure finance upto 22-08-21
105-B-1I1, 21-02-19 667,000,000/-
M. M Alam Road,
Gulberg, Lahore
MCB Bank Ltd Hypothecation 666,670,000 Ranking charge over all present and future assets 01-03-19 | Satisfied on
Corporate Branch, | Agreement for of maple leaf power Itd including but not Itd tom 22-06-21
Main Boulevard, Plant and plant, machinery, equipment, fixtures and other
Gulberg, Machinery installation and such movables (collectively the
Lahore. 12-02-19 assets) of whatsoever nature instafled or to be
installed at coal fired power plant (CFPP) of 40
mw constructed to the property of maple leaf
cement factory Itd iskanderabad, district mianwali
alongwith assets located anywhere in Pakistan
The Bank of Letter of 666,667,000 | All present and future fixed assets of the company 18-04-18 | Satisfied on
Punjab Hypothecation (whether permanently embedded to earth or not) 22-06-21
Bop Tower, 10-B, | Assignment lying, located, installed, embedded any where
Block E-1I, Agreement. Pakistan.
Main Boulevard, 30-03-18
Gulberg-III,
Lahore.

**** End of the Report ****

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the 7% Annual Report along with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Principal Activities

Maple Leaf Power Limited was incorporated on October 15, 2015 under the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). It is a Public Limited Company with
principal activity to generate, purchase, transform, distribute and supply electric power.

Performance and Financial Review

In the year under review, the Company throughout the year successfully operated 40 MW coal
fired power plant and provided not only uninterrupted power supply but also supplied steam to
the Holding Company, Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCF) by efficiently operating
its boiler capacity. The Company recorded net sales of Rs. 5,252 million against Rs. 4,236
million in the corresponding period last year. The Company achieved gross profit of Rs. 928
million against Rs, 1,127 million in comparative year with decrease of 17.66%. Operating profit
for the year was Rs. 967 million as compared to Rs. 1,290 million during the corresponding
period last year. Finance costs during the reporting period decreased to Rs. 21 million as
compared to Rs. 31 million during the last year. The Company earned net profit of Rs. 916
million against Rs.1,153 million in the corresponding period last year. Earnings per share for
the year ended June 30, 2022 stood at Rs. 1.82 against Rs. 2.30 last year,

The Company’s capacity utilization was 84% for the year under review as compared to 95% in
previous year mainly due to varying demand from the Bulk Power Purchaser (the Holding
Company) resulting in decrease in gross profit.

Non-Financial Review
The Company is blessed with highly skilled technical staff who worked hard with zeal and
dedication. The Chinese power plants are recognized as cost effective and efficient in the

energy sector.

Name of Directors

For the year under review, following were the Directors of the Company: -

Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol Chairman

Mr. Sayeed Tariq Saigol Chief Executive
 Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol Director

Mr, Waleed Tariq Saigol Director

Mr. Danial Taufique Saigol Director

Syed Mohsin Raza Naqgvi Director

Mr. Arif Jjaz Director

The details of the remuneration paid to the Chief Executive and Directors of the Company are
disclosed in Note 32 of the Financial Statements.
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42-Lawrence Road,

Lahore, (Pakistan)

Tel: 92-042-36302261

. . & 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

During the year, the Company faced the challenge of rapid increase in coal prices in
international market and devaluation of Pak Rupee against US Dollar. To ease out the pressure
on cost sides, the Company successfully shifted to usage of Afghan coal that was procured from
local market, resuitantly, the Company was able to avoid huge foreign currency exchange loss
and was able to dilute the impact of major increase in coal rates in international market.

The Cement demand is highly correlated to the Government’s spending in development
projects through Public Sector Development Program (PSDP). The PSDP in FY 2022-23 has

been enhanced with special emphasis given to regional connectivity, investment on building
large dams and water conservation systems.

In light of the above factors, the company is expected to produce electricity for Bulk Power
Purchaser (The Holding Company) with almost full operational capacity during the year 2022-
23.

Change in Nature of Business

No changes have occurred during the financial year concerning the nature of the business of
the Company.

Auditors’ Report

The Auditors have expressed un-modified opinion on the audited financial statements of the
Company.

Default of Payments, Debt/Loan etc.

The Company is current on repayment of its debt obligations and no default has occurred till
cut of date of these financials.

Adequacy of Internal Controls

The Directors are aware of their responsibility with respect to internal financial controls.
Through discussions with management and auditors (both internal and external), they confirm
that adequate controls have been implemented by the Company.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Pattern of Sharcholding

Pattern of shareholding of the Company in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 as at June
30, 2022 is annexed.



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

Auditors

The present auditors of the Company, M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
audited the financial statements of the Company and have issued report to the members. The
auditors will retire at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting (AGM) and they are eligible
for re-appointment.

Acknowledgment

We would like to thank all our stakeholders who have placed their confidence in us and also

appreciate the efforts put in by the management team for their unwavering commitment and
hard work.

For and on behalf of the Board

aC%') .’ (Sayced Tariq}S?.

Chief Executive

Lahore: August 31, 2022 Director

Certified Tr Cop-y -
Eor Maple Keaf Power Limited

- Y47

Company Secretary
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THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
[Section 227(2)(D)]
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
PART-1
(Please complete in typescript or in bold block capitals.)
I.1 Name of the Company Maple Leaf Power Limited |
PART-II
2.1, Pattem of holding of the shares held by the shareholdersasat (3] 0J-Jol6]-J2[0[2]2]
2.2 No of
shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held
| T ~ | [ shareholding from 1 1o 100 shares | 7 |
| - — 1 [(sharcholding from 101 ta 500 shares ] [ . ]
[ - | | sharcholding from 301 to 1000 shares 1 | - ]
{ - 1 [sharcholding from 1001 to 5000 ] . ]
I - ] [sharcholding from 5001 to 10000 ] - ]
[ l | [ sbarcholding from 501,995,000 to 502,000,000 | | 501999993 |
{Add appropriate slabs of shareholdings)
| 08 ] Tatal: } [__s02,000000 |
Note : The Slabs not applicable above have not been shown.
2.3. Categories of
Shareholders Shares held Percentage (%)
2.3,1 Directors, Chief Executive Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol 1 0.0000002
Officer, and their spouse and Mr. Sayced Tariq Saigol i 0.0000002
minor children. Mr. Taufique Sayeed Saigol i 0.0000002
Mr. Waleed Tariq Saigol H 0.0000602
Mr. Danial Toufigue Saigol H 0.0000602
Syed Mohsin Raza Naqvi I 0.0000002
Mr. Arif ljaz i 0.0000002
Sub Total: T 0.0000014
2.3.2 Associated Companies, Maple Leaf Cement 501,999,993 99.9999985
undertakings and related Factory Limited
parties,
2.3.3 NIT and ICP L . | [ - ]
2.3.4 Banks Development Financial - B
Institutions, Non Banking
Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Companies | - | [ - |
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutuat Funds. i . || R ]
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% | Refer 2.3.2 | { - ]
2.38 General Public
a. Local - -
b. Foreign - .
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)

Grand Total :
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co,

Chartered Accountants

351 Shadman-1, Jait Road,

Lahore 54000 Pakistan '

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484}, Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Maple Leaf Power Limited

Report on the Audit of the Finaacial Statements

Qpinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Maple Leaf Power Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes {0 the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of
the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 aud of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Bagis for cpinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intcnational Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan, Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor 5 Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Internationai Ethics Standards Board for Accountants* Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements a for’,

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the information included
in the director’s report for the year ended 30 June 2022, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. '

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, wa conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required o report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard. {\?\

¥

KPUG Taserer Haol & Co.. 8 PUvenio m rogisiened 1 Pakisian snc & member fiom of tha KPMG giohiel ptganization
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Responsibilities of management and d of direct the financiql stafement;

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finencial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies
Act, 201 7(X1X of 2017) and for such internal conirol as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unléss management either infends to lquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for oversezing the Company’s financial reporting process.

uditor’s r nsibili the qudit of the financial stat. i

Qur objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, a3 fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures mads by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s uss of the going concem basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to eveats or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If
we conclude that 2 material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going

‘{'@%\
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¢  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinfon:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017(XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Comparies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017) and are in
agreement with the books of account and retumns;

c} Investments made, expenditure incwred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose
of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partrer on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Rehan Chughitsi,

I S\

Lahore KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 31 August 2022
UDIN: AR202210183PBvmS0yTQ

AR4SZ2




Maple Leaf Power Limited

Swatement of Financial Pasition
Aset 30 Juna 20232

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

$luere cupltel pud reserpes

Authorized share capital
600.000.000 (202 1: 600,00¢,000) ordinary sharcs of Rs. 14 cach

tssued. subscribed and paid - up shang capital

Acconlated profia
Swrpus on revalution of property, plant and cquipoenl

Deferred touttion
unt fierhilfel
Tmde and olher pavables

Short term botrowings - scourcd
Accrved musk-up

Contingencles and commitrcnts

"Thic soncxed notes frans 1 (0 35 Formt an integral pant of these financind statescats.

Luliore

18

1622 2029
{Rupees in thousands) ASSETS
Non-cirrreut aisets
6,060,000 6,000,000 Property, piant and cquipment
Long tenn lama (o Holding Campany
5,020,000 5,020,000
L603438 675,521
177,626 188,584
6.801,084 5.384,105
Larreyt assets
324 41,633 Stores und spares includiog coal
Advaness
Due from IHolding Company
Marggin aad pecpaymens
658,730 540,713 Advauoe tax- nat
- 30,000 Accrued mavk-up
. 624 Cash and bank balances
658,730 571,337
7 491,058 6.497,075

Note

i
i2

2022 2021
{Rnpses I thousnmls)

4695387 4,934,690
2,000,490 1,000,000

6693357 5934690

41,721 309,010
11,082 10.649
132,596 61,225
15,027 15,021
109,190 1339806
A 21,492
23,663 11,0062
795,101 562,385

7,491,038 6.‘!97%@

Chief Executive

An
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
Far the year ended 30 June 2022
2022 2021

Note (Rupees in thousunds)
Sales - net 19 5,252,691 4,236,412
Cost of Sales 20 {4,324,351) (3,109,406)
Gross profit 927,746 1,127,006
Administrative expenses 21 (6,020) (6.676)
Other income 22 133,148 235829
Other charges 23 (33317 {66,230)
Profit from operations 966,351 1,289,909
Finanee cost 24 (21,416) {31,151}
Profit before taxation 945,138 1,258,758
Taxation 25 (29,115) (106,057)
Profitafier taxation 916,020 l.lﬁl,mk&

The annexed notes from 1 to 35 form an integral part of these financlal statements.

?O] - A H
Labore / .D_ﬁrgét,_@:_( . ___Chief Executive
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Far the year ended 30 June 2022

Profit after taxation

1 11, ine

2022

2021

(Rupces in thousands)

fiems thot will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss

Surplus on revaluation ol property, plant and equipment
'. Related tax

‘Total comprehensive income for the year

916,020 1,152,701
- (3,339
- (3.339)
916.020 1.149.363 \Qﬁ

The annexed notes from I to 35 form an integral pant of these financial statements.

N

Lahoro ' ""_ =
_Director

For Maple L

Certified Copy
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Chief Executive
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ower Limited
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pmpany S8°’=




N

Maple Leaf Power Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2032

Az Al 30 June 2029

v | 2 liin
Profit alter caxution
Other comprehiensive income

Incramentol deprecintion rolaing ta surplus on
revalualion of fixed nssels

4 wn
Interim cash dividend @ Rs. 7 por shawe fbr the
year ended 30 Jone 2021
As at 30 June 2021

hansive || 1 th
Profit alier tnxation
Chiher comprehonsive income
Incremental deprecialion relating 1o surplus an
revalwation of fixed psseis - ael of (ax

Effect of chonge in effective tax rmte
As at 30 Jyune 2022

. Surglrson
é::.:: revalustion of "“::‘;.::"" Total Equity
property, pland
and eqnipment
{Rupees in thonsnnds)
5,020,000 203.9% 3,024,753 3. 248,74
- - L152,701 i lSZ.TOjJ
. {3,339 - (3.339
. 331 152,700 1.149.362
- (12,067) 12.067 -
- . 3,514,000 (3.514,600)
5,020,000 188,584 675,521 5.584,105
. - 916,020 216,020
- . 916,020 916,020
- (11,917 11,917 -
- 959 - 0359
5,020,000 177.6219. 1,603,458 801,084

The amexed nows from | to 35 form an intearal punt of thase financia statements,

Lakore

Y

&

A

.
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—Chief Executive




Maple Leai’ Power Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Far the yeur cnded 30 Jee 2022
in2 0
Sugh flow o engnting acilvicles Note (Rupees in thoosawds)
Peoils before 1nxotion 943,135 13258758
Adjusrment for:
Deprociation 1t 324,870 307,203
Markup on long tenw {oan 1o Holding Company {184,370) {197.37%)
Workers' [Profil Pasticipation Fund 30814 66,250
Workees' Welisre Fund 20,325 .
Finance cont aldle EYRE]]
Markup rom bank deposils 1200 371

1,256,483 1464.H5

Stares and spares (174929 158.613
Due lrom the Holding Company {11,371) 7603
Advimces 3 61504
Short 1evm depesits nod prepaymoenls 3] 336
Qiier reccivibles o | il6
{246.7234) 433403

hxeease - idecrease) in current liobihities:

Trude ond uiftes payubles 26473 {37.106)
Net ensh generated Irom uperations 1,036,223 1880412
Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund Paid (3.630) -
Finunee cost paid (22.040) (34337
‘faxes paid {13,749 (10815
Nt cash gemeruted Trom aperating activitles 997353 1813208
Cogh fow [ogn iverdag qohvicier
Fixed eapital expendilore -
{Incrense) / decrease in long tentt lown to {10kding Company i3 2,800.000
Markup received from bank doposits 2060
Markup received rom long term loan 1o Liakfing Company 231,378
Net ensh {used lu) / generated fraw Investing sttivities 3239633
sk fraw from fnegg) fofr
Short term horrowings - net - (33031H
1.ong tens loans pavd - (32.936)|
Dividend paid - €3.514.000!
Nrt cosh nxed in Daancieg activities . (3.373469)
Net inerease In cash nud eash cquivitients 42,666 176377
Cush and cash equivalents at bepinning of the yenr {13,998} (195.375)
Cosk und vash equivalonts at ead of the year 23,668 { 18.9982
Casir cusd cosiy equivalents for the purpows of ifw cash flows siakemend considg of

Cash in hond Gol 340

Current and ather accounts 23,067 10.461

Short term nsthing fnance . {36.000}
“Total ensh wnil eash cquivatents 13.668 (13,908
The snnesed notes Gom | 0 35 form oa integeal pan of statcments.

Lahore ) e —
Chief Executive
ee————

————

Certified True, y
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Maple Leaf Power Limited

Notes to the Financial Statemenis
For the yeor ended 30 June 2023

1 Corporate and general information

Maple Leaf Power Limited { the "Company™} was incorporaied in Pakistan on 13 October 2015 as 5 public
limited company under the Companies Ordinance, 1284 {(now Companies Act, 2017). The Company has
been established to sct up and operate 0 40 megawall coal fired power generation plant at Iskanderabad,
Distriet Mianwali, Punjab, Pakistan for peneration of electricity, The Company's regisiered office is located
al 42 - Lawrence Road, Lakore, The principal ebjective of the Company is (o develop, design, operate and
maintain eleciric power generation plant and in connection therewih to engage in the business of gencration,
sale and supply of electricity. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Maple Leaf Coment Factory
Limited (*the Holding Company™). The altimale parent company is Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited.

The Company was granted clectricity gencradon fcense from Naional Electric and Power Regulatory
Authority (NEPRA) on 20 December 2016, The Company enlered into & power purchase and sieam
purchase agreemenis with Holding Company on 04 July 2017 and 31 October 2019 vespectively which are
valid for 20 years,

2 Basis for preparation
2.1 Statement of complinnce

These financial statements have been peepared in accordance with the accounting and reponling
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comyrise oft

- Indernationnl Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {(JASB} as notified wider the Companies Act 2017;

- islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Instiluie of Chartercd
Accovmtanis of Pakistan a3 notified under the Companies Acl, 2017; and

- Provision of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the
provisions of aud direclives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These (inancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
buildings on leaschold land and plant, machinery and eleciric installation which are measired @
revalued ainount,

23 Funclionsl and prescntation curreney

These firancial statemenis have been prepared in Pak Rupees (*Rs.”) which is the Company's
functional currency. The amounts are rounded ofT 10 nearess thousand.

24 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management Lo malke judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimales and associated
assumptions are besed on historical experience and various other factors that are belicved 1o be
redsonable under circumstances, and the resulis of which form the basis for making judgnien about
canrying valne of assets and liabifities thai are not readily apparemt (roem other sources, Actual
results may differ from these estimatas,
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The estimales and underlying assnmptions are veviewed on on ongoing basis. Revisions lo
accounting estimates are cecognized in the period in which cstimates are revised if the revision
affects only thal period, or in the period of the revision and future pesiods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The nreas where assumpiions and estimates or where judgment was cxercised by the managenicnt
in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives and residual value for cach ftem of
property, plant and equipment annually by considering axpected partorn of economic benefits that
the Company expects 1o derive from that jtem and the maximum period up to which such beaefits
are expected to be available. Any change in estimates jn future yoars might affet the carvying
amounts of respective {lems of property, plani and equipment with a comespending efTect on the
deprociation charge and impairment. During the year, the Company hes changed depreciation
method for all class of assets olfier than plant, machinery and electrical installatians to siraight line
basis. The effect of change in the depreciation method is not considered material o0 the financial
stalements, hance, no disclosure to this effecl is made in these financial statements,

Revaluntion of property, plant and equipment

Revaluation of prepery, plant and cquipment Is carried out by independent professional valuers.
The Company uses rovnjuation model oaly for its buiklings on lcasshold land and plant, machinery
and electrical insiallntions,

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of propenty,
plant and equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs malerislly from
its earrying amota, a further revaluation is required. Such frequent revaluations ars umiecessary
for items of property, pinat and equipiment with only insignificant changes in fair value. Instead, i
may be necessary (o revalue the ilem only every throe lo [ive years.

Expected eredit loss (ECL) / Loss allowanees agalnst trade debts, long term loans, advanees,
shart term deposits and other receivables

ECLs are based on the difference benveen the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contrnct and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
&l an approximation to the asset original effective interest rate.

The Company has clecied 10 measuro loss allowances foc trade dobis using IFRS 9 simplified
approach und has cakulated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company hos established a
provisfon matrix that is based on the Company's historical credh loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to tho debtors and lhe economic enviroament. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has Increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supporiable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualiative
information and analysis, boscd on the Company's hiswrical experience and informed erodit
assessment including forward-looking Information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the inaximum conteacival period over
which the Company Is exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets messured at
amortized cost are deducted (vom the pross camying amount of the assets.

Impairment on financial assels other than trade debt has been measured on a |2-moath expecied
loss basis and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considess that its cash
and cash equivalents have fow credit risk based on the external credit mtings of the countesparties,
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The Company reviews the recoverabilily of its financial assess to assess amount of Joss ailowances
required there against on an annual basls.

Recoverable pmount of nssets / cnsh gencrating unit and impaivment

‘The management of the Company reviews carying amounis of its assels and cash gencraling units
for possible impaimmient and, makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such
indication.

Provisious angd contingencics

The Company reviews the status of al) perding litigations and claims against the Compmty. Based
on the judgment and the advice of the legal advisars for the estimated Gmancial ouicome,
appropeiate disclosure or provision Is made, The actual oulcome of these Hiigations and claims can
have an cffect on the canying amowunts of the liabilives recognizad at the reporting date.

Taxation

The Company takes into aceount the surrent income tax lnw and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances whare the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income iax
depariment at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of
matarial natuce i3 in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as camingent liabililies.

Summary of significaut accounting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the prepazation of these financial statements are set ow
below. Thesg policies have been consistently applied to all years preseated.

31

Property, plant and equipment and revaluation surplus
Owned

Tangible asscis except buildings on leasehold land, plant, machinery and electrical installations are
stated a1 cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, i any. Buildings on Jeaschold fand,
plam, machinery nnd electric instaliation are stated at revalued amount being the Rair value at the
date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Surplus
on revaluation is booked by restaling gross carrying amounts of respective assets being revalued,
proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The' accumulated
depreciation ot the date of revaluation is also adjusted o cqual difTerence between gross carrying
amounts and the carrying amownts of the assets afor taking into account accomulated impairment
losses, if any. Swiplus on revaluatlon of fixed assets to the extent of the annual incremenial
depreciation based on the revalued carvying amount of the asset is transferred annually to retained
earnings nel of zelated deferred tax if any. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relsting to the
partleular nssots being sold Is iransferved fo retnined eamings. All transfers to 7 from surplus on
revaluation of fixed nsseis account are nel of ppplicable deferred income lax, if any.

Capitasl work-in-progress is siated ol cost Jess idemified imprirment losses, if any, All espendimre
connected with specific assets incurred during Installation and construction period are carried under
capital work-in-progress. Theso are transferred 10 specific assets as and when these are availabie for
use,

Major renewals and improventents 1o an item of property, plant and equipment are recognized in
the carrying amount of the iem If it {8 probable that the embodied Ature economic benefits will
TNow to the Company and tlie cost of renawal or inprovement euit be measured reliably. The cos1 of
the day-lg-dsy servicing of property, plant and eguipment are recognized in statement of profit or
loss as incurred.
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Gaiins / losses on disposal or retirement of assets, if any, are taken to statesment of profit or loss,

Depreciation is calculated o 1he rates specified in aote 11 using straight line method. Depreciation
on additions to property, plant and equipment is cliarged from the month in which che item beeomes
availoble for use. Depreciation is discontinued from he nionth in which it is disposed or classified
as held for disposal.

Increases in the carrying amounis arising on revaluation of building, plant and clectrical equipment
is recognised, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in sharcholiders’ equity.
To the extent that the increase reverses a decrease previously secognised i profit ar loss, the
incrense Is first recognised in profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same
asset are (irst recogaised in other comprehensive income lo the extent of the remaining sumplus
atiributable to the nsset; all other decreases are chiarged to profit or loss.

Financial instruinments
Recognition and initinl messurement

All financinl assets or financial liabilities are inliially recognized when the Company becomes &
purty-to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A finencial asset {unless it is a trnde receivable without a significant financing componem) or
financial liabilly is initially mensured at faic value plus, for an jtem not al FVTPL, transaction costs
that are direcily auributable 10 its acquisition or issue. A receivable without & significant financing
componeitt Is initially measured it the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financiat assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured al amortized cost, fair valve
through olher comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassificd subsequent to their initial vecognition unless the Compmy
changes its business model for managing financial assets, i which case all affected financial assets
are reclassified on the Brst day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
modet. ’

duwgrdbzed cost

A finenelal asset is measured m amortized cost if it meets boll of the following conditions and Is
not designated as st FYTPL:

. it is held within a business model whose objective is (o hold assels to collecl coniractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on spesified dates to cash flovws that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on tha principal amount cutsianding.

These ussels are subsequently mensured ot amortized cost using the eflective intecest method, The
amortized coat Is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit oc loss. Any gain or loss on derecagnition is recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial essets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, dus from Holding
Company, long term loan to Holding Company and zecrued prafit (QR‘
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Deby Instronent - FYOCT

A dely investment is measured au FVQCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as ot FVTPL:

- it is held within a business modol whose objective is achieved by both collecling
contractuat cash flows and seiling financial assets: and

- 18 contractun} (erms give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principat amount outstanding.

These assels are subsequently measured al [air valve. Intecest income calculnted using the effective
interest method, forcign exchange goins und losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss.
Qther et gains and losses are recognized in OCL On derccognition, gains and losses accumulated
in OCH are reclassified to profit or loss, However, the Company has no such instrument ot the
reparting date.

Equity Instrnuent » FYGCT

On intial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for imding, the Company may
irrevocably clect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election
is made on aa investment-by-investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends arc recognized as income in profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represcnis a recovery of part of the cost of the investmenz. Other
net gains and losses are recognized i OCI and are never reclassified to profit or Joss. However, the
Company has no such instrument at the reporiing date.

Fair valye throu r i L

All financial assets not classified as ineasured at amortized cost or FVQCH as described above are
measured at FVTPL.,

On initin) recogpition, the Company may irsvosably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meels the requirements to b6 moeasured at antartized cost or st FYOCT as at FVTPL If doing so
eliminates ar signiflcansly reduces an accountiag mismarch that would otherwise arise.

These assels arc subsequently measured at fair valus. Net gains and fosses, including any interest or
dividend income, ara recognized in profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at
the reporting date.

Financial assets — Bustness model assessmignt;

For the purposes of the assessment, *principal’ is defined as the fir value of the financial asset on
initial recognition, *Interest’ is defined as consideration for the tme valuc of money and for the
credit risk associated wilh the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g, liquidity risk and administrative costsy, as welf as a
profft margin.

In assessing whether the contraciual cash llows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This inclides assessing whether the
financial assel contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amoumt of contraciual

cash flows swch that it would not meet this condition. In makirg this assessmens, the Company
considers:

- contingent events thal would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
«  prepayment and extension festures; and

«  terms that limgit the Company’s claim to cash Bows [rom specified assels {¢.2. non-recourse
features).
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Fingpeial Habilities

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortized cost or FYTPL. A financisl liability is
classified as at FVTPL if' it is classified as held-for-trading, il is a derivative or it is designaied as
such an initlal recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at falr value and net gatus
and Yosses, including any interest expense, are racopnized in profit or loss. Other Ginancial Habilities
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective inlerest method, Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses ar¢ recognized in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on
derecognilion Is also recognized in profit or loss,

Financial Babilitles camprise trade and other payabices, short teyrm boerowing and accrued markup,

Degecegaition

Llugncinl agsels

The Company derccognizes a [inancinl asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assot expiro, or il transfors the rights to receive the contractunl cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks aund rewards of ownersitip of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor regins substantialfy alf of the risks and rewards of
ownership and i1 does not retain control of the financial nsset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assels recognized in its stalement
of financial position, but rewmins cithor all or substantially ail of the risks and rewards of the
iransferred assels, In these cases, the translerred assets are not derecognized,

Financial flabilities

The Company derscognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or cxpire. The Corspany also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are
madified and the cash Aows of the modified linbility are substantinlly differant, in which case 2 new
financial liability based on the modified 1erms is recognized at fair valwe. On devecagnition of a
finaucial liability, the difference botween the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration
paid (focluding any non-cash assets transferrcd or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss,

Due from Halding Company « trade debt

These are classified at amorlized cost and are initially recognized when they are originated and
measured at falr value of consideraiion receivable. These assets are writien ofT when there is no
reasonable expectaiion of recovery,

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and tiie net amount presented in the statement of
financiel position when, and only whes, the Compuny currently hias a legaily enforceable cight to
set off the amounts and It intends cither ta seitle them on a net basis or to realize the agset and soltle
the liabilily simuliancously.

Impairment

Elnanclal gssets
The Company recognizes loss allownnces for ECLs on:

- financial asscts measured at amortized cost;
- delx investments mv&sured M FVOCT; and
- contract assots.

of
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, cxcepl for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk a1 the reporting date; and

- other debt securities ond bank balances for which crediv risk {ie. the risk of default
otcurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has nol increased significantly
since initial recognition.

12:month ECLs are the portion of ECLs thai result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reparting date (or a shorter peciod if the expected life of the instrument is less
thar: 12 months).

When determining whetber the credit visk of n financial nsset hos increased significanily since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLS, the Company considers reasonable and supporiable
informatien that is relsvant and available without wndue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative ond qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience
and informed credit nssessment and including forward-looking information,

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a finoncial asset hag incressed significantly If it (s
more than past due for # reasonable period of time. Liletime ECLs are the ECLs that result {rom all
possible default events over the expected Jife of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs ace the
portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
veparting dale {or a shorter perfod if tho expected Jife of the instrument is loss than 12 months). The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractital period over which
the Company is exposed o credit risk.

The Company has eleécted (o mensure loss atlowances for trade debts using (FRS 9 simplified
appronch and has calculated ECLs bascd o lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a
provision mawrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss cxperience, adjusted for
forveard-looking factors specific to the debtors and the ecanomic environment, When determiniog
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has incroased significanily since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable [nformation that j=
relevant and availsble withowt undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
Infornation and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credil
assessment incliding forward-laoking information.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the Gross
eartytng amount of the assets.

The Gross carrying amount of a financial assct is written off' when the Company has no rensonable
expestations of recovering of a financlal assot In its enlirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individunlly makes on assessment with respect o the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation ol recovery. The Company oxpects no significant
recovery (ot tie amount wiilien off. However, financial assets (hat are written off could stitl be
subjecl 1o enforcemant activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-{iuancial assels, other than inventorfes and deferred 1ax
assets, il any are roviewsd ot each reporiing dote to determine whethier thers I8 any indication of
impairment. IF any such indication exisis, then the asset’s recoverable amount is' estimated. The
recoverable amoum of an nsset or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less cost to sell. [n assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash flows are discounied to
their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessmenis of the
Lite value of money and the risks speeifie lo the nsset or cash generating unit.
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An impairment loss is recognized if the cacrying amount of the assets or its cash generzting unil
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment Josses are recognized in profit or loss.
impairmcnt lostes recogpized in respect of cash generating units arc allocated to reduce e
cartying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior
periods are assessed ot each reporiing date for any Indications ¢chat the loss has decreased or ne
longer cxists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the cstimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only two that extent that the
assel's carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
bean determined, net of depreciation and amartization, if no impairment loss had beea recognized.

Stores and spares

These aye stated o1 cost [ess provision for slow moving item and obsolescence, IF any. Cost is
determincd using the weighied aversge method. Hems in transit are valued ot cost comprising
invaice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Revenue recogaition
e of Electricity and Stggn sander IFRS 13

Revenuo from sale of electricity and sleam are recognized as deliveved, The Company views cach
kilowatt hour (KWh) of elecaricity and per tons of steam delivered 10 be a series ol distinet goods
that have the same pattem of ransfer to the custamer. The amotnt that the Company has a right to
bill the customer reflects the pattern of wansfer and value of the completed performance to the
customer, As a result, the Company applies the “right to invoice” practical expedient under JFRS 15
(o measure and recognize revenue.

Interest income

interast income is recognized as it accrues under tho effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through the expecied life of the financial asset to
the gross carryiag amount of the financial assel.

Contract linbilities

A comtract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer gootds or services 1o a custowner for
which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Comnpany transfers goads or services o the
custoner, a contract Hability is recognized when the payment is made ov the payment is due
{whichever is earfier), Contract labilitics are recognized ss revenve when the Company performs
under the contract. It also includes refund liabilities arising out of customers* right to clafin amounts
from the Company on account of contraciual delays in delivery of performance obligations and
intentive on (arget achievements.

Trade and other payables

Creditors and other payebles are carried ai amortised cost which is the fair value of consideration to
be paid in the future for goods and services received, whather or ntot billed to the Company.

Cash and cash equivalonts

running finance and cash at banks,

\

Cash and cash equivalems for the ;;Rm of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand, short term
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Taxation

Citrrens

Profits and gaing of the Company derived from electric power generation projest are exempt from
tax subject o the conditions and limitations provided for in terms of clavse (132) of Part 1 of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Fuyther, the Company is alse exempt from
minimum tax on surnover under clause {11 A) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tas
Qrdinance; 2001,

However, profit from steany operuions, profit an bank deposiis and intérest on long term loan to the
Holding Comypany are Hable 10 be 1axed as per the applicable corpovate tax rate,

Deferred

Deferved tax is recognized vsing the balence sheet method on all temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the amounis used
for taxation purpases.

Deferved tax assel is recagnized Tor all the deductible temporary differences only to the extent thnt
it is probable that fulure txable profits will be available agninst which the assel may be utilized.
Deferred tax asset is reduced to the exient thal it is no longer probable that the related tax benefi
will be renlized, Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all the taxable temporary difforences.

Deferred tax assets and tinbitities are measured at the 1ax sales that are expecied lo apply to the
period whent the assel is realized or the liabllity is settled, based on the tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss , except in the case of items
credited or charged to comprehensive income o equity, in which cese it is included in ofhier
comprchensive income or equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares ace classified ag equity. Tncremental costs directly atiributable w0 the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction [rom cquity, net of any sax efTecis.

Dividend to ovdinary shaceholders

Dividend to ordinary sharcholders is recognlzed as a deduction from accumulated profit and as a
liability in the Company's statement of financial position in the year in which the dividend is
approved by the Board} of Directors or the Company’s sharehokiors as the case may be.

Coutingent linbilities

A contingent linbility Is disclosed whe

- there Is a possible obligation that arises from past cvents and whose existence will be
confirmed anly by the occurrence or ron-occurence of ane or more uncertain futee events
not wholly within the control of the Company; or
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- there is present obligation that arises from past evenis but it is not probable that an cutflow
of resources embodying economic benefiis will be required 1o settle the obligation or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient retiability.

Fareign currency (ranslitdons

Transactions in forcign cwencies are inilially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates
of wransactions, Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencics are rewnnslated
into Pak Rupees at exchange rates peevailing on the statement of financial position date. All
exchange differences are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings

All borrowings are recorded alt the preceeds received. Borrowing costs direetly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying nssets, which are assels that necessarily 1ake a
substantial perlod of time to get ready for their intended use are added (o the cost of thase ussels,
unti! such time as the assels are substantially ready for tieir intended use. All odier borrowing costs
are charged 1o stateinent of profit or loss in the periad in which these are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legn) and constructive obligation as a result of
past events and it is probable that ouiflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required 1o settle the cbligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amout of obligation.
Provision is recognized at an amount that is the best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle
the presont obligation au the reporting date. Where oulflaw of resources embadying economic
benefits is nol probable, or where a reliable estimale of the amount of obligation cannot be made, a
contingent liability is disclosed, untess the possibility of outllow is remote,

Mark-up bearing borvowings

Mark-up bearing bomowings are recognized indtinlly at cost representing the faiv value of

consideration received less allributable (ransaction cosia, Subsequent to initint recognition, mark-up
bearing borrowings ave stated at original cost less subsequent repayments, white the difference
between the original recognized amounts {ns reduced by periodie payments) and redemption value
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of borrowings an an effective mie
basis, The borrowving cost on qualifying asset is inchuded in the cost of related asset,

Leases
The Company is the lessee.

At inception of & contract, the Company assesses whether a coniract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Lesse terms are negatiated on an individusl basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions,

At initfal recognition, leases are recognised as o right-ol-use asset and a correspending Fabllity a1
the daje at which the [eased asscl is avoilable for use by the Company.

The Jease lability is initially measured st the prosont valug of the lease payments that are nol paid
ar the commencement date, discounted using tho interest rate implicit in thg.lease, or if that re
cannot be rendily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rat
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Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate amounts expected o be payable by the lessee under residual value gumrantoes, the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonnbly centain to exercise that option. payments of
penaltics for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option. less
any leass incentives reccivable. The exisnsion and lermination opfions are incorporated in
detesmination of lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to oxercise these options.

The leass Hiability is subscquently measured at amostised cost using the effestive interest rate
method. It is remecasured when there is a change in future lease payments avising from a change in
fixed lease payments or aa index or rate, change in the Compeny®s cstimale of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guamaiee, or if the Company changes its sssessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, exiension or termination option. The corvesponding adjustment
is made io the currying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the unconsolidated
statement of proflt or loss account if the carrylng amount of right-of-use asset has been reduced to
210,

‘The right-of-use assat is initially measured based on the initisl amount of the lease liability adjusicd
for any iesse payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying ssset or to restore the
undertying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received, The right-of use
asset is deprecimed on a straight line method over the leasé term ay this method most clasely
reflects the expecied pattemn of consumption of futuro economic benefits. The right-ol-use asset is
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjisted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

Payments associzied with short-term feases and all Jeases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Shost-term leases are feases with a lease term of
12 months or less without a purchase oplion,

Now/ revised nccounting standards, nmendments (s published nceonnting standards, and
interpretations that are not yct cffective

The following International Financial Reporting Stendards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the ameadments and interprelations thereto will be effective for accounting
pericds beginaing on or after 1 July 2022:

_—  Onerous Contacts — Cosl of Fulfilling a Contract {Amendmenis {0 1AS 37) effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifics that the ‘cost of fulfilling a contract’  for the
purposes of the onsrous contract assessment comprises the costs that relaie direcily 1o 1he contraet,
Inclnding both ihe incremental costs and an allocation of other direct costs to fulfil the contract, An
ceatity is required 1o apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
cbligations at the beginning of the nnnual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments
(the date of initinl npplication). Restatement of comparative infornation is ot required, instead the
amendments reguire an enlily o recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the cpening baiance of retained camings or other component of
equity, as appropriate, al the date of inftial application.

The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 20183-2020 are effective for awmual
reporting periods beginning on or afler | January 2023:

-  IFR8 9 - The amendment clarifies that nn entity includes only fecs peid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fecs paid or received by cither the entity or the
lender on the other’s behalf, when it applics the * §0 per cent® test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in
nssessing whether to derccognize a financial Hability,
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IFRS 18 - The amendment panially amends lustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illustration of relmbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor, The objective
of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lense incentives,

1AS 41 - The amendment remaves the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities o
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair velue of a blological asset using a present
value technique. This amendment enables the trir valve measurement of biological assets on a post-
tax basis.

Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments Lo [AS 16) clfeclive
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 clarifies (hat sales proceeds and costs of
items produced while bringing an ifem of properly, plamt and equipment 1o the location nnd
conditlon necessasy for it 10 be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g,
when testing etc., are tecognized in peofit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The
entily measures the cost of those items spplying the measurement requircments of 1AS 2. The
standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An
entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively, bul only to items of property, plamt and
equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for them (0 ba capable of
operating in the mianner inended by manpgemont on or after the beginning of the carfiest peried
presented in the financial statements in which the enlity first applics the amendments. The emity
shall recognize the cumulative elfect of initially applying the amendiments as an adjusiment {o the
openting balance of retained eorings (or other component of equity, as sppropristc) at the
beginning of that earliest period presenied.

Refersnce 10 the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Referenice to the Concepiual
Feamework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added
paragraphs 21A, 21B, 24C and 23A 10 IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those amendments to business
combinations for which the acquisition dats is on or afier the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after | January 2022,

Classification of liabilitics as current or non-current (Amendments 10 1AS ) apply rerospectively
for the annual periods beginning on or afier I lanuory 2023, These amendments in the stundards
have been added 1o further clarify when a tiability is classified as current, Convertible debt may
aeed 1o be reclassified as ‘current’, The standard also amends the aspect of ¢lassification of lability
as non-cyrrent by requiring the nssessment of the entity's right at the end of the reporting period to
defer the scttlcment of Kability for at fenst twelve months after (he reporting period. An entity's
expectation and diseretion at (he reporting date to refinance or 1o reschedule payments ov a Jong-
werm basis ace no longer refevant for the classification of a liability as current or nos-curreat. An
antity sheil apply 1hose amendments rstrospectively in accordancs with IAS 8.

Disclosure of Accounting Pelicies (Amendments to TAS | and IFRS Pmctice Statemem 2) - the
Board has issued amendments on the application of materialily to disclosure of accounting policies

and to kelp companies provide nseful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments ¢o 1AS |
tnclude:

»  requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies miher than their
significant accounting policies:

«  clarifying thot accounting palicies rclated to immiaterial transactions, other cvents or
conditions are themselves immaterial and as such nced not be disclosed; an;sﬂ\




o clarifylng that nol all accounting policies that relae 1o material transactions, other events or
conditions ere themselyes malerial to a company's financial starements.

The Board also amended [FRS Practice Statement 2 © include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality 10 accounting policy disclosures, The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler | January 2023 with earier application
permitied,

Definilion of Accounting Estimutes {Ameadments 10 1AS 8) introduce a new definition for
accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounis in the financial statements that are
subject 0 measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clanfy e relationship between
accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting
estimate {0 achieve the objective set owt by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for
periods beginning on o alter | January 2623, with earlier application permitted, and will apply
prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on or
afier the beginning of the first anmual reporting perfod in which the company appiies the
amendments.

Deferred Tax related to Assels and Liabilitics arising from a Sinale Transaction {(Amendments 1o
TAS 12) narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does nok apply o
iransactions that give rise o equal and offsenting temporary differences. As a result, companies will
need 1o recognize s deforred 1ax asset and # deferred tax fability for temporary differences arising
on initial recognition of a icase and 3 decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning
liabilities, the associated deferred tax osset and liabilities will need to be vecognized from the
beginning of the enrllest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an
adjustment to retained camings or other components of equity at thet date, The amendments are
elfective for ansual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2023 with carlier application
permilted.

Sale or Contribution of Asscis between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture {Amendmants
o [FRS 10 and 1AS 28) -~ The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of
business or assets, The amendmeats also introduee new accoumting for less frequent iransaction
that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retaiced interests in assets ihat are not
businesses. The effective dnte for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion
of a broader review.

The above improvements are likely 1o have no impact on the Company's financial stalements.
Share capital

EX Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
(MNunber of shares) {Rupees in thousands)
Ordinary shares ol Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 302,000,000 502,000,000 5020000 5,020,000

Mnple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (The Holding Conpany) holds 501,999,993
(2021:501,999,993} shares comprising 99.99% (2024: 99.99%) of the paid up share capital of the

C"“"’“"”'&ﬁ?{ '
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2022 2021

Surplus on revaluation of property, (Rupees in thousands)
plnat and equipment- net of tax

Al begianing of the year 191,923 203,990
Transfer 10 wmappropriated profit in respeet of
incremental depreciation cherged during the

year {12,067) {12,067)
At end of the year . 179,856 191,923
[iAY if 0
Al begianing of the year 3,339 -
Transferred 10 unappropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation ¢harged during the yeor 150 -
Surpius on revaluation of properly, plant and equipment - 3339
Effect of change in inX rate (939) -
A ewd of the year 2,230 3,339
177,626 138,584
6.1 The Company's buildings on leasshold land and plant, machinery and electrical installations were
revalued by Asif Evalualors, an independont valuer not connecled with the Company and appraved
by Pakistan Banks' Assoclation (PBA) in “any amawnt® category; at 30 June 2020, The basis of
revahuation for items of these fixed assets were as follows:
G.1.1  Buildings on leasehald Jand
Construction specifications were noted for esch building and structure and now constivction rates
are applied sccording to comstruction spocifications for current replacement . values. Afer
determining curvent replacement values, depreciation was calculated to determine the current
assessed market value,
6.1.2  Plant and machinery
Suppliers and different cement plant congultants in Pakistan and abroad were contacted to collect
informatlon regarding current prices of comparable power plamt to deteemine current replacement
value. Falr depreciation factor for cach Htem is applied according to their physical condition, usage
and maintenance.
2022 2021
Delerred taxation (Rupeos in thousnad)
D tax Hnbilily on toxable tewmiparary differen
arisiyg ¥ :
- accelerated tax depreciation on fixed assels 29,014 38294
« surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 2,230 3,339
31,244 44,633
31,244 41.633

o



7.1 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
Noze
Al beginning of the year
Recagnized in stateyent of profit or loss:
- acceleratod tax depreciation on (ixed assels
- Surplus oa revaluation of fixed assets
Recognized In olher comprehensive income:
ecognized in s on uation of ftved ass
Effect of change in effective lax rale
At end of the year
Trade snd ather payables
Trade creditors
Income 1ax deducied at seurce
Retention moncy
Bills payable
Pravision for electricity duly
Accrued liabilities
Workers' Profit Panticipation Fund 8.1
Punjab Workers’ Welfarc Fund 23
Sales tax payable -~ net
Qther payables
8.1 Warkers' Profit Participation Fund { WPPF)
At beginning of the year
Provision for the yeor 23
Less: Paid during the year
At cnd of the yeay
&1

2022 2021
{Rupees in thousands)

41-633 d
(9:280) 38,204

{159) -
(9,430) 38,294
- 3339

959} -
31,244 41,633
18,548 15,261
26,017 110,409
1,287 1,587
5,464 1,704
180,632 136,312
31,13 13,227
275,643 227909
10,328 -
22,095 32,913
869 391
658,730 540,713
227909 164,659
50,814 66,250
{3,080) -
275.643 227,909

Rs. 3 milllon has been paid during the year. Opening bulance of WPPF liability represemts leRover
mnount paynble 1o Workers Welfare Fund in terms of Companies Profits Worker's Participation
Acl, 1968, According to (he 18th nmendment (0 the Constitution of Pakistan in 2010, all labor/
iabor welfare lows have become provincial subject, and accordingly the left over ameoont is no
more payable to the Federal Treasury, Major strength of Company’s employees cligible for benefit
of WPPF are working In the Provinee of Punjab and accordingly poteatial amount of leR over
amount of \WWPPP is required to be paid to the relevant provincial authority as held by the
Honoursble Sindh High Count in its judgment in C.P. No, D-1313 of 203 announced on February
12, 2018. The Government of Punjab has enacied Companies Profits (Workers' Participation)
(Amendment) Act, 2021, however this has not specified the payment modalities and therefore the
company is censtrained 1o deposit the left-over amount 1o Government of Pakistaw
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2022 2021

Short term borrowings - sceured (at amortised cost) Note (Rupecs in thousands)

Borrowings from banks under comvensional mode

Short term running finance 9.7 - 30,000
- 30,000
9.1 Last year figure represents utilized mmount of short tecm running finance facility availed from

9.2

9.3

National Bank of Pakisten with a accumulated sanctioned limit of Rs. 200 million. During the
current year the utilized amount of Rs. 3¢ million was paid off and the amount of short tenm
borrowing was reduced (o zero as no further financing was obteined.

The Company at the vear end has unavailed FATR facithy with sonction limit of Rs. 500
million from the Bank of Punjab which carrles markup at the rate of three month KIBOR plus
0,75%, payable quareerly. This is secured against first pari passu charge of Rs.667 million over
all present and fsture moveable fixed assets and current asseis of the Company with 25%
margin, corporate guarantee of the Holding Company, assignment of receivables of the Holding
Company, frust receipts and lien on title of goods under imporl documents. The expiry dace of
the facility is 30 November 2022,

The Company at the year end has unavailed facility under istamic mode of financing froms MCB
Istamic Bank Limited with a sanction limit of Rs. 400 million (2021: Rs. 400 million). This
facility carries markup of 3 months KIBOR + 1%. The facility is secured against first joint
parri passu charge aver cusrent assets for Rs. 467 million, first joint parrl passu charge over
fixed assets of the Company with a margin of 25%, Yien over import titls documents and cross
corporate gurantee of Holding Company. The expiry date of facility is 31 January 2023,

Contingencics and commitments

10.1

I6.1.1

10.1.2

Contingencies

The Deputy Corunissioner Inland Revenue {DCIR) vide order no. U-13/Enf-11/1%/202( dated
27 May 202] crested demand amounting Rs. 367.6 million under section 11(2) of Sales Tax
Act, 1990 [or the tax period from July 2016 to June 2018 on accoumt of in-admissible
adjustment of input tax credit. Being aggreived, the Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no, 136-ST/A-VT dated 31
December 2021 reduced the demand to Rs. 134.8 wmillion and remanded the remaining demand
to DCIR. The Company hes filed an appeal before Appellate Tribunal Infand Revenue (ATIR)
agsinst the remalning demand which is pending sdjudication. Management is hopeful of the
favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no pravision has been incorporated in these
financiaf statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR} vide order no. 0472021 dared 13 July 2021
crented demand amounting Rs. 843.6 million under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from
July 2017 w0 December 2020 on account of non-apportionment of input tax eredit against
Capacity Purchase Price (CPP) component of electricity tariff. Being asgreived, the Company
filed an appeal befors Commissioner [nfand Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no, 151,

ST/A-VT daled 20 Iopuary 2022 reduced the demand 1o Rs. 580.3 million and annufled the
remaining dentand.
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16.1.3

10.1.4

.15

10.2

10.2.1

The Company has fifed an appeal before Appeitate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the
remalning demend which is pending adjudication. Managememt is hopsful of the faverable:
outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has been incorporated in these financial
statements.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue {DCIR) vide order no. 0572021 dated 17 July 2021
created demand amounting RKs. 182.8 millien under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from
July 2016 to Juné 2017 on account of nonwapportionment of input tax credit against Capacity
Purchase Price (CPP} componcit of efecarichy tariff. Being aggreived, the Company filed an
appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeais) CIR(A) who vide order ro. 150-ST/A-
Vi dated 20 January 2022 reduced the demand to Rs. 96.5 million and annulled the remaining
demand. The Company has filed an appeat before Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the remaining demand which is pending adjudication. Management is hopefui of the
favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision kos been incorporated in these
financial sintements.

The Deputy Commissioner Enland Revenue (DCIR) vide order ne. U-13/Enf-11/165/2021 dated
15 February 2022 created demand amounting Rs. 13.58 million (including 100% permby
arounting Rs. 4.78 millicn) under Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period July 2019 and August
2019 on account of in-admissible adjustmem of input 1ax credit. Being aggreived, the Company
fited an appeal before Commissioner inland Revenue (Appeals) CIR(A) who vide order no. 238.
ST7A-V1 04 July 2022 upheld the order of DCIR. The Company has filed an appeal before
Appetlaie Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) agalnst the order of CIR(A) which is pending
adjudication. Management is hopeful of the favorable owicome of case and accordingly, no
provisfon has been incorporated in these financial siatements.

The Assistant Commissioner Inland Reveaue (ACIR) vide order ne. U-13/Eaf-11/168/460 dated
12 April 2022 ereated demand amounting Rs. 14.26 million {including penalty amounting Rs.
0.70 million) under Special Procedure Witholding Rules, 2007 and Sales Tax Act, 1998 for the
tax period July 2016 and June 2018 on account of non-payment of witholding sales tax in
respect of purchascs. Being aggreived, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioncer
injund Revenue {Appeals) CIR(A) which is pending adjudication. Mammgement is hopeful of
the favorable outcome of case and accordingly, no provision has been Incorporated in these
financial statements.

Commitments 2022 202§

{Rupces in thausands)
n respect of:

~ Spares 13,716 3.053
- Quistanding letter of credits 12,171 31,508
25,887 34,561

The Company has amranged guarantees from different banks aggrepating to Rs, 25 million
{2021: Rs. 25 milHion) which compiises of a guarantee from Askari Bank Limited worth Rs.} 5
million (secured with 100% margin) and a gearantee from MCB 8ank Limited worth Rs.i0
million in favour of Dirvector Excise and Taxation Karachi. Bank guarantee was also given by a
bank on behalf of the Company, amounting to Rs. 25.66 million (secured against 15% Bien on
P/L account), in favour of Pakistan Railways. «Q‘

\{&3\
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Property, plant and equipment

11.1 Property, plant aad equipment

Buildings on leaschold land  (Nore 14.2)
- cost
= strplies o revahiarion

Plant, machincry and ¢lectrical inssallation
- ¢ost
= surplus on revainaclon

Furnilure, fixtures and equipment
IT equipment

Heavy equipment {or coal handling
Vchicles

2022 29021
Note (Rupecs in thousands)
it 4,695,357 4,934,690
2022
Cost / Revalued smoant Depreciation Book vaine
As at Asal As at For the Asat Asat
t July Additons / 30 June Rate 1 July year 30 June M Juae
2024 Adfustinents 2022 2021 2022 2022
-{Rupoes in thousands)-
1.475,578 - 1,475,578 5%-10% 28201 $2.658 344,738 1,130,347
58,849 - 58,849 5%-10% 10,463 2.96% 13.432 45447
1.534,427 - 1,534,427 2720536 85,627 338.163 1,176,264
4,320,337 84.338 4,405,173 5-240% 302317 222,118 1,024,435 3,380,240
176,082 . 176,082 5-20% 32,545 9,098 41,643 134,439
4,496,419 84,838 4,581,257 §34.562 231,216 1,066.073 3515479
7,264 - 7264 10% 2735 1274 4,009 3,258
1,108 - i,108 30% 930 178 108 -
9,140 . 9,140 20% 3598 3,542 9,140 -
6,584 - 6.581 20% 3.588 1334 $922 639
6,054,939 84,338 8,139,776 1,120,249 324,170 1844420

4,695 ;357 ?,(



8Y

2021
Cost / Revalued amount iYepreciation Book value
As ot Asat As at For the Asa Asat
1 July Additions 30 June Rate ) July year 30 June 30 June
2020 1021 2020 2021 2021
{Rupces in thousands)
Buiidings on leaschold land '
- COst 1,475,578 - 1,475,578 5%-10% 187,635 74438 262,073 1,213,505
~ siplus on revaduation _ 58,849 - 58,849 5%-10% 7.494 2,969 10,463 - 48,386
1,534,427 . 1,334,427 195,129 77407 272,536 1,261,89)
Plant, machinery and cleciricat instaliation
- cost 4,320337 . 4,320,337 5-20% 583,831 218480 802,317 3,518,020
= surplus on revaluation 176,082 - 176,082 5-20% 23,447 9,098 32,543 143,337
4,496,419 . 4,496,419 607,278 221584 834,862 3,661,557
Furniwre, fixures and eqiiipinent 7,264 - 7,264 10% 2,232 503 2735 4.529
IT equipment i,108 - 1,108 30% 853 77 930 178
Heavy equipment for coal handling 9,140 . 9,140 2% 713 8835 5,598 3542
Vehicles 6,581 - 6,581 20% 2.839 749 3,588 2,993
6,054,939 - 6,034,939 . 813,044 307,205 1,120,249 4,934,690

112 “The building and other immavoeble asscis of the Company are construcied on a lonsd ynder Jong term operuting lease Trom the Holding Company at Iskanderabad, Disteier
Mianwali, Ponjab, Pakision measuring 15.88 acres,

153 The foreed sale value of bullding on lease hold land Is s 1.071.44 million and plent, machinocy nnd cleciric installations ig Rs, 3.411.31 willion bused on latest revaluation
report of 30 Junc 2020,

114 Dcpreciation charge for the year iws been allocated to cost nl’sul@



12 Long lerws lonn io Holding Company ved, coustdercd poad

2022 202t

Now (Rupecs in thoxsuuds)
Leng tezm losgy .1 2.009.900 1,060,000
lﬂﬂn‘m 1,000,000

121 This copresenis conversion of balanrce receivuble from Mapke Leal Comem Factory Limiwed, the Holding Company, in lics of
<lectricity sold ducing 1w vureent and prior years 1o loag keam laan. On 30 June 2022, oddending to agreement dated 01 June 2019
for conversion of cuisimding balance inco long lerma toan was signed berwwen tho Company and the 1lakding Compamy. As per U
pddendum, Ks. 1,800 saillion which was payable from 01 Scpuember 2022 has been rescheduied and Turther outstanding balance
of Duw: from Hokling Compuny’ smownting so Rs. 1,000 million has been couveried Into » fong kan foah The wutk leas of Rs.
2,000 million is now receivable in cight vqual quarerly knthinents strtivg trow 01 April 2024 Including grice peried of Tweaty-
one mouths. This Iein camics markep M 3 month Kibor plus 1% pér s, receivoble quorterly. The affective mie during the
yeor ranges thom £.45% 10 12.95% onnually (2021 3.23% 10 §.59%). The maxinnn aggregaic amount ouisinding &t any month
cod during the your was Re. 2,000 million (2021 : Rs. 3,00C mithow),

2022 2021

13 Stores and spares inciuding conl Note {Rupees in thopsznds)
Conl 202,621 71875
Stotes otkies than coal . 49,909 36,882
Spures 218,076 169,323
Loos: wols Lit8 378

1.4 EYIH 308010

13.1  Sparcs inchade in-iransit mmointing 10 Rs. 2.6 million {2027: Rx. { 7 enillion) o4 the yene end,

w22 2021
14 Advaaces Note {Rupecs in thousanis)
Considered good - sousveirod:
Advacss 10 supplicrs . 11,082 10,649
AL 10618
i3 Duefeom Molding Company - unsceured, conskiored pood
Due from Hoiding Campany against snfs of electricity and Sieamt 132,59 45925
Due fromm Holding Company fot sate of scenp - 15,300

5.4 132.598 §1.235
150 The moximuns ageregate amount oudstanding a1 any month erdd dusing the year was Rs. 1,193.29 million (2021 Rs 13777

million).
on e v 2 ]

16 Maryin and prepayments Note (Rupices ln thousands)

Murgie agrinst
- bank gunronices 15,000 15,000
Prepaytinenis 7 21
13.027 !;EB’E!

17 Acerxed miark-up
Prodks on bink deposits 8} 134 3
Muorkup on long tenn loan to | 1ol ding Company - sasecund 2.} 32,186 20417

32,417 23,492
NN

18 Cashs stud bunk lndances
Cash in hand [c]] R2 1]
Casb ot bemid:

Curemt aceoums e 5
Deposlt accounts 184 22,340 Q.M
23i668 11,002
181 All balances are placed wider matkup based armigemeny with conventionel banks ond easty atlum ot 6.0% to 12.25% {2028,
4.0% W 6.0%) pef uanem
2022 plird]

19 Saks-nel (Rupees kn tliamands)
Reveaus ffom cleelricity 4,381,850 4,660.625
Revenue from stearn 263,097 295977
1286 Sales tax (892.856) (720,190) 3

3,252,091 4,236412 gr.
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21

Cast of sales

Fuel

Depreciation on property, plant and equ ipment

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores and spares consumed
Repairs and maintenance

Power and associated costs
Insurance

Vehicle running and maintenance
Traveiling and conveyance
Electricity duty

Rent, rates and taxes

Other axpenses

Administrative expeases

Enteralnment

Sntaries, wages and other bernefits
Legal and professional charges
Postage, telephone and fax
Vehicle running and mainienance
Printing and stationery

Renl, rales and laxes

Note

{14

244

2622 2020
(Rupces in thousands)
3,735,817 2,522,249
324,170 307,205
90,475 37.626
65,124 98,291
29,677 15,968
9,187 10.957
10,348 1472
13,046 10,179
645 59
44,340 44,016
461 406
1,061 378
4 51 3,109,406
112 182
2,220 2812
24678 2,886
190 100
212 239
323 251
285 6
6,020 §,676

21.1  Legal and professional charges include following in respect of auditors' remuneration;

Annuel statutory andit
Out of pocket expenses
Taxation services

Other Incomo
HE {14} Fi

Profit on bank deposits

Markup on long term loan to Holding Company

Ingome fi ~Inanciol

Sale of scrap
Exchange gain- nel
Misceltanepus income

Note

13.4
2.7

221

2022 2021
(Rupees in thousands)
750 750
15 75
630 840
1,455 1,665 -
1,207 L3N
104,170 197,878
7,M 33,155
- 3413
- 12
133,148 235,829

22.1  This includes sale of scrap (o the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 24.9 miltion (2021: Rs.

32.1 million),

"
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Otliercharges *

Workers' Frofit Panticipaion Vund
Warkers® Welfare Fund
fixchange lozs - net

Finunce eost

lwerest  vurkop one
- Short term borrowings
- 130uk choages

Taxutlen

Income tax
- currans year
1efered

35.)  Relaglanship between (ke tnx expense aud
acxonnilap profis

Prafls hefore wxation

‘Tax ealealmed at the mte of 29%

Tev effict of

« Impest of permanens Jilfoneness

- bopact af change 0 ¢ffective (0% mid

Related party tmnsactions sad balances

Nete
24

0t m
(Hurpoes in thousnmds)
50,804 66,250
20,528 .
1L,178 -
38.317 66.329_
0,488 0936
927 1163
BLIE, FINEIM
IB545 57,763
Q.40 38294
AL 19603,
Sis.i38 3,158,733
274.08¢ 365040
(238624 {186,300}
1654 a7
{1¢,004) .
AL 106057

The Company #s & wholly ownted subsidiary of Maple Leaf Coment Factoey Limited which i & subsidiery of Rohinoor Textile iitls Limited.
Accondingly aif ihe subsidaries and associated compranics of Kohisoor Texiike Mills Limited ane el partics of the Company. (1 pklition,
the Company’s relnied parties comprises of disectors of the Conspany md key managoment persosncl. Amomat duc from and due to relmed
porties are skown under respective nows. Qther sigaificant transactions and balaces with eeined] garties excep those disclosed cisewkere are

as follows,

. " N . 022 1]

Name of party Nelfivnship Transoctions Ry Ht thawsant]

Mapke beal Cemont 1lokiing Compimy Coal received from Bofding Company 3,819,160 2159321

Favtory Linited (100% equrity bicld}
Coal providcd (0 Holding Company 571.643 -
Sabe uf eleetricity tinclusive of sales 10x) 5,881,850 4.660,623
Dividend paid - 3504000
Advanes wax deducted wis 235 - 49,201
Payment of Igan by {lolding Company . 2.060.900
Sade of sieam (inclusive of safes tax) 263,097 55717
Sale of serap {inchusive of seles wax) M1 37510
Conversion of da from Helding Company to long
eem lomn 1,000,000 .
Markup received on lang term loan lo Holding
Compony 93.38( BT
Rett chiargud by Jokiing Company 433 360
I'eyments made on tha Compony's behalf 134,307 224,544
Taymen mude by Gee Courpony o behall ol 10921 .

redated pany

{lolding Compony bas provided corponae gromiates ta banks i rolation s besroeving Facilives pravided to the Company a3 disclased in note

wes paid ke dinceions and key mainngeniem personnet during the year,

9.2 a3 “Iece was 1 trausaction with dinsctony und Rey :mmgus\&xmwl Guring the year. Further, ao fembueration ofr olher benefit

¢
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26.5 Koy mowngemmenst persomnel arc those pessans haviug sutharity ond responsibity for planning. dirsctiog a0d conrolling the
activities of she entity. The Campany considers all members ol their mogrgemen om, including Chiel’ Excomive Officer

and Directors to be ils key nanagement persontic] and these ere divclased below.

Name Relatlonship % af sharcholding fa the Corepany
Mr. Sayeed Tariq Snigal Director / Key managuncat personne] 0.00000(2%

M. ‘Tariq Sayeed Soigol Dircctor / Key managoment personnel 0.0000002%

Mr. Taufigue Sayved Saigol Dirceror / Key mamgement personnc] 0.0000002%

Mr, Waleed Tarkg Snigol Direcior / Key magagancent personncl 0.00000G2Ys

Mr. Dzvinl Taulique Saigol Discelor / Key monagenkent personncl 0.0000062%

M, Syed Molin Riza Naqvi Divector / Key maangement personne] 0.0000002%

Mr. Adl ljoa Dircctor / Key miamagement persoanc] 0.0000002%

Me. Sohall Sadig Key monugement persoancl N/A

ML Tariq Ahmcd Mie Key monagement peesonnel NA

27 Recouncillation af soveinent of Hiahilites to cask Novws arising from Ninanting acivitles

2021
Isswed,
snbseribed Short ierm
nad pokd-up  borrowings Tewt
capital
»+veneesn{Rupess in thousand) - ccccovea-.
Anat 30 June 2031 5,020,000 30000 5,050,000
ecine ca.
Shost teom borreswings paid - not - - -
Total changes froin Fanucing cash fows - - .
Ddrer ghances
Rumaing fisance paid - {30,000} 30,000)
Total liability refated athor thanges - {30,000) {30.0001
As 08 30 Jun 2022 ] 3,020,000 - 5020000
3021
tssued ..
. Shart term Dividend Long kerm
subseribed and Payahl Totnd
puid-up capiimd bocrovving oan
B eve e (RUPRCS iR NOURRMIY = = o oo memmmmcnascnvacns
A3.a1.30 Jung 2020 35.020.000 331513 . 32,956 5.584.402
Chanees fnm fugucitie odal Jang
Short term borrewings paid. net . (331.313) . - (3313513
L.ong tenm fenn paid . . . {32956} {32.956)
Dividend paid - . {3.514.000% - (3.33:4,000}
Total chacges from financing cash flows - {331.513) (3.514,800) {32956)  (3.373.409)
Qulrr cheprees
Ruaning linuice paid . (170,000} - - {170,000)
Markup expense . - - - -
Dividend dectnred - 3.514.000 3.3 14,000
Total liabihy relzied othier changes . {170,606} 3.514,000 . 3.344,000
e 202 5.020,006 30.000 . -

E&Qg@@ :



Financiol ¢isk management
The Company has expesure 10 the following risks arising from financial instrumens:

- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

This note presents information about the Company®s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and mawaging risk, and the Company’s management of
capital.

Risk sanagement fiamework

The Company’s Baarg of Directors ("the Board™) has averail responsibility for esablishment and oversight
of the Company's risk management framework. The Board has developed a risk policy thal sets out
fundamentals of risk management framework,

The Company’s risk management policies are eslabiished to ientify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to- set sppropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
managemens policies and sysiems are reviewed regularly to refleci changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities, The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims 1o
develop a disciplined and constructive control environmemt i which ail employees understand their roles
and obligations.

The Company’s exposure to financial visks, the way these risks affect the financial posilion and
performance, and foracast transactions of the Company and the manner in which such risks are managed is
as foliows: ‘

28.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the Company if & customer or counterparty 1o a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. To manage credit risk the Company maimaing
procedures covering the application for credil approvals, granting and renewsd of counterpmty
timits and monitoring of exposurcs against these limits. As part of these processes the financial
vinbility of all counterpariies s regularly monitored and assessed,

28.1.1  Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit expasure, The maximem
exposure 1o credit risk a5 at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2022 2021
Note {Rupees in thousunds)
Fingpeinl assers of snortized cas{

Accrued mark-up i7 32417 21492
Due froim the Holding Company 15 132,396 61,223
Bank balances {3 23,067 190,481
Long term loan to Holding Company 12 2,000,000 1,000,000
Margin against bank guavantee i6 15,000 15,000

2,203,080 1,108,178



28.0.2 Concentration of credit risk
The Compiny ideekifies concentration of cradit risk by referonca to type of sounier party. Maximum exposure io
credit risk by type of counturyrarty is ns follows:
2022 02
{Rupees in thousands)
Holding Company 2,164,882 1.082.642
Bunking companics 38,198 25336
2,203,439 1,108,678
2113 Credit quakity aad impairment
Credit quality of Thrmcinl asscts is ossussed by reftrence 10 externel credit rtings, where avadlble. or to
Mistoricnl infosoation sbout counterpaty delauh raes. AR cownterpantics, including Haiding Compoany. bine
warernal credit ratings dolemained by vorious credit riing agencics. Credit quality of customers is asxessed by
referenca to historical defoulis rotes and preseat ages.
Counterparifos with external credit ratings
“Jhese includo banking companics nad Ffinanciol institutions, which ore counterpartics to bank batances, margin
samins bank guennieet nnd accrued returs on deposits. Credit risk is considered nunimatl os these counterparties
Tieve reasonably high credit rutings us detcimised by varfons crodil rting ogencles. Due (o long stmding
nrsiness relntionships with these countarparties and considering their strong financinl standing, monogement
Jocs vt expest nos-pecformance by these counlerpanties on Lheir obligations to the Company. Foflowing are the
credit totings of counterpartics with cxtemal credit metings:
Rating Ruting 2022 2028
Shoriterm _ Lang term pgeney {RRupees in thousands)
Banlt balgnees
Askarni Bank Eimiled Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,208 421
Bank of Punjab Al AAY PACRA 2,637 104
MCB Book Linditod Al+r AAA PACRA K126 1334
MCBH islomic Bank Limited Al A PACRA Tind 777
Nutiocal Bank of Pakistan Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 11,032 1303
23,198 10.46¢
Margin ngainst hank guaranice
Asknri Bank Linited Al+ AA® PACRA 15,000 15.000
Margin agalasi Letter of Credits
MCB Istamic Bonk Linited Al A PACRA . -
38,198 15461
HoMling Cotapany
Maple Loaf Cement Fuclory Limiled Al A VIS 2,164,882 1082642
282 Liguidity risk

1.iquidicy sisk is the risk that the Company will encountir dilTiculty i meeting the obligmions assovisted with s
financind llabilitics thit aee scttied by duliwering cush or another financiul asset, of that yuch obligations will have
10 be scitled in a manner upfovorable 10 (e Company. The Coinpany finances ils oparations through equity mad
working caphaf with o vicw fo maintaining an approprisie mix between varicus sources of finsace to mrnimize
rigk.

Uhimate respousibility foe lquidity risk management cests with the Board of Directors, whith hus built s
appropriac liquidity risk insnagement framework for the nianagenient of the Comnpany’s short, medivm aod
Jengsterm Funding st tiuidity management requirements. The Corpany manages liuidity risk by maimuining
adequale reserves, banking focilities and seserve borrowing facilitics, by continucusly manitoring foreenst and
uctual cash Aows red meiching e maturily profiks of fnancial asscis nad linbilities. Included in note 9 of these
Jnnncial simements e Ricilitics that the Company bas a ils disposal v frther reduce Nquidity risk. Q&\
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28.3.1n)

Exposurs lo Uqwidily visk
Confractan! meutaritics of ffancial Hakititles, Incliding estiniated interest payments

Tho following are the remaining controctual maturilios al the reporting dats. The nmames are grossed and
wndiscounted, end include estimated interest payments and excluds the impnet of newing sgreamuss,

piiyed
Carrying Contractual  Oneyoaror  Oae o thece
amounlt cush fTows less yeurs
Nog-derivaive frumelpt finbilides svmeeraveessen-= (Rupees in thousandsy = - o xv R L
Trade nnd ather payaties 63,5938 63,938 63,933 -
63,938 63,933 §3.938 —
2021
Comrying Comrncised  Opeyearor  Onetoithree
amount eash flows less years
Non-dorivative Priggiol lishilifes sevemenessineens (Rugpos io thousanls) - - - - - -
Trade und oder payables 32,006 32,096 32096 -
Shost 1erra borrowvings 30,000 30,000 30,099 -
Accrued nark-up 624 624 624 -
62,720 62,720 62,720 -

Market rish

Muskol risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such a3 foreign exchange rafes, interest ree ad cquity
prices will effect the Company's icome of the value of jis haklings of financial instrumems. The objeciive of
murket risk momigament is to menage and conirol waekel risk axposures within ncooptable paranwiers, while
oplitnizing returm.

Curraney risk

‘The Company is oxposed t currency fisk to the exient U there s w misich between e currencies in which
advances, sules aod purchises and bank balancas are denoninsted and the respeetive fenctional qurrency ol the
Company, The. flusctional cumrency of the Corapany is Pak Rupee. The corrsney in which e nkgar porchase
trunsactions are pelinicily donosminated f US dollas,

Expostre te currency risk
The summarized quantitative data nbowt the Company's exposure to currency risk as reporied 10 the manstpencat

of the Company is as follows. The Gmares represem foreign cusrency batances after conversion in Pak Ropees
using exchange rates prevadling M the stiemend of finnncial poshiion date,

AUn
uso RMB Rupees

Fhmoyclel labilities =000 eee=s « =v-{Amount in thousands)~-----
‘Teade and other payables {2-4) {16} {5,:464)
Net statornens of fisanclal poxition expasire 14) {16} {5.464)
QU staeucne of Bnancial nosidon frems

Quistanding letiers of credit {59} - {12,179)
Net axposure {83) (16} {17,635)

s
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Eowmncun] fiabilites
Teada and other ) {28) {1.704}
Net starement of fincincial position expasure {6} {28) (1.704)
Off garemant of fuerncid pasition items
Quistanding Jorters of credit {200} - {31.508)
Net exposure {206} 28 133.212)
Exchange rates applied aring the yeur
“The foliowing significunt excliongs mics bive bevn applied during the year
2022 1021 2021 021
ush RAMB UsD RMRB
Reperting date spol rate
- sefling 20550 Jo.83 15754 2439
Avcrage vatc for (ha year 178.01 2157 $60.30 24.20

Sensithvity analysls

A repsonnbly possible sirengtheiing 7 (weskening) off 10% tn Pnk Rupec agaiast the following currencics wonld
e ulfbcied the mensurement of financiod instnanenis denominnied in forvige currency ond affecied sinfemend
of prafit or loss by the smounts shown below at the sintement of fnsncial position date, The analysis assumes
{hoe all othes variables. i partfeulor fnerest ries. remin consiont and ignores any impact of forecasn prchases.

Beerease in profll due to
increase ia exchange rate at
the ysarend
2022 02)
{Rupees in thousands)

usp {193) 95)
RMB 4% 68)

These will Bave opposite offect on profii on reduction in exchange raie of the yeor end,

Currency risk monagenent

Sinco txe prximumm anount exposed to currency risk is 0,07 (2021: 0.03%) of the Company’s tota] asscts, ony
adverse / fevorable movement in fooctional cusrency with respect 10 US Pollor and RMB will not howe ony
maicrint impaet on the oporational results,

{nterest rate risk

{terest sae rigk is the risk iba Tair values or Rore cash Nows of n financial instrument will Auciuse becouso of

chonges in interest ries, Sensitivily « interest mie risk ogiges from mismatch of fnancinl asseis and (Tnancint
liobilities tkat mature o re-price in a given period.

@“ﬁ
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Fixed rate fluancinl instraments

The effective inlerest / mark-op rotes for intcrest £ mark-up beaeing Muoncit! instruents ars wontioned n
relewant nates 10 e Minancial stsenenss,

The Contpmy does not secout for say Gxed cue (innncial asscts aul labilities of fair wlue theongh, stisement
of profi or lags. Thercfore, a change in inark-up 7 interest rates at the reponting date would aol affact stowmont
of profii of loss.

ariobi ngucial s ey
2022 2021
Fimnncial Fluanchal Financint Faonenl
assels linbiliies RISCLY Tiobililics
(Rapees in thousand) {Rupees in thousand)
Nan-derlvative faapclyl instraments
Long term Jann 1o Holding Compony 2,000,000 - 1.000.060 .
Shost torm borrowings - - - 30400
Bank bidance 2360 B 9.94] .
2&12& - 1,609,941 30,000
1 i} e jabl 1y

A rensavably possible change of 100 basis poinis in intercst rales 2t the reporting daie wankd have {decrensed) /
increased profit by amounts shown below. The analysis assumes that off other vaniables, i pasticuloe forcign
exclumge rales, remain Constinl,

2B mi
{Rupees in thousands}

Variable re instromenis 2024 9.799
Decrgase of 100 bagis polvts
Variable (e iostnumens {20228 {9,799)

The semsitivity analysis propawed is nol necessarily indicative of the efTects on prolit Tor the year and the
oustunding lickilities ol tve Company s the year e,

Intarese rate risk maugesient

The Company marages thess mismatches tirouph risk management sirmcgics where signilicant changes in gop
position can be adjusied. The Company’s significant borrowings are based on voriable rale priciag that is mostly
dependent on Karachi Inter Bank Offer Rote {"KIDOR™) as indicnied in respective notes,

P'rice risk

Price risk represems the risk that the falr value or Auure cash Bows of fimancial instroment will fluclome becouse
of chonges in macket prices, other than those arising [rom fnterest rate risk or cumency risk. whether thase
chonges sre coused by fhetors specifie to the Individuul financisl insurunient or its iosper, or factors affecting all
similne financial instruments. The Company is current by nol exposed o price risk.
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Finasckl insteuments-fdr valucs
Fair valuc is the price that would be received o sell an asset af paid w0 dmasiec 3 Nability in an orderly ransaetion between niwdtel participunts of the ineasurcaent date.

Underiying the definition of Rair vilue is tie presimpiion it e Conpany is 3 goiug conccr and shere 15 10 imention or fequirement W ctrtuil manrisly the scale of ks aperations or (0 ikdertake drinsaction
Ol dverse s,

A financial instrument is pegarded s yuoted v an sctive marke if’ quoted prices are readily oud regolarly availoble from as exchange dealer, ivoker, industry group. pricing service, of reguiatory agency, and
those prices represcat acwmt atd regulatly ocemTing markel ransactions on ap aru's kengih basis,

{FRS 13 'Fair Vel Measurcment’ requires the Compuny (0 classily fuic valuc measurements and fsir vidue hiccaschy that reflcets ke significance of i inpids used in making the aeasnraincnts of fair value
hivrwchy hus the following lovels:

B Quoted prices (uradjusied) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilitics (Lewet 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within lovet § that are observalde for the assed cither directly (that is. derived from prices) (Level 2)

- Enputs For the assct or liabitity thes ane 0oy based on obscrvalie morkes kia (that is, waadjusied inpus (Level 3}

Transfor between levels of the f3ir value hierarchy wre recagnized at the end of the reporing. peviod doring which ihie changes hisve accurred.

Carrying Awonnt Fabr Value
Financia) Oler Anuncial Totak Level { Lavel2 Level3
RESCIS WL linbtbitios ut
‘wnorlised cost  amortscd cost
OQu-stntescnt of finaociul position finuacial instruments Now {Rupecs in thousands)
Financial assets measored at fair value . - - - - - -
[] e lgee
Accrucd suark-up 27 - 32417 - . N
Casle 304 bank brlunces 23.668 . 13,668 - . .
Due front the 1lolding Company 132,506 . 132,506 - - -
Loug tenn Soan o Holding Compuny 2460000 - 2,600,000 . - -
Maecgin agninst bagk gnaraolee 15.060 - 15000 - - .
2.1 2.203.681 - 2,263,681 - . .
Financinl Hubilities measured at fair vatlue - - - - - -
f ilitig: YITEY ruing

“Veade aud other payobled - 63938 63,938 - . -

2.4 - 63,934 63.938 - - . g&



Corrying Aount Fair Value
Finanolal ossel  Othor financinl Tolat tavd § Level 2 (evel 3
at amortised linbilitles w
cosl smoclised cost

Oa-statestent of financial pasition financial instwaucs G {Rupecs in thousaads)
39 Sune 2028
Financial assels nicasured o foir valuo - - - . - -
Necrued atark-up 24,402 . 25492 . - .
Cash sud bank balunces 11,002 - 11,002 - . -
Duss frors the Haolding Campany 61,228 - 61,223 B - .
Long 1enn Joan to Holding Company 1,040,000 - 1,060,000
Margin against bank gusrukes 15,000 - 15,000 - - .

Fi ¥ 1.108.719 - 1.108.719 - « .

]

Finuncial liabititics measnrad al Gir valoe . . - . . .
Trade ond other payabies - 32,096 .09 . - .
Short tem botrowilip - 30,000 30.000 . . B
Acerued muark-up - 624 G24

i - g e - : :
W0 The Conpairy firs 1ot discloged the fir values of thatie financial sssets aud Nnbilitics as these aco Tor shord werar or roprise over shon lenn, Fherefure, icir carryling smounis aro ressorable

approximstion of folr vilue,

292 Buildings an feaschold luod, plmxt, machinery und electricak insinllations have been carricd ot revilued wnguits detenmined by profiessicast valucrs ghevel 3 muensurcoent) based on their assestment of’

the murket vohuat as disclosed in ot 6. The valuations sre conducted by the valuntion expent 2ppointed by the Compuny. Fhe saluation cxpen used 3 neadet based approach to amrive o Wi falr value of
tie Compruty's propertics. For rovaluntion of bulldings an feashold buid, construction specifications were noted [or cuch building and structure and new construction rates are applied according (o
consiruction specifications for current replacament values, After detcrminiig cucrent replnctment valees, deprociation wis calenlated W dotorming e currest oxsossed nurket vilie, For ravalumtion of
pluut aud machinery and electrical installations, supplicrs and different moanfacuscing consultants in Pakiston and sbroad were coikasted to coltect inforntution vogarding curront prices of comparabl
power pla 1o delenming cuirent replaceent value, Faiv deprecistion fucior for cuch item s applicd according 1o their physical conditon, wsape and mainteannce. The offict of ehanges in the
unobscrvable inputs used in the valuations cunnot be detemined with corinindy, accordingly 8 qualitative disclosuee of seusitivity liss not been presented in thess fuancinl statements.

\a




36

31

32

Capital managemes!

The Board's policy i to malntain an efficient capital buse so as to mainiain investor, creditor and
market confldence and to sustain che fimure development of its business. The Board of Directors
monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defnes as operating income divided by
total capital employed.,

The Compeny’s objectives when managing capital are:

- 1o safeguerd the entity's sbility 1o continue as a going concom, so that it can conlinue lo
provide refums for shareholders and bepefits for ather stakeholders.

The Company manages the capilal sructure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets.

There were no changes In the Company’s approach Lo capital management during the year.

Impact of COVID-19 (CORONA VIRUS)

The pandemic of COVID-19 that hes rapidly spread all across the world has not anly endangered
human fives but has also adversely impacted the global economy, However, afler implementing all the
necessary Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to cnsure safety of employees, the Company
continued to carry out iis operations and bas taken all necessary steps (0 ensure smoath and adequate
continuation of its business. Management is aclively monitoring the impact of the pandemic on s
financial condidon, liquidity, operations and workforee, which at this point is not considered to be
significant. Management believes that the Company has sufficient liquidity available to continue 1
meet its financin} commilments for the foreseeabls fulure when they become due. From the very owset
of Covid-19, the management has adopted various policies and practices to minimize adverse impact of
Covid-19 on the business and is continucusly monitoting the situation In order 1o proactively address
any challenges which may arise from Covid-19.

Remuneration of chief excentive, directors and exceutives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year in respect of rewauncration,
including all benefits 16 the Chief Executive, Directors and Executives of the Conipany js s follows:

2022

Directors
Chief Exccutive Non-Executive
{Rupces in thousands)

Exccutives

Managerial remuncration - - 15,828
Perquisites and other benefits - - 8,788

- - 24,616
Numbser of persons as at year end 1 3 8




Directors Exccutives
Chief Executive  Non-Executive
- {Rupees n thousands)
Managerial remuncration - - 13.976
Perquisites and otber benefits - - 7,365
- - 21,842
Number of persons as at year end | 6 6
No remuneration is paid lo chief executive and directors of the Company.
33 Capacity and production
Capacity Aclual Production
2022 202] 2022 2021
MW MWh
Con! fived powor plant 316,500 316,300 265,494 302,017
The normal capacity has been determined on the basis of 330 produttion days keeping in view the
maintepance schedule of the plant. Lower production of power plant is due 1o the lower number of
production duys.
34  Numbcr of employces
The total average number of employecs during the year and as at reporting dato are as follows:
2022 2028
Number of smnployees as at 30 June 59 59
Average number of employees during the venr 58 60
35  Date of autharization of issue
These financial statemnents were auihorized for issve 0n 3/ —C & 22224y 1he Boacd of
Directors of the Companyr@
&
Lahore . .
Chief Executive.

7

2021




ﬁcfs _ ‘ MCB Islamic Bank Ltd.

Islamic

EXTENSION NO. 4
FACILITY ADVISING LETTER

Ref: FRCD/FAL/2021/734
Dated: December 02, 2021

The Chief Financial Officer,
M/5 MAPLE LEAR CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

42- Lawrence Road,
Lahore.

Dear Sir/Madam,

This is with reference to MCB Islamic Bank Limited (the “Bank”), Facility Advising Letter FRCD/2018/FAL/883 dated April
13, 2018 [“FAL") and the following finance facilities availed by you.

FINANCE FACILITIES AVAILED:
1. iminishing Musharkat ! Diminishing Musharkah (SLB}-Already Disbursed n
2. Diminishing Musharksh-lIl/ Diminishing Musharkah (SLB)1i

3. LC Sight (F) For The Import of P&M of solar power project enly)

The Bank would like to inform you that the Bank has decided to extend your finance facilities from 01-December-2021 tilt
31-December-2021 (Extended Period).

SECURITIES, COLLATERAL & TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. Please note that this document is being signed for a period of 01 month(s} within which period the Bank shall issue
fresh facility advising letter and the parties shall execute fresh Agreements for the finance facilities.

2. Please note that securities, collateral & any and all terms and conditions as per the FAL and all other
Agreements/documents executed hetween the parties shall remain unchanged and applicable for the Extended
Period.

3. If you agree with the above terms and conditions, please return the duplicate copy of this Extension to the FAL duly
signed as a token of your acceptance of all the terms and conditions. In case your acceptance / non-acceptance daes
not reach this office within seven (07) days from the date hereof, it shail be deemed that the terms and conditions
are acceptable to you.

4. This Extension to the FAL upon its acceptance shall form an integral part of the above referred FAL,

0 -

For MCB Islamic Bank Limited For MICB Islashic Bank limited i
Unit Head - FRCD Unit Head Financing

Actcepted

For & on behalf of

er\/"\h‘r\ S = 2

Risk Management G.i'oup
60-T, Phase Il, D.H.A,, Lahore {Pakistan)
@ www.mcbislamicbank.com % +92-42-34501000



! MCB Islamic Bank Ltd.

Klamic

FRCD/2021/FAL/S58
Date: Aug 31, 2021

The Chief Executive,

M/S Maple leaf Power Limited
42-Lawrence Road

Lahare,

Dear Sir,

DDENBUM FACILITY ADV|SI ER
with reference to your request regarding addition of financing facilities, we are pleased to advise you that the
following financing facilities have been approved by the competent authority subject to the terms and conditions
detailed below:

Nature & Amount of Limit(s}):

~ Facility: Bank Guarantee n
Purpose: For the issuance of Performance guarantee in favour of Pak Railways and allied
departments
Tenor: 2 years
Service Charges: 0.20% p.q.
[1.¢] PKR26.0M | cash Margin: 20% / SOP {whichever is higher)
Security:
20% cash margin,
JPP over current assets of the company with 256% margin ©
JPP over fixed assets of the company with 25% margin ¢
Repayment arrangement: Upon redemption of original guarantee instrument.
Facility: SLC fereign under Wakala —One Off
Status: One off-Fresh
Purpose: To establish services L.C's for maintenance of the plamt
Margin: Nil/ $BP (whichever is higher)
Service Charges: 0.05% p.q.
[1 '] [pKR 45.0 M} Tenure: At Sight

Securlty:
Lien over import titie documents.

JPP over current assets of the company with 25% margin

” JPP over fixed asscts of the company with 25% margin
Repayment arrangement: Through own sources.

+ Conditions: )
«er> v Processing fee @ PXR 100,000 {excluding FED)
“ & The company will maintain an average balance of PKR 5-10 Mn in account maintained with MCB Istamic
Bank limited, any shortfall during the month will be compensated with month end balance,
All other terms and conditions as per earlier offer letter Ref: FRCD/2020/FAL/814 Dated: October U5, C will
remain unchanged.

Risk Management Group -
60-T, Phase II, D.H.A., Lahore (Pakistan)
@ www.mcbisiamicbank.com t +92-42-34501000
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MOCB Islamic Bank Ltd.

Islamic

We trust that the above facilities fulfil your requirements and hope to continue this prosperous relationship with
you.

Yours faithfully

=

\@%} ' .
For and on Behalf w Islamic Bondo Lot For and en Behalf of MCB Istamic Bank Lid

Relationship Manage Unit Head Finarcing Rigk Control

\
An oo V"0
Q 9 o’ .' [} \‘y ~
Far crid cn Behdlf of
14/8 Manle lcaf Power Limited

Pasc2ol2

Financing Risk Control Division
59-T, Phase |I, DHA, Lahore
@ www.mcbislamicbank.com . +92-42-34501000
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Ref. ERCD. 2020 FALB14

Dated: October 052 2020

The Chief Executive,
M/S MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore.

Dear Sir,

We are pleased to adyise that the following Financing Limit(s) hasshave been made available for M:S MAPLE
' LEAF POWER LIMITED (the “Customer™), as approved by the competent authority titi 31% August 2021 on the
terms and conditions as contained herein and/or in accompanying documents-legal agreements.

{ Sr.No | _Amount ! Facility Structure
E Rs 400.00% ; Facility: LC <'ght-Foreign

8= wnual renewal .
rurpose; To facilitale procurement of raw material items inciuding furnace oil. diesel. coal stores/ spares
& light machinery for the power plant only. TBML sheet will be attached in approval email [or exact detais
Margin; Nil / SBP jwhichever is higher) :
Service Charges: 0 05% p.q(flat}
Tenure: At sight
Security: Llen over import fitle Jocuments. i
Repayment Arrangement: Through own sources and / of from import Murabana ne
' . Note: Shipping Guerantee can be aliowed for specific raquest by cirent for 3 spec:be shipment
! ] import LC ageinst 110% cash margin of the valug of presentod docs

fral  [Rs 100 J0M] Facility: LC Sight-Local
; Status: Annual renewal H
' : Purpose: Ta facllitate local progurement of raw malerial items including furnace ofl. diesel, coal. stares: |
‘ spares & lighl machinery for the power plant only. TBML sheet will be attached in aoprovat emanl iy exant |
detalls. i
Margin: 25% / SBP (whichever is higher) ;
Service Charges: 0.05% p.q (fiat) :
. Tenure: Al sight !
i Security: :
( «  Lien over lille documenls
i

X

¢ Ranking charge uver CA of the company with 25% margin (e Rs.13dM}
Repayment Arrangement: Through own sourges and / or from Murabana line
Note: Shipping Guarantee can be ailowed for Specific reques! by cissmmt for § Spacids ehipmants amsn
: LC against 110% cash margin of the vaive of presenled docs
bl - |Rs.25C.00M Facility: Murabaha - impert
. Status: Annual renewal

|

! i Purpose: For retirement of documents drawn under ling # 1 :
| Margin: 25% / SBF (whichever i3 higher) !
1‘ - Pricing: RTK+0.80% p.a :

Tenure: 120 days
Security:

. : »  JPP charge over CAs of the company lo the wne of Rs 4574,

i »  JPP charge over Fixed assets of ine company wilh 25% margin

N Repayment Arrangement: Through company own sources

el . [Rs.100.00M) FacHity: Murabaha - Local

Status: Annual renewal

Purpose: For relirement of documents drawn under line # 1.2 .

: : Margin: 25% i SBP {whichever is higher) . S

| Pricing: RTK+09%0% pa

Tenure: 120 day ' ? ,JV\ N




[1.bi] |Rs 100.00M] Facility: Musharakah Running Finance A :
Status: Annual renewat MCOB Istamic Bank Ljtd.
Purpase: To meet working capital requirements of the company.
: Margin: 25%/ SBP (whichever is higher)

i Pricing: RTK+1.00% p.a

; ; Tenure: 1 year

Security: As perline # [1.b},

Repayment Arrangement: Through company own sources i B
Total Rs.400.00M I Collateral (Covering Entire Exposure): Cross-corporate guarantee ¢f M/s Mag:e Leaf Cement Faclory -
| Limited. ;

Note: A processing fee of 0.124% (excluding F.E.D) of total limits offered will be submitted in
favor of MIB prior to utilization of facility communicated above

Special Terms & conditions:

s All above facilities are subject to ¢iean CIB report.

¢  For renewal/structuring /processing of facilities fee will be charged as per MIB SOBC

» All drawdowns/issuance shall be subject to mutually agreed Shariah process flow and

~ compliance of FAL terms and conditions.

. ¢ Board Resolution for obtaining financing facilities from -MIB- to be provided before
disbursement.

¢ Document under LC should be retired on first presentation by the borrower from their own
source.in nom case should any forced facility allowed.

e Goods being imported must be as per Government policy and Shariah ciearance also it
commodities fall under new Govt Palicy list of 100% cash margin commodities then margin
will provided accordingly and in case of conventional insurance. Shariah clearance to be
held on record.

¢ Valid Performa invoice should be provided before establishment of LC. Satisfactory credi
report on beneficiary will be obtained before opening of LC.

+ Ifthere are any over dues in PAD, no further LC should be opened despite avaitability of
cushion in the approved LC timit. In case of Outstanding PAD the LC (sight) limit will be
reduced accordingly.

¢ Eachtransaction under clubbed lines must be liquidated by internal cash flows of the concern
& not by drawing upon cushion available in the other line,

¢ Facility are available after completion of all formalities

”~ e Bank has the authority to debit our account for recovery of profil.. stamp form issuance
charges, prepayment penalties & other charges etc. if any as per listed schedule of charges,
All late pavments charges shall be as per agreements,

¢+ Detailed as per BBFS format prescribed by bank should be provided at least once in a vear
and whenever any changes in ownership, key management or credit rating or substantial
changes in financing arrangement with other bank/Fls changes in details of associated units
takes into account.

¢ Allrequisite charge forms to be submitted, duly filled in (clectronic / hard form) and signed
by the authorized persons.

*  All security / finance documents should be completed in all respect before allowing amy
disbursement.

* _[n no case withdrawal will be allowed in excess of the approved limit. By accepting this

N, $' =7 Facility Advising Letier you undertake that no preferential treatment shall be given to any
%) financial institution / bank with regard to nature of security. ranking. margin ete in charge
{0 A A /2"“ and insurance coverage.
<'7 ‘”, Nt Pe  Facilities are approved subject to no regulatory breach, compliance o PRs, Bank Palicy cte
q)\%@ .Compliance of SBP PRs, Forex regulations, Financing Policy, Shariah Guidelines and
AN 'M}I’UCHOHS of otler regulatory authorities must be complied with. "
(L

3 /
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e The customer agrees 1o keep the contents of this letter strictly confidential and not1o disclose
the terms and conditions contained herein to external parties, to any person other than the

Dircctors, employees, accountants, attorneys and other advisors, only on a “need to know™
basis.

¢ In case of delay in payment, charity amount to be charged as per Agreements’ Shariah
directives which will be utilized for charitable purpose approved by the Bank’s Sharia
Board.

Covenants

e Any change in vwnership/strategic control during tenancy of Banks financing shall require
bank’s prior ¢learance,

e The customer shall ensure that financial ratios do not fall below 1the requirement under

ﬂ ) Prudential Regulations or as may be specified / subsequently specified by the Bank.
* o While declaring any cash dividend / profit distribution there should be no bank dues in
arrears or prior NOC should be in place.

¢ The Customer shall not, without prior written consent of the Bank, amend and/ or alter any
of the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association / other constitutive
documents The Customer shall also inform the Bank in writing and immediately. of any
plans to change its shareholding structure/directorship/partnership. In the event the Bank
thereafter concludes that such a change may impair the Customer’s credit standing. the Bank
reserves the right to require the Customer to effect prepavment of the facility’ facilities,
including all accrued profit, and all other charges applicable thereon.

» The Customer shall not, without the prior written consent of the Bank. undertake any action
and/or omission that may result in any encumbrances being created on or against the
securities / collateral or any of them provided to the Bank whereby the securities / collateral
available with the Bank are or may in any way become adversely aftected.

Other Terms & Condition(s)

e The Bank reserves the right 1o add, amend or alter any condition {except those. which are

~ prohibited by the regulator and Shari'ah Board) at its discretion.

e “The facilities granted are subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s Prudential Regulation /
restrictions and Financing Policies as may be imposed from time to time. These facilities are
being offered with the understanding that the Customer/ company’s {inancial condition will
comply with these regulations and other regulatory requirements as well. the compliance of
which depends on the Customer’s actions / performance.”

* Audited accounts should be submitted to the Bank within four (4) months from the Jate of
tinancial year end. Whereas half yearly accounts should be submitted within two (2) months,
in both cases it shall be submitted to the Bank within 7 days of its finalization. Anv further
break up/ details or  interim/ in-house report required by Bank to be provided immediately,
Details of liability (fund based & non-tund / contingent) towards our Bank or other lenders
shall be appropriately reflected in Annual A/Cs of the concern & / or note forming its integral

: part. in appropriate manner with name of the Bank(s)lenders reflected therein,
e d Alllevies and taxes now orat any time hereafler levied and payable in respect of'the tinancial
! f P, . accomunodation and banking facilities set out in this letter will be exclusively borne by the
L)

f ustomer.
. All requisite charge forms to be submitted, duly filled in and signed by the aathorized
St/ persons. Security held by Bank against one limit, at Bank's own discretion, shatl be availabl .

Risk Management Group : - et > iPaksian)
Ro e it v



MCB Islamic Bank Ltd.

o During the tenancy of the Bank’s exposure or financing arrangement, for any change in
directorship — prior consent in writing must be obtained from the Bank. Othterwise the Bank
shall have the right to recall the Financing / exposure 7 financing arrangement immediately.

¢+ Facilities shall not be allowed in excess of approved limits.

¢ The Customer agrees to keep the contents of this letter strictly confidential and not to
disclose the terms contained herein to any other person or financial institution except as may
be required by law.

» In case the Customer has obtained any loan from Directors, Subsidiaries or Affiliates, it shall
be the responsibility of the Customer to ensure that the Directors, Subsidiaries and Affiliates
shall execute a Subordination Agreement as required by the Bank.

¢ By executing and accepling this letter, the Customer hereby irrevocably and unconditionally
undertakes (0 keep the Bank indemnified for and all losses which the Bank may incur or

~ sultered in this regard.

»  The Customer shall pay to the Bank all amounts due on their due date. Any indebtedness
which is not paid when due shall, inter alia, constitute an event of default and the Bank will
be entitled to cancel the facility and exercise its right under the law for recovery of all or any
such outstanding amounts as determined by the Bank.

¢ The customer undertakes that all the information submitted to the Bank w.rt the
company/directors/associated concerns etc. is accurate. The Bank reserves the right 1o
terminate financing/take legal action if any false/misleading information was knowingly
passed on or necessary facts were deliberately concealed by the customer with the intention
of sabotaging the process of customer due diligence.

¢ The customer undertakes to utilize the disbursed amount strictly as per the stated
purpose/requirement. The Bank reserves the right to terminate financing/take legal action if
lunds are found misappropriated and/or used for a cause contrary to the purpose/requirement
of the financing facility approved by the Bank. Further, by executing/accepting this letter,
the customer undertakes that he/she/it shall in no way be associated with activities that
involve or are reminiscent of Money Laundering and/or Financing of Terrorisni (ML/FT).
Strict action, as

f‘ e per regulatory instructions/internal policies, and law shall be taken against any such
suspicious activity identified by the Bank.

® Baserate is defined as simple average (average of the KIBOR rates quoted by banks for that
day) of three month Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate (“KIBOR) prevailing on the Base Rate
sctting date.

‘s The Base Rate will be set on the first day of every month. The "KIBOR” rates used for
reference will be taken from Reuters page “KIBOR?”, as published at 11.30 a.m. Pakistan
Standard Time by the Financial Markets Association (FMA). In the event that this rate is
not published on Reuters on the rate fixing date or if less than 8 banks provide their rates for
the KIBOR f{ixing, the FMA or other relevant market body will be contacted for the relevant
fixing rate.

In the normati course the Customer may rely upon the above facility till 31 August 2021 but
please note that in accordance with normal banking practice, the facility is repavable on demand
and the Bank reserves the right to vary lhe terms and condition andlor asl\ for ummdmlx

%




MOCB Islamic Bank L.td,

If the Customer agrees with the terms and conditions of this Facility Advising Letier, please return
the duplicate copy with each page duly signed as token of your acceptance of the aforementioned
terms and conditions within 15 days from the date hereof,

‘Qfs I'aijfu!l)'; 2 ' P
- W-_
,ﬁ\ OQ-I.‘.‘Q;ER(, Head FRC Relffionship Manager -

J'/ % uzﬁ,w ’

A

Customer

Risk ManagementGroup' CPhase t DHAL Lahore (Pakistan)
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NITED

3.21. In case financial performance of the company based on latest annual accounts to be submitted to the
bank, shows deteriorating financial condition, the bank would have right to review/reduce the credit lines
accordingly.

3.22. Customer hereby undertakes that it will pay commission upto 2% to the extent of shortfall in their
business as per carmmitment. (For LC's LG’s)

3.23. The Client further undertakes and ensure to utllize the facility (ies} strictly for the purposes for which the
Client has requested and also under the terms of approval of the Bank. The Client further unconditionally
undertakes that if the facility (ies) are used for any other purpose(s) other than approved, or are deviated by
the Client in any manner whatsoever, for which the Bank shall be the sole judge, the Bank shall be at liberty to
proceed in the manner the Bank considers appropriate, including but not limited to forthwith cancel/suspend
the facility {ies} and the Client shall be responsible for any consequences thereof,

. ! . Please note that the contents of this Banking facilities letter states some of the indicative terms and conditions

on the basis of which the facility/ facilities requested by the Client will be granted. However, the Bank reserves
the right to, without prior notice, modify or cancel the terms and conditions upon which the facilities shall be
granted or to revoke the entire indicative terms and conditions to grant the facility itself, and nothing
contained in this letter should be construed as a legaliy binding commitment on the part of the Bank to grant
the requested facility/ facilities.

Kindly confirm your agreement and acceptance of the aforementioned terms and conditions by signing and
affixing your Company'’s stamp on the duplicate of this letter and thereafter return the same to the Bank fer its
record.

We trust that the above shall be to your satisfaction.

Yours sincerely,
For Askari Bank Ltd

For and on behaif of M/s Maple Leaf Power Limited

\))(-J .
%M.\;.. L} p——

{kdﬁ'lo

The Company hereby acceptSahdspre
Directors to this effegt

7

Witness 1: Witness 2:
Name: KWO J Smg’( Name:
CNICH: 35 28l - y§ 82 CNIC #

. 2. Lanlnanitt Yot dress:

Askaribank Limited, Regional Credit Administration Department, (RCAD) Lahore,
3rd Floor, 47-Bank Square, The Mall, Lahore - Pakistan, PABX: + 92 42 37229745-7,
SWIFT: ASCMPKKA, URL: www.askaribank.com.pk
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M/s Maple Leaf Power Limited 21/CBUL/636
42-Lawrence Road June 04, 2021
Lahore

Subject: BANKING FACILITIES

Dear Sir,

With reference to your request letter dated , we Askarl Bank Limited (hereafter refer
to as “Bank”) are pleased to inform you that the Bank has, in principle, approved the following in favor of you,
M/s Maple Leaf Power Limited {hereafter known as the “Client”}, which are to be utilized strictly in
accordance with the terms and conditions mentioned hereunder:

1. DETAILS OF FACILITIES:

PKR in Million
Sré FACILITIES LIMITS o/s EXPIRY RATE OF RETURN
1 | 6* 50.000 10.000 A APSC
11 | LC(s) (40.000) ; 31-12-2021 01%pq. |
12 |G {40.000) . 31.12-2021 APSC
13 | LG-OTT* (5.000) 5.000 A APSC__

3rd Floor, 47-Bank Square, The Mall, Lahore - Pakistan, PABX: + 92 42 3722974
SWIFT: ASCMPKKA, URL: www.askaribank.com.pk

A Continuing Guarantee. Till decision of Sindh High Court, Karachi.
*Existing outstanding liability against LG — OTT of PKR 5 M approved will be transferred to LG.

Purpose:

LG: To issue guarantee in favor of The Director, Excise & Taxation (Taxes-Il}, Karachi

LC (S): For import of spares, equipment and machinery spare parts

$G: For release of imported cansignment in absence of shipping documents. Tenor: 30 Days

Repayment:

LG: On expiry/Return of original guarantee instrument as per credit policy

LC (S} Documents to be retired by the client on first presentation through own sources
$G: On return of original instrument/redemption as per credit manual

Security Structure:

LG: 100% cash margin

LC (5): Lien on import documents
$G: 100% cash margin

2. AND such other securities as may reasonably be requested by the Bank fram time to time. In addition, the
Bank shall have a banker's lien on all your deposits, accounts and properties held with the Bank. The security
and other agreements, negotiable instruments and documents to be executed by client in faver of the Bank
shall be in form and substance satisfactory to the Bank.

3. Other Terms & Conditions: Client will comply with the following general terms and conditions:
3.1. The Client will bear all costs and expenses and reimburse the amount paid by the Bank forthwith after

receiving the Banks' demand for payment. In addition, client will a13q be responsible for all costs and expenses
(including litigation costs and lawyer's fees) incurred by the Ban @ svoring any amount, i

itigation or otherwise or in enforcing your obligations to the : ’ a‘ Atk
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3rd Flodr, 47-Bank Square, The Mall, Lahore - Pakistan, PABX: + 9
SWIFT: ASCMPKKA, URL: www.askaribank.com.pk f

L)

3.2. Ali expenses, including legal and valuation fees and incidental costs, incurred by the Bank in relation to the
granting of the facilities and the taking, registering and enforcing, if necessary, of securities relating thereto
shait be charged to the Client and the Client will duly liquidate the same, as and when required by the Bank.

3.3. The Client will not, without the prior written intimation to the Bank, amend and/ or alter any of the
provisions of your Memorandum and Articles of Association/ Bye laws/ other constitutive documents (as the
case may be). The Client will aiso inform the Bank in writing and immediately, of any plans to change your
shareholding structure. In the event the Bank thereafter concludes that such a change may impair your
standing credit, the Bank reserves the right to require the Client to effect a prepayment of the facility/
facilities, including all accrued mark-up, commissions, charges, fees and all moneys arising from the
facility/facilities by acceleration.

3.4. The Client will provide the Bank with a duly certified true copy of your audited annual balance sheet
prepared by your external auditors in accordance with standard applicable accounting principles as in force in
Pakistan, together with your profit and {oss statements and a detailed fist of your debtors and creditors,
immediately after its issuance, but in any case no later than 4 months after the close of your financial year.
{Quarterly account of public limited companies should be obtained within 45 days frem the quarter end.}. In
case financials performance of the company based on the latest annual accounts to be submitted to the bank
shows deteriorating financial conditions, the bank would have right to review/ reduce the credit lines
accordingly.

3.5. The Client will undertake to pay all taxes, duties and levies 3s may be required to be paid by the Client or
the Bank on the facilities herein advised and on the sale of the goods/ assets to the Bank or on the repurchase
of the goods/ assets from the Bank. Such taxes, duties and levies shall include all taxes payable by the Bank
pursuant to any law, enactment, order or rule {excluding tax on the corporate income of the Bank), on an
amount of the purchase price/ mark-up price outstanding against the Client or on the facilities herein advised.
The Client will undertake to pay/ reimburse the Bank any and all taxes, duties and levies {excluding tax on the
corporate income of the Bank) as may be imposed or levied upon the Bank in any manner arising from any
finance/mark-up agreement which may be executed or from the facilities herein advised or from or in respect
of any amounts payable by the Client to the Bank. For such taxes, duties and levies, the Bank shall be entitled
and empowered to debit your account with the Bank for such payments, irrespective of any dispute regarding
such payment between the Client and the Bank. Furthermore, the client will gross-up its payments in case any
deductions or withholding is required to be made by the client under any applicable law for the time being so
as to ensure that receives and retains a sum equal to the net amount that the Bank may have received in case
such deduction or withhalding was not required to be made in terms hereof.

3.6. The Client will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank borrow any money or manies or avail
any other finance or mark-up facility from any other banks/ financial institutions or any other person. Any
indebtedness in respect of borrowed monies by the client which is neither (a) paid when due or (b) paid if it
becomes due and payable before its normal maturity, shall, inter alia, constitute an event of default and the
Bank will be entitled to exercise its right under the iaw for recovery of all ar any such outstanding.

3.7. The availability and/or utilization of credit line shall be subject to the State Bank of Pakistan's Credit/

- Exchange Control, Prudential Regulations and Clear/Clean CIB Report, and any other relevant policy, regulation

or rule which may be affected from time to time, by any competent authority and/ or regulatory body, as
determined by the Bank.

mw’ﬂ

ipank Limited, Regional Credit Administration Departmen
T7229745- 7
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3.9. In the event of default in payment of principal amount or mark-up or commission on the relevant due
dates, the Bank shall have the right, power and authority to charge liquidated demages and other amounts,
costs, charges and expenses, etc as may be agreed or specified in any agreement, instrument, or document
governing the facilities.

3.10. Subject to the furnishing/execution of fresh agreements and documents and any necessary amendments
which the Bank may in its sole discretion decide to incorporate, all the terms and conditions of the
agreements/arrangements governing the facllities previously granted to the Client will continue hereto, and
the Client will be liable to pay the total outstanding amounts(s) together with all appficable mark-up, costs,
commissions, charges and expenses and any other levies that the Bank may impose from time to time.

3.11. Any disbursement by the Bank under these facility/facilities shall be subject to calcutation of the Drawing
n Power Limit, based on the security held and the stock reports submitted by the Client or by the Muccadam
appointed by the Bank.

3.12. The Client will not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, undertake any action and/or omission
that may result in any encumbrances being created on or against the securities / collateral / credit support or
any of them provided to the Bank, whereby the securities / collateral / credit support available with the Bank
are or may in any way become adversely affected.

3.13. The Client will execute or cause to be executed all such instruments, deeds or documents, which the
Bank may in its sole discretion require.

3.14. The Client will furnish alt such information, as the Bank may responsible at any time and from time to
time require relating to the position of the security, collateral, credit support, goods and pecuniary liabilities.

3.15. The Client will keep the goods/security/collateral/credit support/property fully insured covering ail
possible risks with an insurance company acceptable to the Bank for a sum not less than value of assets and
the Bank shall be designated as the beneficiary of such insurance policy and the Client will deliver to the Bank
copies of receipts evidencing payment of the premium, [n respect thereto.

3.16. The Client will keep, maintain and protect the interest of the Bank in any and all securities provided to
" the Bank and the Client will not to undertake any act of commission or omission by which the payment of any
amount payable to the Bank or any of the Securities are in any manner adversely affected.

3.17. The Client wili create and furnish the Bank with any and all such other securities as the Bank may require
from time to time and to fulfili all documentation and other formalities required for perfecting the security /
collateral / ¢credit support in favor of the Bank.

3.18. The Client shall give 2 time’s reciprocity business by way of import documents pass through the Bank’s
counters, calculated against the tunded facilities with the Bank.

3.19. in the normal course of business, the above facilities are valid upto and repayable on 31-12-2021 at
,  which time it will be reviewed and renewed at our sole discretion. However, we reserve the right to terminate
the facilities at our discretion whereupon all outstandings with us will be repayabie immediately.

3.20. Any other bank charges/ penalties applicable as per Bank Sche
website www.askaribank.com will be charged during the course of Avai
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November 25, 2020
MCB/GEN/2020/876

M/s. Maple Leaf Power Limited

42-Lawrance Road, Lahore
{Hereinafter referred to as the "Company”)

Eacility Advising Letter (FAL)
Dear Sir,

With reference to your request regarding renewal of credit facilities, we are pleased to advise that the following credit
facilities have been approved the competent authority, subject to the terms and conditions detailed below:

mentioned otherwise

Amounts in Millo
: =

= ¢ e

inP
ig

G
“'X_“:'};&? s
TPMR+5 0.050% p.q

%

1.1 LETTERO Renewal On
CREDIT SIGHT Unchanged Basis

31.12.2021

Purpose: For import of raw materials i.e. coal.
Security:
s Corporate Guarantee of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited. , Collateral Value: 500,000,000, Security Margin (%):
0.00
» Lien over Import Documents., Collateral Value: 500,000,000, Security Margin (%): 0.00
Tenor: At Sight
Principal Repayment Terms: L.C sight will be retired through own sources / cash flows of the company / FATR
Profit/Markup/Commissfon repayment term: At the time of establishment of LC.

11 INLAND LETTER OF | Renewal On 0.000% See sl
CREDIT SIGHT Unchanged <500.600> Below TPMR 0.050% 31.12.2021
<within 1> Basis +5% oL |
Purpose: For import of raw materials i.e coal
Security: .
+ (LIEN ON IMPGRT DOCUMENTS ) Lien over Import Documents., Collateral Value: 560,600,000.00, Security Margin
(%): 0.00

e (CORPORATE GUARANTEE ) Corporate Guarantee of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited., Collateral Value: -
500,000,000.00, Security Margin (%): 0.00

Tenor: At Sight

Princlpal Repayment Terms: Through own sources / cash flows of the company

Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: At the time of establishment of LC.

1.2 { TRUSTRECEIPT | Renewal With <500.000> | 0.000% See TPMR+5% | 1MK+0.50% | 31.12.2021
FINANCE - Change In Below
FOREIGN Security
<within 1>
Purpose To finance imports of raw material under LC F(S) established through MC8
Security

+ ( Registered Hypothecation ) 1st JPP charge of PKR 666.67 Million on Current Assets of the Company , Collateral
Value: 666,670,000.00, Security Margin (%): 25.00

( Registered Hypothecation ) 1st PP hypothecation charge of PKR 666.67M over company's all present & future
movable Fixed Assets (P&M) with 25% margin., Collateral Value: 666,670,000.00, Security Margin (%): 25.00

{ BILL OF EXCHANGE(BACKED BY TR) ) Trust Receipt favoring MCB., Collateral Value: 500,000,000.00, Security
Margin {%): 0.00

Mark-up Reset Frequency As per Bank Policy

Tenor 120 Days

Principal Repayment Terms Through own sources/ cash flows of the company i/l WER I
Markup/Commission Repayment Term/Frequency Quarterly. L (R=tELD

Corporate Banking, MCB House, 1% Floor, 15-Main Gulberg, Jal Road, Lahore.
UAN: 042-111-000-111  Fax: 042-3577 6634
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GUARANTEE Renewal On <50.000> | 0% See TPMR+5% As per 31.12.2021
13 | FAVOURINGEXCISE | Unchanged below s0C
' AND TAXATION | Basis
<within 1>
Purpose: To issue guarantee in favour of Office of the Director Excise & Taxation.
Security:

* [ CASH MARGIN - IN MARGIN A/C) 100% coverage in the form of cash margin. , Collateral Value: 0.00, Security
Margin (%): 0.00
* ( GUARANTEE ) Counter Guarantee., Collateral Value: 0.00, Security Margin (%): 0
Tenor: 5 Years
Principal Repayment Terms: Will be reversed upon submission of original BG instrument/ as per Bank policy.
Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: Will be recovered at the time of issuance of BG.

[ SHIPPING Renewal On <200.00> | 0.000 See TPMR+5% Asper | 31.12.2021
1.4 ' GUARANTEE Unchanged % below s0C
‘ <within 1> Basis

Purpose: For issuance of shipping guarantee for release of gocds in the absence of import documents. (LC'S ONLY)
Security:

¢ (CASH MARGIN - IN MARGIN A/C) 110% coverage in the form of cash margin., Collateral Value: 0.00, Security

Margin (%): 0.00

¢ (GUARANTEE ) Counter Guarantee,, Collateral Value: 0.00, Security Margin (%): ¢
Tenor: 7 Days
Principal Repayment Terms: SG cancellation to be carried out upon receipt of duly cancelled shipping guarantee document
from the shipping company / as per Bank policy.
Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: Will be recovered at the time of issuance of guarantee.
Facility Conditons: Under Shipping Guarantee, goods will be released through Clearing and Forwarding Agent on MCB's
approved panel,

GUARANTEE Renewal On <50.000> 0% See TPMR+5% ASC 31.12.2021
15 OTHERS Unchanged below i
<within 1> Basis

Purpose: To issue Guarantee in favor of Government of Sindh In tieu of the Infrastructure Cess.
Security:
» [ CASH MARGIN - [N MARGIN A/C) 100% coverage in the form of cash margin., Collateral Value: 0.00, Security
Margin (%): 0.00
» ([ GUARANTEE ) Counter Guarantee., Collateral Value: 0.00, Security Margin (%): 0
Tenor: 5 Years
Principal Repayment Terms: Will be reversed upon submission of original BG instrument/ as per bank'’s palicy
Profit/Markup/Commission repayment term: will be recovered at the time of issuance of BG.
SMR = Standard Markup Rate } TPMR = Timely Payment Markup Rate | ASC = As per Schedule of Bank Charges | RR = Ruling
Rate

Coligteral: Corporate Guarantee of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited. /(( \‘ (e
" 7 rd N )
SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS: MAdpAf At PO

"("-_' /\, F
35bps to be charged on average unutilized amount] where averag ion againstt workigg cépital
funded limit remains below 80%.

3. In case trade reciprocity is less than 2 times against working capital funded limit, then MCB shall charge 0.3% on
PKR amount that is below 2 times threshold

4. By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that adequate safety measures are in place to mitigate

the waived insurance risks & subject to same arrangements with other lenders & no preferentlal treatment

shall be given to any financtal institution / bank.
( "2}\
& N
‘..

-
Corporale Banking, MCB House, 1% Floor, 15-Maln Gulbarg, Jail Road, Lihore. wf A
</ o 2 :
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Bank for Life , : .
P 5 BY accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that no bank will be offered PG's of Directors, similar
A ' d MCB's security arrangement must be at par with other lenders.

er allowed by other lenders an !
ty Advising Letter you undertake that with respect to insurance:

« MCB's outstanding will remain adequately covered at all the times. . .
bank. Le. specific allocation of share in insurance policy.

e No preferential treatment s given to any rance
e MCB's name must be mentioned in the insurance policy as co-loss payee and no PR violation.
for Fixed Assets and Current Assets:

7. Company to ensuve the followlng rationale for signing & execution of JPP

a} MCB's security will be improved through JPP charge on CA.
b) MCB will be at par with other lenders in terms of security coverage & margin. The supportis subject to

the

Following cenditions: .
—~<P o Legal vetting of the draft to be arranged as per bank's standard practice.
milar approvals by other lenders.

e Approval is subject tosi
—p> ¢ Company to ensure that by way of signing of this JpP, MCB's p
’ lenders in terms of security coverage and margins.

waiv
6. By accepting this Facili

osition will not become inferior to other

8. Facillties are subject to no regulatory breach.
9. No drawdown shall be allowed under FATR till up-gradation of MCB’s charges on CA & FA to )PP charges.
Company to resolve the security issues on priority and ensure JPP execution upon which ranking charges to be

Q ensured as satisfied.
10. Company to arrange fresh search report as per bank’'s SOPs.
banks. Upfront legal opinion confirming that effective and

11. Company must ensure at par arrangement with other
enforceable charge over company's Plant & Machinery constructed over land of Maple Leaf Cement Factory

(MLCFL) must held.
12, Considering company's model i.. entire revenue is generated through i
’ . . d power supply to holding company, B
accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that out of total load to MLCFL companygwill hl:\vuyﬂrs{
3 z;ght /preferetxi:ce over WAPDA and generators to provide electricity to MLCFL.
. By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that Personal Guarantees of dire i
is not be Rrovided, will not be offered to any other bank directors or beter securtey
14. By af:ceptmg this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that MCB s at par with other lenders in terms of nature
s g; s:zzrl‘:yf.nma‘;rf}nsFetcl.l;ﬂz n: sreferennal treatment shall be given to any financial institution / bank ‘
. epting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that no prefere .
; ntial
L6 Er;s:lraance fc nature, ra}:nkingi margin etc. over charge Is given to any ochr lender freatment with respect to
. pany to ensure the utilization of limits iz imi
actual needs of the company. effectively, otherwise to rationalize the limit size in view of the
17. Company to ensure perfection of securi
ty documents to the entire satisfacti
%g gor:f:nyuto er;ls'ure that MCB's facilities are utilized for stated purposei(:;;n oflegal counsel and CRCD.
. w)i’th ¢ :sp e!::f tto lis Facility Advising Letter (FAL) you hereby undertake to ensure that no preferentiai
p nsurance & nature, ranking, margin etc. over charge is given to any other lende;n 2 freatment

20. .
ﬂ 21. By accepting this Facili
ty Advising Letter you undertak:
Frnmmemark: sompany is fol er y ertake that under the environmental risk )
omerationt y y complied with all applicable environmental rules & regulations for g?il:aegxcirsnt:':gt

22, Compliance of SBP PR's, CHB
( ; 2 , TBML, CR
23 ;:Strumons' o oy CHE, TE MD circulars, foreign trade policies, regulatory guidelines /
. By accepting this F i
by e v?de dg th sa n;cgihwe?i\gztg;i;ther you undertake that PGs of Directors or better securi i
updated soeuriny aran u 'er, Company to ensure that next audited fi red s and will not
24, Company team oy er%em'ent for banlf s financing ensuring at par arrangement. el Tinanclals reflect comrect /
25, By ateating this & :cili ;’ci%tli c;t" sectmty documents to the entire satisfaction :f legal
Pl - Aol pratam rt?’ie n:irter you undertake that no preferential tregnn(::xl:ns: lland CF‘(CD'
26 501 7 must be ensured all times, M payment receipts [PPRs). Compliance of Rule 538 2fl Il:? ranc t; s
207 must e e : . surance Rules
framework/ggreen b::(l:(llllllg gi?géi;:ss o you. e that, under eovironm
regulations for its existing oberat o company is fully complied with all apph'cablee net:‘l/irmk el e
. onmental rules &

27. Allterms and condition
s of valid facility advisin
g letters duly accepted b
Y you to remain unchan
ged,

28. Facllities are renewed
: subject to no r
Prudential Regulations egulatory breach, compli
; ! , other credi b » Colmpliance to PRs, Ban i :
banking guidelines must be ensu,,i'; restrictions, and bank’s credit policy mu ; zglsl etc(.:Com]p Vlance to SEP
. - Lompliance of green

Corporats Banking, MCB Hou ) l
. %, 12 F| = R e _
UAN: 042.11 1 st 18 Main Gubery, Jal RERG, Lafore /< 7/ e
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29.
30.
31
32.

33.
34.

35.
36.

37

38.

Under Shipping Guarantee, goods to be released through Clearing and Forwarding Agent on MCB's panel.
Company to ensure maximum volume of ancillary / trade business through MCB Bank Ltd.

By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake for timely payment of principal / mark up.

By accepting this facility advising letter you undertake that insurance claim received shall be first available
towards adjustment of Bank's financing and balance if any shall be repaid / paid from company’s own sources.
All pending issues [if any] must be resolved on priority.

By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake that similar walvers have been provided/ approved by
other lenders/ Banks / Financial Institutions as well,

Regular plant/ site visits shall be conducted by the concerned banks officials.

By accepting this Facility Advising Letter you undertake to ensure meticulous compliance of the regulatory
instructions with reference to "Guidelines on Compliance of Government of Pakistan's Notifications issued
under United Nations Security Council {UNSC} Resolutions”.

Compliance to SBP Prudential Regulations, other credit restrictions, and bank's credit policy, Forex Manual and
Regulatory Memos, compliance of SBP Green banking guidelines and Circulars must be ensured. Approval is
subject to no regulatory breach, compliance to PRs, Bank Policy etc.

All other terms and conditions of valid facility advising letters duly accepted by you to remain unchanged and
strict compliance of same must be ensured,

Mandatory Terms & Conditions;

Requisite Charge Forms (IBs) will be executed by authorized signatory as per Board Resolution,

2. In no case withdrawal will be allowed in excess of the approved limit,

3. Confirmation in writing as to acceptance of terms and conditions will be provided before disbursement of
facility.

4. The Bank reserves the right to add, amend or alter any condition (Except those, which are prohibited by
regulator) including increase in margin requirement,

5. Moreover, Bank is also vested with the powers to recall the Advances/Credit facilities at any time if the same is
utilized for (i) hoarding or (ii} purposes detrimental to the public interest or (iii) other than purpose for which
the finance was approved.

6. Business will be routed as per commitment.

7. The Bank shall, at all times, have full authority to cancel / reduce the facilities allowed without assigning reason
and to call for adjustment of the liabilities within the period so decided by the Bank,

8. Detalls as per Borrowers Baslic fact sheet format prescribed by the bank shall be provided atleast once in a year
and wherever any change in ownership/ key management or credit rating or substantial change in financing
arrangement with other Banks/Fls or changes in details of associated units takes into effect.

9. During the tenancy of MCB's exposure, any change In directorship will require prior consent, in writing, from
the bank. [n the event of non-compiiance with this condition, MCB will have the right to immediately recali the
facilities/exposure financing arrangement.

10. Whenever Directorship is changed approval should be obtained from MCB for continuation / grant of facilities
under new Directorship.

11. Letter from new Director(s) for continuation of all limits foutstanding must be provided to us.

Regulatory Terms & Conditions:

1. The facilities granted are subject to State Bank of Pakistan’s Prudential Regulation/ restrictions and Credit
Policies as may be imposed from time to time. These facilities are being offered with the understanding that
your company financial condition will comply with these regulations and other regulatory requirements as
well, the compliance of which depends on your actions/ performance.

2. Audited accounts should be submitted to the bank within 4 months from the date of your financial year end.
Whereas half yearly accounts should be submitted within two months. In both cases it shall be submitted to the
bank within 7 days of its finalization. Any further break up/ detalls or interim / in house report required by the
bank to be provided Immedtately. Details of liability (fund based & non fund/ contingent) towards our bank or
other lenders shall be appropriately reflected in annual A/Cs of the concern & /or note forming its Integral part,
in appropriate manner with the name of the banks reflected therein.

3. Board Resolution to borrow for facilities must be provided.

4. All charges including fees, prepayments if any, will be recoverable by MCB as per charges.

Other Terms & Conditions;

1.

The hypothecated stocks / goods / mortgaged property must be insured at all times against ail pertinent risk

[

with the bank as the mortgagee and yourself as mortgagor. The relative ins icies will be held by the
1Ne

Carporate Banking, MC8 House, 1% Floor, 15-Maln Gulberg, JJMM?& KO B
UAN: 042-111-000-111  Fax: 042577 6634 /ﬂ/ 7
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10.
11

n =

. All levies and taxes now or at any time hereafter levied and payable in respect of the financial accommodation

bank along with the Premium Paid Receipt (in original), Insurance company must be listed on approved panel
of MCB. Security/ watch and ward of assets placed under banks lien shall be your responsibility.

Stack statements together with a list of book debts are to be submitted at the end of each month, to reach us by
the first week of the following month. The statement/ list should provide Bank-wise break up of outstanding
amount with total value of stocks and receivables there against. Bank may require the statements earlier.

The bank or its authorized representative(s) would have a right to undertake inspection of Stocks/Assets under
banks lien from time to time as per bank policy with or without prior intimation and you shall be obliged to
extend all possible assistance.

Satisfactory credit report on beneficiary will be obtained before opening of LC.

LC/Import documents to be retired by the company on first presentation from own resources.

Outstanding PAD/LC (sight) will reduce the limit by like amount.

If there are any overdue in PAD for more than 20 days, no further LCs will be opened despite availability of
cushion in the approved LC limit.

Markup will be recovered as and when due and Standard Markup Rate (SMR) will be recovered if principal or
markup is not paid on due date(s).

In case of non-adjustment of principal/markup on due date, SMR (Standard Markup Rate} @ TPMR +5% would
be applied as per our Bank's Policy.

SMR-TPMR differential will be recovered if principal or mark-up is not paid on due date(s).

Material Adverse Change Clause, Cross Default Clause & Majority Ownership clause shall be applicable.

MCB reserves the right to recover all the agreed legal and agreed documentation expenses (including any stamp
duties), agreed site visits expenses and other associated costs by debit to your account with us.

and banking facilities set outin this letter will be exclusively borne by you.

. The value of security determined by Bank shall be final. In case the market value of assets placed under Bank's

lien/pledged shares/pledged or hypothecated stocks, as determined by the Bank, falls below the specified
margin requirement, you must provide additional shares / stocks acceptable to the bank, or reduce the finance
accordingly, within 5 days of receiving a letter for the same. However, If the margin falis below 75% of the
requisite margin requirement or margin available is less than 10% or as may be specified by Bank In case of
shares or value of stocks/ assets held as security falls below the bank's exposure, the bank at its own discretion,
may sell the same, for adjustment/reduction of exposure without reference to you.

In the normal course you may rely upon the above facilities till 31-12-2021 but you will appreciate that in accordance
with normal banking practice, the facility Is repayable on demand and we reserve to ourselves the right to vary the
terms and condition and/or ask for repayment if circumstances arise which in our opinion justify our doing so.

If you agree with the terms and conditions of this Facility Advising Letter, please return the duplicate copy with its each
page duly signed as token of your acceptance of the aforementioned terms and conditions within 15 days from the date

hereof,

Yours truly,
Officer-CRCD Unit Head CRCD Sr. RelationshipMunager

We trust that the above facilities fulfll your requirements and hope to continue this prosperous relationship with you.

Vy - .
Terms & Qanditions Accepted
For & On behalf of :

Corporate Banking, MGB House, 1% Fioor, 15-Main Gulberg, Jall Road, Lahare.
UAN: 042-111-000-111  Fax: (42-3577 6634



@ NBP

Notional Bank of Pakistan
The Chief Executive, CBCL/MLPL/2021/
Maple Leaf Power Ltd, August 13, 2021

42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore Cantt.

Dear Sir,

RENEWAL OF WORKING CAPITAL FACILITIES
ACCOUNT: MAPLE LFAF POWER LTD - MLPL

We are pleased to advise you that on your request the competent authority of the Bank has approved renewal of working
capital limits in favor of above-mentioned company for the period up to 30.06.2022, on terms & conditlons ment:oned
thereagainst: :

. FACILITY 1. Import/inland LC (Sight) Facllity ' -_[Renewal]
v L UM Rs.500,000,000/- (Rs. Five Hundred Million Cnly)
PURPOSE To facllitate Import/Local Procurement of ¢oal and pet coke (raw materlals) along with spare
parts, stores & tools only {spare parts, stores & tools would be restrlcted up to Pkr 200 Mn under
Inland LC) i
EXPIRY 30.06.2022
.COMMISSION — LC opening commission of 0.05% per quarter to be recovered quarterly in advance wlthout

retirement /any other charges.

Bill of Exchange/PAD (Payment against Documents) shall be charged as per NBP Schedule of
Charges {SOC).

[Kibor to be fixed on the last working day before date of creation of each BOE/PAD. Mark up on
BOE to be recovered on retirement.)

REPAYMENY Retirement of Import/Inland L/Cs for raw material to be allowed through FATR (120 Days) sub-
limit/ Company’s own sources while retirement of L/C’s for spare parts, stores and logse tools
would be allowed through company’s own sources only :

MARGIN NiL Cash Margin
SECURITIES » Lien on import documents of title to goods
» Same as for FATR facility that is:
e 1% Joint Pari Passu Charge of PKR 667 Million over all the present and future
” Current & Movable Fixed Assets of the Company. Same charge shall also secure

Shipping Guarantee sub-limit
¢  Assignment of Receivable duly accepted by Maple Leaf Cement and reglstered
in SECP
Undertaking to be obtained from the company for retirement of LCs opened for procurement of
spare parts, store & tools through Company’s own sources.
CONDITION = Inland LCs used for procurement of spare parts; stores & tools would be restricted up to PKR
200M within the limit.
*  ICs for procurement of spare parts, stores & tools to be retired only through Company's
own sources.
s Aggregate exposure against import/ Inland LC {Sight) and its sub-limits FATR (120 days), and
Shipping Guarantee not to exceed PKR 500M at any point In time.

-

aee 1 of 4
c oF

Corporate Banking Group r !g
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NBP

National Bank of Pakistan

FACILITY 1 (A)

Finance Against Trust Receipt (FATR) Faciity (120 Days)

[As Sub Limit of Import/inland L/C {Sight)] [Renewal]

LmIT Rs. 500,000,000/ {Rs. Five Hundred Million Only)

PURPOSE To finance imports/ local procurement of coal by facilitating retirement of LCs opened against
Import/ Inland L/C (Sight) facility

REPAYMENT/ Company’s internal cash generation

RETIREMENT

MARGIN  +—2 25% on Limit Amount.

TENOR 120-Days Maximum for each TR.

PRICING ¢ 3 Month KIBOR plus 0.75% p.a.
[Kibor to be fixed on the last working day before date of creation of each TR. Mark-up to be
recovered along with principal upon maturity of each FATR Bill.]

EXPIRY 30.06.2022

SECURITIES *  Trust Receipts duly signed by the Company.

1* Joint Pari Passu Charge of PKR 667 Million over all the present and future Current &
Movable Fixed Assets of the Company. Same charge shall ‘also secure Shipping Guarantee
sub-limit.

Assignment of Receivable duly accepted by Maple Leaf Cement and registered in SECP.

Special Condition

Aggregate exposure against import/ Infand LC (Sight) and its sub-limits FATR (120 days), and
Shipping Guarantee not to exceed PKR 500M at amLpoint in time,

e

FACILITY 1B} ShIpping Guarantee Facllity [As Sub leit of Import/inland {Sight)]
[Renewal] ' ' Lo Ce

LIMIT Rs.500,000,000/- (Rs. Flve Hundred Million Only)

PURPQSE For release of shipments in absence of shipping documents

CASH MARGIN —

100% Cash Margin

COMMISSION  aeer—

Commission to be charged at 0.10% per quarter to be recovered quarterly in advance without
any other chaLges/ retirement charges

REPAYMENT/ Company’s internal cash generation
RETIREMENT :

EXPIRY 30.06.2022

SECURITIES » Counter Guarantee of the Company.

> Same as for FATR facility that Is:

1* Pari Passu Charge of PKR 667 Million cver all the present and future Current
& Movable Fixed Assets of the Company. Same charge shall also secure
Shipping Guarantee sub-limit.

Assignment of Receivable duly accepted by Maple Leaf Cement and registered
in SECP.

*

Special Condition

Aggregate exposure against Import/ [nfand LC (Sight) and its sub-limlts FATR (120 days), and
Shipping Guarantee not to exceed PKR 500M at any paimhin time.

"Mwb /M7 T 20t

i!'
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9y NBP

Nationol Bank of Pakistan
FACILITY 2 Running Finance Facility ~ [Renewal & Revision In pricing]
LIMIT Rs.200,000,000/- (Rs. Two Hundred Million Only)
PURPOSE To finance day to day working capital requirement of the company
MARGIN 25%
EXPIRY 30.06.2022
REPAYMENT Company’s internal cash generatlon : : :
SECURITIES e » 1% Joint Pari Passu charge of Rs.267Million over all the present and future current & movable
fixed assets of the Company.
MARK-UP . . i : ‘ \
” U 3 Month KIBOB_:L 25% p.a. with prompt payment rebate as per below 3 M -f s ')S /
. ) AN KIBOR to be set at disbursement and subsequently at the beginning of each calendar quarteron
° 5’4 the basis of last working day immediately preceding calendar quarter. N
f Prompt Payment Bonus
o+ ] ' M-up paid within O to 10 days of becoming due 0.50% p.a.
M-up paid within 11to 20 days of becoming due 0.40%p.o. | .
M-up paid within 21to 30 doys of becoming due 0.30%p.a. |
M-up paid within 31to 40 days of becoming due 0.20% p.o.
M-up paid within 41to 45 days of becoming due 0.10% p.a.
M-up paid within 46 to S0 days of becoming due 0.0% p.a.
ADDITIONAL M CONDITION:
. 1. These facllities are available for the specific purposes only as mentioned above and shall not be diverted towards your

allied companies/sister concern/associated companies.

2. In case of event of default, Bank reserves the right to change or modify any/ all the terms & conditions or to recall the
finance during currency of limit without assigning any reason thereof.

3. The Bank has irrevocable right to engage outside consultant for apprising & evaluating the operating performance or any
other aspect of company in the event when company defaults or Is likely to default In servicing its debt obligations to
Bank. Fees of consultants for such studies will be borne by company.

4, The company shall provide to the Bank such information and financial statements as maybe required from time to time.
Annual audited accounts should be submitted to the Bank within 120 days fropathe date of financial year-end.
’—*\\
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NBP

Natlonol Bank of Pakistan

The company shall meet all the applicable SBP Prudential Regulations and NBP policies at any point in time.

6. Conduct of advance shall be closely monitored by NBP and all the terms & conditions, as required under Bank’s standard
procedure and practice, must be got fulfilled.

7. Al levies/taxes now or at any time hereafter levied and payable in respect of financial accommodation & banking
facilities set out in this letter is to be exclusively borne by the company.

8. All the incidentals will be paid by the company from its own sotrces.

9. The company shall not make any change in its corporate structure or transfer its management or sell major ownershlp or
create In any manner, any charge, lien or encumbrance on assets of the company in favor of any other party without
prior written approval of NBP. The company will advise NBP of the changes (if any) in the constitution, Board of
Directors/Address of the company.

10. During the subsistence of the financial assistance, NBP will have the right/option to have access to the premises and
books of accounts of the company.

‘ 11. Please ensure to complete all the documentation formalities Including execution of requisite charge forms (lBs)
documents of working capital facilities at the earliest. Out of pocket expenses including but not limited to legal.fee, - .
. professional fee, SECP charges incurred in connection with preparation of credit appraisal, legal/charge documents,
execution and performance of the Facilities shall be borne by the company. NBP unconditionally reserves the right to
debit any such charges from the customer,
12. Please submit Statement of hypothecated current Assets on monthly basis containing bank-wise outstanding fiabilities
of all Pari Passu charge hoiders of the current Assets with the value of current Assets held there-against. Officials
designated by branch will conduct periodically lnspections of Hypothecated Assets at your cost & expense.

13. Company’s Current and Fixed Assets shall be adequately insured. from insurance companies on NBP's panel with
necessary risks and our interest will be notified to the Insurance company and mentioned in insurance policy Origlnal ‘
policy with all amendment slips, premium paid receipts and credit arrangement slips {if applicable) to be submitted.-

14. The facility will be subject to laws of the Islamic Republic of Pakistan and non-exclusive jurisdiction of the Pakistan
courts. The facilities are granted under and subject to, the conditions and limitations set and specified by the State Bank
of Pakistan and other competent authorities from time to time.

This letter is issued in triplicate. Kindly confirm your acceptance of the foregoing term & conditions by the slgning over
Company’s stamp (all pages) & returning two original of this letter, while keeping one for your record, B o

” Yours faithfully,

AL A

\Zcigifdﬁ in Tahlr D) oudhri
Unit Head - EVP/Corporate Head

~ P/\a\‘u r_&-— V\

any with stamp
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‘ Reglonal Credit Administration Department
. Corporate & Investment Banking Group-!l

P i ot

Ly ninn

4- Fane Road, Kasuri Tower, Lahare
Phone No: 37310664

~ THE BANK OF PUNJAB
Fassin Robare

RCAD/CB-(/2022/5683
December 22, 2022

Sayeed Tariqg Saigol

Chief Executive Officer
Maple Leaf Power Limited
12 ~ Lawrence Road, Lahore

Dear Sir,

BANKING FACILITIES

This is with reference to your request letter dated for grant of Credit / Banking Facility/Facilities
whereby, we The Bank of Punjab, (Main Branch, Lahore) (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) are pleased to inform
that the Bank has, in principle,. approved the following Facility/Facilities in favour of Maple Leaf Power Limited

{hereinafter referred to as the “Customer”), which are to be utmzed strictly in accordance with the terms and
conditions mentioned hereunder:

1. DETAILS OF FACILITIES:

1} l‘INANCE AGAINST TRUST RECEIPT (FATR) — RENEWAL i
‘purpose For retirement of LCs/PAD through trust Receipt. {Stores & spares LC to be retired from
customer’s own source )
Limit ( PKR 500,000,000/ {Pakistani Rupees Five Hundred Million Only)
_Amount .
Outstandmg NiL :
| Mark Up rate <| 3Month KIBOR + 75 BPS per annum with no floor and no cap.
_Rate Setting KIBOR of the date of booking of FATR wiil be used till adjustment of respective TR,
. Mark Up fory 3Month KIBOR + 350 BPS from the date of overdue.
. overdue period
 Tenor: 90 Days Maximum (including days in PAD)
Validity: 30.11.2023
| Repayment | Adjustment in Lump sum.
Securities «  Trust Receipt duly executed by the Customer.
o * Securities are mentioned under Joint Collateral.
1a) LC SIGHT (SLC) (Foreign / INLAND) (SUBLIMIT OF FATR FACILITY NO. 1) — RENEWAL
Purpose To meet the import/purchase requirement of Coal/ Pet Cock for the customer.
“Limit Amount <PKR 500,000,000/-> (Pakistani Rupees Five Hundred Million Only)
Note: Import of Spare part / machinery is allowed up to PXR 250 Million only and to be
retired through customer’s own sources.
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Outstanding PKR. 37,597,320.00 (Pakistani Rupees Thirty Seven Million Five Hundred Ninety Seven
thousand three hundred & twenty Only) '

Commission 0.10 % p.q. for LC {all inclusive)

Cash Margin NIL or as per SBP requirement whichever is higher.

Validity 30.11.2023

Take Out To retire the LCs for Coal, Pet Cock etc. customer will utilize FATR facifity or from their own
sources. LCs for store & spares etc. would be retired by Customer through their own
resources.

Mark-up on PAD | 3 Month KIBOR + 150bps (up to 45 days thereafter as per Bank’s Schedule of Charges}.

Securities * Lien on title of goods under import Documents.
s Other securities as mentioned under Joint Collateral.
Other Terms » Charter Party/House Forwarder’s Bill of lading is allowed

* Air shipment for LCs established to import Store & Spare parts is allowed.

1-b) SHIPPING GUARANTEE (SUBLIMIT OF FATR) - RENEWAL

Purpose To release goods procured through LCs established with BOP.
Limit <PKR 500,000,000/-> (Pakistani Rupees Five Hundred Million Only)
_Amount :
Qutstanding NIL
Commission As per Bank’s Schedule of Charges.
Cash margin NIL
Tenor Open ended
Other Terms Shipping Guarantee to be allowed only by blocking/Earmarking FATR Limit with equal

amount or against 100% cash margin. )

Primary Security | s Securities are mentioned under Joint Collateral.

JOINT COLLATERAL:

1) 1% PP charge over present & future Fixed Assets of the customer for PKR 666.667 Million with 25% margin.
2) 1*JPP charge over present & future Current Assets of the customer for PKR 666.667 Million with 25% margin.
3} Corporate Guarantee of Parent Company i.e. Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited.

4} Assignment of Receivable of Maple Leaf Power Limited from Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited in favour of
BOP,

SPECIAL CCNDITIONS:

1. Customer to route maximum import business reciprocity through BOP’s counters before review period.

2. Prior clearance to be obtained for import of store & spare /raw material from /Via Rd?sla? Origin.

3. House/Forwarder Bill of Lading to be allowed. Further, House/Forwarder Bill of Lading to be followed by copy
of Master Bill of Lading. Customer hereby undertakes to compensate the Bank in case of any
loss/contingencies created during the normal course of business due to approval of stated arrangement.

4. Customer hereby undertakes regarding Letter of Credit, confirming that
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10.

Ca T

= Foreign exchange fluctuation risk to be borne by customer.

s Compliance of SBP PRs and FE Manual

Customer hereby undertakes that 80P is not on inferior footage & to indemnify the bank in case of loss due

to waiver of any risk in insurance policy. :

Monthly Stock Reports to be submitted timely.

No preferential treatment should be given to any lender & parity of BOP with afl other banks w.r.t. security,

insurance, operational arrangements, of Directors, any sort of undertaking, shareholding pattern and othér

arrangement.

Processing Fee of PKR. 500,000 along with FED to be paid up front. In case of business reciprocity of less than

two times of our approved limit during next twelve months, a one time charges of PKR. 500,000 is to be paid

by customer before processing of next Annuat Review.

Customer to ensure the following w.r.t Green Banking.

a. Act in Compliance with national {and International} environmental laws and regulations and the
MEAs.

b. Provide all necessary environmental clearance certificates, renewals of it and new certificates, if so
required.

c. Report to the Bank regularly and consistently on the obligors’ environmental performance.

d. Refrain from extending beyond the approved business plan without obtaining additional
environmental approvals.

e. Ensure that environmental emergency plans are in place.
f. Bring to the Bank's attention any environmentally adverse action at their end.
g. Refrain from using their property for disposing of toxic substances etc,

Customer to undertake following:

a. Customer has to Obtained all necessary approvals, licenses, permissions for operations from all concerned
Autharities including but not limited to Federal Govt., Provincial Govt. / Local Bodies, City Administration,
taw Enforcement Agencies, Independent & Dependent Bodies, Boards & etc.

b. There is no direct or indirect legal bar, permanent or temporary, executive or judicial order{s), barring
them to carry out business/operations.

¢. Company’s existing capacities do not require any specific approvals, licenses or permissions to set up
and/or operate Company’s Units. In case the same were or are required, same shall be shared with the
bank.

d. Company’s operations are and will continue to be in compliance with all applicable laws of Pakistan, all
Gowt. Circulars and SRQO's.

AND such other securities as may reasonably be required by the Bank from time to time. In addition, the
Bank shall have a banker's lien on all deposits, accounts and properties belonging to the Customer, duly
held with the Bank. The securities, negotiable instruments and documents shall be executed by the
Customer in favour of the Bank and shal! further be in the form and substance accepablato the Bank.

)
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3.1

3.2,

3.3.

34.

3.5.

Other Terms & Conditions: Customer will comply with the following general terms and conditions:

In the event the payment under the documents is refused by the issuing/confirming bank (including but
not limited to by reason of any stay order of any court, tribunal or ‘other authority), the Customer shall
fully indemnify the Bank for any losses that the Bank may incur in this respect and shall refund to the Bank
the full amount paid by the Bank to the Customer, together with mark-up, at the highest rate of mark-up
allowed by the SBP and the liquidated damages. In this connection, the Customer shall be required to sign
any and/or all documents/agreements required by the Bank. Additionally, the Bank reserves the right to
debit any of its customer’s account, as maintained by it, with the amount payable hereunder by the
Customer to the Bank. The Bank also reserves the right to appropriate any of the deposits or other
properties belonging to the Customer, duly held with the Bank, towards the satisfaction of the Customer’s
liability towards the Bank. {Applicable for those customers with discounting of export bills facilities)

The Customer shall furnish the Bank with stock report and list of debtors on monthly basis not later than
the fifteenth (15"} day of the following month. These reports shall be signed by an authorized officer of
the Customer’s company. Inspection of the hypothecated stocks may be conducted by the Bank at the
discretion of the Bank without prior notice to Customer. All expenses, costs and charges including the fees
of any agent whom the Bank may appoint to undertake the said inspection shall be charged to the
Customer and the Bank shall have the right, power and authority to make any deductions from the
Customer’'s accounts in this respect. In the event of deterioration in the value of the assets hypothecated,
by the Customer in favor of the Bank, or any other securities relating to the Facility/Facilities, the Bank
reserves the right to either demand additional securities or alternatively reduce the Facility to restore the
margin required from time to time. .

The Customer shall prominently display a board, containing the Bank’s name, clearly indicating its
lien/pledge/charge on any pledged/hypothecated stocks at the godown/warehouse, where such
pledged/hypothecated stocks are stored.,

The Customer shall bear all costs and expenses and shall reimburse the amount paid by the Bank
forthwith after receiving the Banks' demand for payment. In addition, the Customer shall also be
responsible for all costs and expenses {including litigation costs and lawyer's fees) incurred by the Bank
in recovering any amount from the Customer, through litigation or otherwise or in enforcing the
Customer’s obligations to the Bank.

All costs, expenses, charges including but not limited to, legal and valuation fees and incidental costs,
incurred by the Bank in relation to the granting of the facilities and the taking, registering and enforcing, -
if necessary, of securities relating thereto; along with any penalties attributable to the customer's

conduct shall be charged to the Customer and the Customer shall duly liquidate the same, as and when
demanded by the Bank.

The Customer shall not amend and/or alter any of the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of
Association, Laws/Partnership Deed/ or other constitutive documents (as the case may be in a manner
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which may have a material adverse effect on the ability of the Customer to perform its obligations under
the Facility/Facilities, and in any case shall inform the Bank immediately of all such
amendments/alterations. In the event the Bank determines that such amendments/alterations may have
a material bearing on the Customer or affect its credit standing, the Bank remains entitled to require the
Customer to affect a prepayment of the Facility/Facilities including all accrued Mark-Up, commission,
charges, fees and all money(ies) arising from the Facility/Facilities by acceleration.

3.7.  The Customer shall provide the Bank with a duly certified true copy of its audited annual balance sheet
prepared by its external auditors in accordance with standard applicable accounting principles as in force
in Pakistan, together with its profit and loss statements and a detailed list of its debtors and creditors,
immediately after its issuance, but in any case no later than the four {04} months after the close of its

financial year. (Quarterly account of public limited companies should be obtained within forty five (45)
days from the quarter end.)

3.8 The Customer shall undertake to:

(a). Pay all taxes, duties and levies as may be required to be paid by the Customer or the Bank on the
Facility/Facilities herein advised and on the sale of the goods/ assets to the Bank or on the repurchase of
the poods/ assets from the Bank. Such taxes, duties and levies shall include all taxes payable by the Bank
pursuant to any law, enactment, order or rule {excluding tax on the corporate Income of the Bank}, on an

amount of the purchase price/ mark-up price outstanding against the Customer or on the Facility/Facilities
herein advised.

(b}. To pay/ reimburse the Bank any and all taxes, duties and levies (exclu_'ding tax on the corporate income of
the Bank) as may be imposed or levied upon the Bank in any manner arising from any finance/mark-up
agreement which may be executed or from the Facility/Facilities herein advised or from or in respect of
any amounts payable by the Customer to the Bank. For such taxes, duties and levies, the Bank shall be
entitled and empowered to debit the Customer’s account with the Bank for such payments, irrespective
of any dispute regarding such payment between the Customer and the Bank. Furthermore, the Customer
shall gross-up its payments in case any deductions or withholding is required to be made by the Customer
under any applicable law for the time being so as to ensure that the Bank receives and retains a sum equal

to the net amount that the Bank may have received in case such deduction or withholding was not
required to be made in ferms hereof.

3.9.  The Customer shall not without the prior written consent/approval of the Bank conduct any additional

borrowing, in the form of borrowing any money/monies or avalling any other finance or mark-up Facility
from any other banks/financial institutions or any other person, on the same executed securities. In the
event the Customer fails to fulfill its contractual obligations under the Facility/Facilities, constituting a
default, such an event shall entitle the Bank to proceed against them in accordance with the law for
recovery of all outstanding amounts along with additional mark-up/liquidated damages.

The availability and/or utilization of credit line shall be subject to the State Bank of Pakistan’s Credit/
Exchange Control, Prudential Regulations and Clear/Clean CIB Report, and any othggretevant policy,
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regulation or rule which may be affected from time to time, by any competent authority and/ or
regulatory body, as determined by the Bank.

3.11. The Customer undertakes that the Facility/Facilities shall be utilized 5olely for the purpose specified
herein. Additionally, the Customer undertakes and confirms that if the Facility/Facilities are used for any
other purpose(s) other than the approved, or are deviated by the Customer in any manner whatsoever
without the approval of the Bank, the Bank remains at liberty to proceed in 2 manner it considers
appropriate, including but not limited to forthwith cancel/suspend the Facility/Facilities, rendering the
Customer responsible for any conseguences thereof.

3.12. The utilization of the Facility/Facilities shall be subject to the prior completion of necessary formalities
including fresh documentation {if so required by the bank) and securities in consultation with the legal
advisor of the Bank to its satisfaction; and shall contain the requisite agreements, deeds, documents,
representations, warranties, covenants, etc. as may be required by the Bank. This shall be in addition to

any and all previously executed documentation and securitization which shall continue and subsist in full
force and effect.

3.13. Upon acceptance of this letter, the Customer hereby agrees that the payment of the Principal and Mark-
Up amounts shall be executed on the specified due dates without any delays whatsoever. For Markup
Servicing within 30 days of the Due Date: KIBOR of the relevant perlod plus Bank’s spread, as specified In

the approved Credit Package shall be applicable.

For Markup Servicing beyond 30 Days after Due Date: KIBOR of the relevant period plus Bank’s spread as
specified in the approved Credit Package shall be charged.

3.14. Subject to the furnishing/execution of fresh agreements and documents and any necessary amendments
which the Bank may in its sole discretion decide to incorporate, ali the terms and conditions of the
agreements/arrangements governing the Facility/Facilities previously granted to the Customer shall
continue hereto, and the Customer shall be liable to pay the total outstanding amounts(s) together with

all applicable mark-up, costs, commissions, charges and expenses and any other levies that the Bank may
impose from time to time.

3.15. Any disbursement by the Bank under the Facility/Facilities shall be subject to the calculation of the
Drawing Power Limit of the Customer, based on the security/securities held and the stock reports
submitted by the Muccadam appointed by the Bank. The Facility/Facilities are subject to the periodic
review by the Bank and in this regard, the Customer shall furnish with the Bank all securities as the Bank
may require from time to time, and to further fulfill alf documentation(s) and other formalities required
for perfecting the security/collateral/ credit support in favour of the Bank.’

3.16. The Customer shall not, without the prior written consent of the Bank, undertake any action and/or
omission that may result in any encumbrances being created on or against the securities / coliateral /
credit support or any of them provided to the Bank, whereby the securities / collateral / credit support
available with the Bank are or may in any way become adversely affected.
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3.17. The Customer shall furnish all such information, as the Bank may require at any time relating to the
position of the security, collateral, credit support, goods and pecuniary liabilities.

3.18. The Customer shall:

(a). Keep the security and/or collateral granted to the Bank duly insured at all times covering all usual risks as
the Bank may deem appropriate, including but not limited to theft, burglary, fire, damage from water etc.

with an insurance company acceptable to the Bank, for a sum not less than the amount of the outstanding
Facility/Facilities.

. (b). In the event the Customer fails to renew the insurance policy three (03) days prior to its expiration, if the
. Bank deems suitable, it may undertake to immediately arrange a renewal from the same insurance
palicy/consortium, as the case may be, by debiting the Customer’s account or even creating excess over

limit. In this regard, the Customer shall be liable to settle the same along with any costs, expenses, the
Bank may incur thereon.

3.19. The Customer shall keep, maintain and protect the interest of the Bank in any and all securities provided
to the Bank and the Customer shall not undertake any act of commission or omission by which the
payment of any amount payable to the Bank or any of the Securlties are in any manner adversely affected.

3.20. The Customer shall give 2 times reciprocity business by way of export/import documents pass through
the Bank’s counters, calculated against the funded facilities with the Bank.

3.21. The Bank reserves the right to conduct due diligence of the contractual arrangements, regulatory
approvals, corporate approvals, financing/business plan progress thereon under the Facility/Facilities

and/or any terms and conditions of this Facility Offer Letter (the “FOL”), to its entire satisfaction and to
the extent required.

3.22. The Bank has irrevocable right to engage outside consultants for appraising and evaluating the aoperating
) performance or any other aspect of the customer, at any time during the currency of the loan agreement,
. as deemed appropriate. The fees of consultants for such studies shall be borne by the Customer.

3.23  In the normal course you may rely upon the above facility till 30.11.2023 but you will appreciate that in
accordance with normal banking practice, the facility is repayable on demand and we reserve to ourselves

the right to vary the terms and condition and/or ask for repayment if circumstances arise which in our
opinion justify our doing so.

3.24. Inthe normal course of business, the above Facility/Facilities are:

{a).  valid up te and repayable on 30.11,2023 at which time it shall be reviewed and renewed at Bank’'s sole
discretion. However, Bank reserves the right to terminate the Facility/Fadlities at Its discretion
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{b). The contents of the Banking FOL states some of the indicative terms and conditions on the basis of which
the Facility/Facilities, duly requested by the Customer is/are granted by the Bank. However, this FOL is
valid for acceptance by the Customer for a period of seven (07) days from the date hereof, after which it
shall be solely up to the Bank to decide whether such terms remain valid. The Bank further reserves the
right to modify/cancel the terms and conditions upon which the Facility/Facilities shall be granted, and/or
to revoke the same. Further, nothing in this FOL shall be construed as a legally binding commitment on
part of the Bank to grant the requested Facility/Facilities.

Phone No: 37310664

(c}. Upon acceptance by the Customer, the terms and conditions of this FOL shali continue to apply and shall

remain valid and binding on the Customer, till the event the Customer continues to avail the
Facility/Facilities.

25, The Bank reserves the right to modify, amend, alter, add, withdraw or cancel any of the terms and
conditions of this Facility Offer Letter

Kindly confirm your agreement and acceptance of the aforementioned terms and conditions by signing and

affixing your Company’s stamp on the duplicate of this letter and thereafter return the same to the Bank for its
record.

We trust that the above shall be to your satisfaction.

Yours sincerely,

¥ y - ' v I:\. :
/ T BA
. : . )A' Kasuri Tower Lahors

Relationship Manager (RM) ead RCAD-BOP

{Authorized Signatory) herized Signatory)
FAISAL, ASH RAF Q

Sr. Relatlonlhla anager .
Corporate Banking Central

THE BANK OF PUNJAB
Fifth Avenue M.M. Alam Road, LHR.

Maple Leaf Power Limited J _
hereby accepts and agrees to the above terms and conditions.

\
Witnesses /
%444 ' 2. -———j
Name Name EWaaniG

Address Address S'FS“AVUMPLRW\!C—M—‘ Ly
N.I.C. No. % MLFL - N.I.C. No. .l;ln\ W S719%8- 9
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MAPLE LEAF POWER LTD.

SHORT TERM FINANCES
FUNDED & NON FUNDED FACILITIES Rupees In Million
As On 31.05.2023
4 . L |l Funded || Non Funded Total 3] di O ding Current Assets Fixed Assets
,; JI Financial Institution " Nature | ST Man | swb I Main Facilities Funded NonFunded Tst IPP Ranking || st Pari Passu | _Ranking
(million) {million) (million)
I The Bank of Punjab FATR 500 - 667 667
SLC {500) -
Shipping Guarantee (500) -
500 - 500 - -
2 MCB Istami¢ Bank Limited SLC 400 - 601 601
Murabaha (350) .
Bank Guarantee (30) R
LC Services @5
400 400 - -
3 MCB Bank Limited SLC - 500 667 667
FATR 120 Days (500)
Bank Guarantee (50) 10
Shipping Guarantee (200)
500 500 - 10
5  Askari Bank Limited LG 5 5 | 100% Margin
LG 100 10 | 100% Margin
Lcs (40)
SG (40)
- 105 105 - 15
TOTAL I I o0 ]| T 1,005 ]| 1305 1] 1 PE 7,869 3868




42- Lawrence Road,
Lahore, Pakistan
Tel: 92-042-36302261

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-42-36368721

Net Worth, Total Equity & Debt As At June 30%, 2022

1. Net Worth:
Total Assets = Rs. 7,491,058,000/-

Total Liabilities = Rs. 689,974,000/-

Net Worth = Rs. 6,801,084,000/-

2. Total Equity & Debt: _
Total Equity = Rs. 6,801,084,000/-

Sajom nt -

Total Det = Nil

Jalal Tarig Shah
Manger Finance
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42-tawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax: 92-042-36368721

PROFILE OF CEO

MR. SAYEED TARIQ SAIGOL
(CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER / DIRECTOR)

OTHER ENGAGEMENTS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE / DIRECTOR
Maple Leaf Power Limited

DIRECTOR
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited
Maple Leaf Capital Limited

Mr. Sayeed Tarig Saigoi is the Chief Executive of Maple Leaf Cement and Maple Leaf Power
Ltd. He graduated from McGill University with a degree in management. Mr. Sayeed Saigol
also has several years of work experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining Maple Leaf
Cement, he was involved in setting up and managing an apparel dyeing company. He is a

member of the Board of Governors of the Lahore University of Management Sciences.
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Employee Name:

Job Title:

Total Experience:

Qualifications:

T TURMEDED

Tariq Ahmed Mit
General Ma'n_agei%

32+

BSc Electrical Engineering
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Employee Name:

Job Title:

Total Experience:

Qualifications:

‘M‘anagér

14 Years +

Muhaninyad Hammad Aghraf

o e e e

BSc Electronics Engineering
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Employee Name:

Job Title:

Total Experience: K

Qualifications:

Muham»ﬁacﬁan »‘
Manager
12Vears+ |

BSc Electrical Eng'ineefihg




Employee Name:

Job Title:

Total Experience:

Qualifications:

Sultan Sikander

Deputy General Maﬂager

e

TR,

B
vl

15 Years +

BSc Electrical Engineefing
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Employee Name:
Job Title:
Total Experience:

Qualifications:

Ibrar Hussain

Senior Manager

14 Years ﬁlus

BSc Electrical Engineefing:

]

'
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Employee Name:
Job Title:
Total Experience:

Qualifications:

‘Umair Sﬁfﬂed

Senior Manager
- ‘

16 Years ¢

S

¥
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+

v
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Emﬁlﬂyee Name: ~ Hafiz MuhammaﬂAjﬁ;aﬁi -

“Job Title: . Manager

Total Experience: - -8 Years:+*

Qualifications: BSc Electrical Engineering
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Employee Name:
Job Title:
Total Experience:

Quaiifications:

S2vearsy |-

Senior Manager

BSc Mechanical Engineering
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Employee Name:
Job Title:
Total Experience:

Qualifications:

' Zain Naveed

10 Years +

Managef

BS Mechanical Engireering
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Employee Name:
Job Title:
Total Experience:

Qualifications:

Irfan Ahriad

‘Man‘agér' :

L

10 Years +

K
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Employee Name:

Job Title:

Total Experience:

Qualifications:

Senior Manager
. f,
I

[

12Years+ |

BSc Electrical Engineering




Employee Name:
Job Title:
Total Experience:

Qualifications:

MuhammadWaqas

Senior Manager

R

B
H

B

i
|
i
!
i

e e e

14 Years+

BE Mechanical -
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Employee Name:

Job Title:

Total Experience:

Qualifications:

o

YasirNawazKhah

Senior Manager
N

|

13 Years + 1 f

A N

BSc Mechanical Engineerimg ©  + - - ©"
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited %0236

With reference to the requirement as per clause 3(4)(d)(vii) regarding employment records of engineering
and technical staff of the applicant proposed to be employed is not applicable.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fx9042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause 3(4)(d}{viii) regarding profile of sub-contractors, if any,
along with expressions of interest of such sub-contractors is not applicable.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MaJ)le Leaf Power Limited Fax:92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause 3{4})(d)(ix} regarding verifiable references in respect of
the experience of the applicant and its proposed sub-contractors is not applicable.
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1 Technical Feasibility
1.1 Site Conditions:

The following tasks were carried out:
» Global Horizontal Irradiation, annual and inter-annual variation was assessed.
* Near shading objects were taken into account for the placement of PV modules.

* Area required for selected module technology was calculated. Keeping in view available area and
minimum inter-row shading, tilt angle, and appropriate spacing was calculated from near-shading
objects.

1.2 Site locations

The project site is the ground of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd. The exact coordinates of the project
Site-1 are Latitude: 32°54'9.57"N & longitude: 71°36'15.98"E. And Site-2 are Latitude: 32°54'14.50"N &
longitude: 71°35'23.13"E

Site-1 (10MW):




Site-2 (15MW):

s
MLPL Transmissior

1.3. Plant characteristics

Generation Voltage: 6.3kV three phase three-wire system
Power Factor at rated power: 1
Frequency: 50Hz

Generation characteristic: Inverter has built-in features of controllable active power ramp following
grid disturbance or normal connection, voltage regulation, and frequency response. There are no
additional control metering and instrumentations.

1.3.1 Technology selection

Sr. Document/
No. | Specifications (Model & Technology) Drawing
1 | Type of Module Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV
2 | Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
3 | Dimensions of Each Module 2278%x1134x30 mm
4 | Weight 32 kg
5 | No of Modules 17416 Nos.
& | Total Ground Area Used 28 Acre
7 | Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy
8 | Nominal Max. Power (P max) 575 Wp (0.40% Annual Degradation)
9 | Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp) 42.44 V
10 | Opt. Operating Current {Imp) 13.55A




11 | Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 51.27V
12 | Short Circuit Current (Isc) 14.31A
13 | Module Efficiency 23.37%
14 | Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
15 | Max. System Voltage 1500 vVD(C
16 | Quality Management System 1509001:2015
17 | Environment Management System 15014001:2015
18 | Occupational health and safety management system | 15045001:2018
Sr. Data
No | Specification of Strings
1 | No of Strings 622
2 | Modules in each Strings 28
PV Capacity:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Plant Rated Capacity (W) 10014200
2 | Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 | Mcdule Efficiency 23.37%
Inverters:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Manufacturer Huawei
2 | Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 | No. of Inverters 32
4 | Rated Power 275,000 W at 45 °C and above temperature
5 | Max Input Voltage 1,500 V
6 | Max output Current 2403 A
7 | Efficiency 299.0%
Transformers:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Manufacturer PEL
2 | Rating (KVA) 2500
3 | Number of Transformers 4
4 | Cooling Type ONAN
5 | Rated MV Voltage 6300V
& | Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 | Temperature Rating 50°C
8 | No Load Losses 2.9 kW
9 | Impedance (%) 6%




Switchgears:

Sr.
No i Item Brand Description
Tariq & Co/ Bilal
1 | LV Swtichgear Engineering 20004, BOOVAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to LV
2 | Panels) ABB MCCB TP 320A 50Hz Icu=25KA @ 1150 VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB Fixed
3 | Transformers) ABB Icu=lcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB- i/p (Transformers to MV
4 { Busbar) Siemens 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
5 | LBS- o/p (MV Panel Outgoing) | Siemens 3AHAAABG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
Control & Monitoring:
Sr. No | Item Brand Description
EKO- lapan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring System RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
RIKA Module Temperature with RS485
RIKA wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make: Phoenix
2 Power Meter Empro Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A
Sr. Document/
No. | Specifications (Model & Technology) Drawing
1 Type of Module Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV
2 Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
3 Dimensions of Each Module 2278%1134%30 mm
4 Weight 32kg
5 No of Modules 26096 Nos
5 Total Ground Area Used 42 Acre
7 Module Frame Ancdized Anodized Aluminum Alloy
8 Nominal Max. Power {P max) 575 Wp (0.40% Annual Degradation)
9 Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp) 4244V
10 Opt. Operating Current {Imp) 1355A
11 Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 51.27V




12 Short Circuit Current (isc) 14.31A
13 Module Efficiency 23.37%
14 Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
15 | Max. System Voltage 1500 VDC
16 Quality Management System 1SC9001:2015
17 Environment Management System 15014001:2015
18 Occupational health and safety management system | 1S045001:2018
Sr. No | Specification of Strings Data
1 No of Strings 932
2 Modules in each Strings 28
PV Capacity:
Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Plant Rated Capacity (W) 15005200
2 Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 Module Efficiency 23.37%
Inverters:
Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer Huawei
2 Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 No. of Inverters 48
4 Rated Power 275,000 W at 45 °C and above temperature
5 Max Input Voltage 1,500V
6 Max output Current 2203 A
7 Efficiency 299.0%
Transformers:
Sr. No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer PEL
2 Rating (KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 6
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 Rated MV Voltage 6300V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 Temperature Rating 50°C
8 No Load Losses 2.9 kw
9 Impedance (%) 6%




Switchgears:

Sr.No | ltem Brand Description
Tarig & Co/ Bilal
1 LV Swtichgear Engineering 2000A, 800VAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to LV
2 Panels) ABB MCCB TP 320A 50Hz Icu=25KA @ 1150 VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LS| FHR ACB Fixed
3 Transformers) ABB Icu=Ilcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB-i/p (Transformers to MV
4 Busbar) Siemens 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
5 LBS- o/p (MV Panel Outgoing) | Siemens 3AHAAAG-2, 12504, 6.3KV/12KV, Type Tested
Control & Monitoring
Sr.No | Item Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring System RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
RIKA Module Temperature with R5485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make: Phoenix
2 Power Meter Empro Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




1.4. Design Parameters:

The following tasks were carried out for PV layout and shading:

+ Assessment of shading (horizon and any nearby shading)

¢ Qutline layout of area suitable for PV development

* Designing row spacing to reduce inter-row shading and associated shading losses.

¢ Designing the layout to minimize cable runs and associated electrical losses.

* Creating access routes and sufficient space to allow movement for maintenance purposes

* Choosing a tilt angle that optimizes the annual energy yield according to the latitude of the site and
the annual distributicn of solar resources.

» Water Source at Site: Bore water will be stored in underground tanks, fresh water for maintenance.
Utility supply will be from MLPL.

* Simulating the annual energy losses associated with various configurations of tilt angle, orientation,
and row spacing. The optimized configuration and simulation results are given in section “Energy Yield
Prediction".



15 Layout

PV layouts of the site are given in the following section.

1) Layout of the ground Site-1, MLPL 10MW Solar Power Plant

88'E
Solar. 10MW




2) layout of the ground Site-1, MLPL 10MW Solar Power Plant

Legend:

1.6 Elect Design {Single Line Diagram)

The electrical system comprises the following components:
* Array(s) of PV modules
* DC/Cabling (module, string, and main cable)
* Transformers
* DC connectors (plugs and sockets)
. * Protection devices e.g. beakers
* Energy Metering
s Earthling

The single line diagrams of DC and AC sides are given below. The single line diagram includes the
protection devices that will be used for the safe and smooth operation of the system.
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Protections DC Side: String Fuses, DC Isolator Switches, and Surge Protective Device (all built in inverter)

Protections AC-Side: MCCB, ACB, VCB

Single Line Diagram Site-1 (10 MW Solar):

Single Line Diagram - 10 MWp Solar PV Plant
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Single Line Diagram Site-2 (15 MW Solar):

"~ Single Line Diagram - 15 MWp Solar PV Plant
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1.7 Energy Yield Estimation

The energy vield prediction provides the basis for calculating project revenues. The aim is to predict the
average annual energy output for the lifetime of the proposed power plant.

To estimate accurately the energy produced from a PV power plant, information is needed on
the solar resource and temperature conditions of the site. Also required are the layout and technical
specifications of the plant components.

A number of solar energy vield prediction software packages are available in the market. These
packages use time step simulation to model the performance of a project over the course of a

year. PVsyst software has been used for energy yieid prediction for this site and its results are given
below

For Site-1 (10MW Solar): 16,353,418.9 KWh (Specific Generation=1633 kWH/kWp/Year)

For Site-2 (15MW Solar): 24,503,836.7 KWh (Specific Generation = 1633 kWH/kWp/Year)

12




2 Financial Proposal
2.1 The Project will be finance through 40% MLPL own generated fund {Equity) and 60% Debit.

2.1 The Capital cost shall include the cost borne by applicant Company on feasibility studies, planning,
designing, material, construction and instaliation of the generation facility.

2.2 The Cost of land in this regarded is not required because the Solar plant will be constructed on
BPC Land.

2.3 The MLPL will supply 16,353,418.9 KWh from 10 MW Solar Plant and 24,503,836.7 KWh from 15
MW to its BPC (Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd).

24 The expected cost of the project has been estimated to be Rs. 3.34 billion (11.517 million USD,
PKR/USD rate of 290} and Rs 133.6/Watt (USD 0.4605/Watt).

2.5 The project is technically and financial viable based on the study conducted and BPC future power
demand.

13
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Type "eStamp <18 digit eStamp Number>" send to 8100

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY
"Applications for seeking Electric Power Generation License Regarding Solar Project”
ON BEHALF OF

Maple Leaf Power Limited
AFFIDAVIT

|, Sohail Sadiq S/o Ch. Sadiq Hussain, holding CNIC No. 35202-2852436-7, Executive
Director (Finance) of Maple Leaf Power Limited, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that
Maple Power Limited has been issued Generation License since 20 December 2016 by

NEPRA.

S \es- Y
Z

DEPONENT

Sohail Sadiq

Executive Director (Fin

Maple Leaf Power Limite

Dated: 20-06-2023

G ...unamm@zwm Sadiy
Advisa'e
RNotary Public L shere.




. . 42-Lawrence Road,

Lahore, (Pakistan)

Maple Leaf Power Limited Tt Gogn e, (Pakistan)
Fax: 0092-42-36368721

RESOLUTION BY CIRCULATION DATED JUNE 15, 2023
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MAPLE LEAF POWER LIMITED

Whereas, the management of Maple Leaf Power Limited, having its Registered Office at
42-Iawrence Road, Lahore (the “Company™) is desirous to apply to the National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (“NEPRA”™) for grant of electric power generation license
regarding Solar Project pursuant to Regulations of Generation, Transmission and
Distribution of Electric Power (Amendment) Act, 2018 under Section 23 of the NEPRA
Act for generating electricity to Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) i.e. Maple Leaf Cement
Factory Limited.

And whereas it is expedient to appoint the authorized Attorney for and on behalf of the
Company in order to execute, sign and deliver any document or documents including any
agreement for the said purpose.

Therefore, it is hereby Resolved that approval of the Board of Directors is hereby
accorded to Maple Leaf Power Limited (the “Company”) to apply to the National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (“NEPRA™) for grant of electric power generation license
under the aforesaid Act and Regulations of NEPRA for generating electricity to Bulk
Power Consumer (BPC) i.e. Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL), the holding
company.

Resolved further that Mr. Sohail Sadig, Executive Director (Finance) of the Company,
is hereby authorized and empowered to file an application to NEPRA for the grant of
electric power generation license to the Company, execute, sign severally the application,
negotiate, deposit fees and submit documents to NEPRA and any documentation ancillary
thereto, in the matter of generating electricity for BPC i.e. MLCFL.

Resolved further that any and all actions of the authorized representative officer in
pursuant to, or in furtherance of the intent and purposes of the foregoing resolution, are
hereby in all respects adopted, approved, confirmed and ratified as the valid and
subsisting acts of this Company.

Resolved further that Mr. Sohail Sadiq, Executive Director (Finance) is authorized to
engage or appoint any legal counsel and issue Power of Attorney in his favour for his
appearance and representation of the Company in the said Case and to file any
Application or take back any documents, to instruct the Advocate, ratify all acts done by
him and pay all fees, expenses and other legal payments.

Resolved further that a certified true copy of this resolution be communicated to
NEPRA and shall remain in force until notice in writing to the contrary be given.

ook ook ok o ok o ok ok e
Certifie e Copy

For Maple
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Type "eStamp <16 digit eStamp Number>" send to 8100

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY
"Application for seeking Electric Power Generation License Regarding Solar Project"
ON BEHALF OF

Maple Leaf Power Limited
AFFIDAVIT

. |, Sohail Sadiq S/o Ch. Sadiq Hussain, holding CNIC No. 35202-2852436-7, Executive
Director (Finance) of Maple Leaf Power Limited, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that

Maple Leaf Power Limited has not been refused grant of license under the Act by NEPRA.
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i TED
o Munannna/}lueem Sadiy

Lovae

Wotary Pubic Lahcre




E-STAMP

D

PB-LHR-F2D7FF94C8941DDA

Type : Low Denomination

Amount : Rs 20C/-

Description : AFFIDAVIT- 4

Applicant ; MAPLE LEAF PWOER LIMITED [00000-0000000-0)
Representative From:  OFFICER

Agent : ABDUL SAMAD [22501-7842965-5]
Address : LAHORE

Issue Date : < 13-Jun-2023 3:44:28 PM

Delisted On/Validity : 20-jun-2023

Amount in Words : Two Hundred Rupees Only

Reason : NEPRA

Vendor Information - Raza ul Mustafa | PB-LHR-1016 | Gazi Abad

@ S L § o el ot by 398 TS e Suo g eyl B2al (§ alid g Jlaniad S S S ugis ol o byord FeagB o 205305 2 Lgd
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY
"Applications for seeking Electric Power Generation License Regarding Solar Project"
ON BEHALF OF

Maple Leaf Power Limited

AFFIDAVIT

I, Sohail Sadiq S/o Ch. Sadiq Hussain, hoilding CNIC No. 35202-2852436-7, Executive
Director (Finance) of Maple Leaf Power Limited, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that
the contents of the accompanying Application for Generation License (the "License")
regarding Solar Project is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and
that the nothing matefial has been concealed there from. | also affirm that all further
documentation and information to be provided by me in connection with the
accompanying application for Generation License will also be true to the best of my

knowledge and belief.
< -
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@ DEPONENT

Sohail Sadiq

Executive Director (Finan

Maple Leaf Power Limited
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Dated: 20-06-2023

Ch. Mubanfrad faeem Sadig
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited = °02307!

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule lil (Regulation 3{4)(a){A)(e) 3(i) *, Location
(location maps, site map, land) “it is to inform you that the project site is the ground of Maple Leaf Cement
Factory Ltd. The exact coordinates of the project Site-1 are Latitude: 32°54'9.57"N & longitude:
71°36'15.98"E. And Site-2 is Latitude: 32°54'14.50"N & longitude: 71°35'23.13"E.

Site-1 (10MW):

32'549:57'N . 71°36'15.98'E
SSolar 10MW

;Tunnel Entry (K-4)




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

MaJ)]e Leaf Power Limited Fx 92-042-36368721

Site-2 (15SMW):

S Salan BRI .

32°54'14.57°N
71°35'23.17"E




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

lep]e Leaf Power Limited Fx 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule |1l (Regulation 3(4){a){A){e) 3(ii) Technology,
size of the plant, number of units is tableted below.

10MV;

Sr. Document/

No. Specifications (Model & Technology) Drawing
1 Type of Module Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV
2 Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
3 Dimensions of Each Module 2278x1134x30 mm
4 Weight 32 kg
5 No of Modules 17416 Nos.
6 Total Ground Area Used 28 Acre
7 Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy

575 Wp (0.40% Annual
8 Nominal Max. Power (P max) Degradation)
9 Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp) 42.44 V
10 | Opt. Operating Current (Imp) 13.55 A
11 Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 5127V
12 | Short Circuit Current (Isc) 1431A
13 | Module Efficiency 23.37%
14 | Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
15 | Max. System Voltage 1500 VDC
16 | Quality Management System 1S0%9001:2015
17 | Environment Management System 1SO14001:2015
18 | Occupational health and safety management 1SO45001:2018
system




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

M@ple Leaf Power Limited Fax 9%042-36368721

Sr. Data

No | Specification of Strings
1 | No of Strings 622
2 | Modules in each Strings 28

PV Capacity

Sr.

No | Specification Data
1 | Plant Rated Capacity (W) 10014200
2 | Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 | Module Efficiency 23.37%

Inverters:

Sr.

No | Specification Data
1 | Manufacturer Huawet
2 | Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
3 | No. of Inverters 32

275,000 W at 45 °C and above

4 | Rated Power temperature
5 | Max Input Voltage 1,500 V
6 | Max output Current 2403 A
7 | Efficiency >99.0%




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 02357

Transformers:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer PEL
2 Rating (KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 4
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 Rated MV Voltage 6300V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 Temperature Rating 50°C
8 No Load Losses 2.9 kw
9 Impedance (%) 6%
Switchgears:
Sr.
No | Item Brand Description
Tariq & Co/
Bilal 2000A, 800VAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor
1 LV Swtichgear Engineering Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to MCCB TP 320A 50Hz lcu=25KA @ 1150
2 | LV Panels) ABB VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB
3 Transformers) ABB Fixed Icu=lcs=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB- i/p (Transformers 3AHAAAG-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
4 | to MV Busbar) Siemens Tested
LBS- o/p (MV Panel 3AHAAAB-2, 12504, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
5 QOutgoing) Siemens Tested




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leat Power Limited 023567

Control & Monitoring
sr.
No | Item Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
System RIKA Module Temperature with RS485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make:
2 Power Meter Empro Phoenix Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 | SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Mgple Leaf Power Limited Fax 92-042-36368721

[y
19,
=
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Specifications (Model & Technology)

Document/
Drawing

Type of Module

Tiger Neo N-type 72HL4-BDV

Type of Cell N type Mono-crystalline
Dimensions of Each Module 2278x1134x30 mm
Weight 32 kg

No of Modules 26096 Nos

Total Ground Area Used 42 Acre

Module Frame Anodized Anodized Aluminum Alloy

Nominal Max. Power (P max)

575 Wp (0.40% Annual Degradation)

Opt. Operating Voltage (Vmp)

42.44V

Opt. Operating Current (Imp) 13.55 A
Open Circuit Voltage (Voc) 51.27V
Short Circuit Current (Isc) 14.31A
Module Efficiency 23.37%
Operating Temperature -40°C~+85°C
Max. System Voltage 1500 VDC

Quality Management System

1SO9001:2015

Environment Management System

[SO14001:2015

Oouoxm_prHo\OooMO\m.wa_-?ﬁ

Occupational health and safety management
system

1SO45001:2018




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax>042-36368721

Sr. Data
No | Specification of Strings
1 | No of Strings 932
2 | Modules in each Strings 28
PV Capacity:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Plant Rated Capacity (W) 15005200
2 | Net Capacity Factor 18.6
3 | Module Efficiency 23.37%
Inverters:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 | Manufacturer Huawei
2 | Capacity of Each Inverter 330,000 VA
No. of Inverters 48
275,000 W at 45 °C and above
4 | Rated Power temperature
5 | Max Input Voltage 1,500 V
6 | Max output Current 2403 A
7 | Efficiency >99.0%




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited o 9204236368721

Transformers:
Sr.
No | Specification Data
1 Manufacturer PEL
2 | Rating (KVA) 2500
3 Number of Transformers 6
4 Cooling Type ONAN
5 | Rated MV Voltage 6300 V
6 Rater LV Voltage 800V
7 Temperature Rating 50°C
8 No Load Losses 2.9 kw
9 Impedance (%) 6%
Switchgears:
Sr. ]
No | Item Brand Description
Tariqg & Co/
Bilal 2000A, 800VAC, IP-54, Indoor, Floor
1 LV Swtichgear Engineering Standing
MCCB- i/p (Inverters to MCCB TP 320A 50Hz Icu=25KA @ 1150
2 LV Panels) ABB VAC
ACB- o/p (LV Panels to E2.2H/E9 2500 Ekip Touch LSI FHR ACB
3 | Transformers) ABB Fixed Icu=Ics=65KA @ 900 VAC
VCB-i/p (Transformers 3AHAAAB-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
4 | to MV Busbar) Siemens Tested
LBS- o/p (MV Panel 3AHAAAB-2, 1250A, 6.3KV/12KV, Type
5 Outgoing) Siemens Tested




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited °>%3567!

Control & Monitoring
Sr.
No | Item Brand Description
EKO- Japan Pyranometer MS-80 Class-A sensor
1 Weather Monitoring RIKA Humidity & Ambient Temperature
System RIKA Module Temperature with R5485
RIKA Wind Speed Sensor
Model: EEMMA770-2907945, Make:
2 Power Meter Empro Phoenix Germany
3 Server PC DELL DELL Server R340
4 | SCADA PcVue PcVue SCADA
Data Loggers/ Inverter
5 Manager Huawei SmartLogger3000A




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited [ 92042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4){(a)(A){e} 3(ili) *Water
source at site for maintenance “it is to inform that Bore water will be stored in underground tanks, fresh
water for maintenance and utility supply will be from MLPL.”




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fex 9-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4){a){A)(e) 3(iv} *
Infrastructure: roads, rail, staff colony, amenities are already established.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited  fox 52043636872

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill {Regulation 3(4)(a}(A){e) 3(v) *. It
is to inform that 10 MW and 15 MW Solar Power Plants project commencement and completion
schedules with milestones are attached.
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PROJECT PLAN - 1SMW SOLAR POWER PLANT - MAPLE LEAF CEMENT LTD.

1MW SOLAR POWER FLANT
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PROJECT PLAN - 10MW SOLAR POWER PLANT - MAPLE LEAF CEMENT LTD.

DM SCLAR FOWER PLANT
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited %2362

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 3(vi) * Safety
plans, emergency plans” is attached.




@ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

ML.CF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
) Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
Title Emergency Response Plan 94-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015
SOP Revision Histo
Delete point related to attendance
under 2.2. Heading 2.4 change with
Mr. Irfan | In—charge HSE | 21-06-2016 1.0 | “Shift Engineer” and add 2. CR #0119
bulleted point. Change in 2.7.
Change in 2.1, 2.6, 2.7, 3.1, 3.4.2.1
(Manual System) & 3.4.2.2
Mr. Iffan | In—charge HSE | 18-Jan-2018 2.0 | (Automated Response System). CR # 235
Delete 3.2.3.2 (Earthquake) &
3.2.3.3 (Hurricanes)
Change in clauses 2.1, 3.3.2.3 &
A 3.3.24 (assembly points &
Mr. Irfan | In—charge HSE | 04-Apr-2020 3.0 Evacuation Routes added for CEPP CR # 0440
& L-III) and 3,6.
change in clause 1.1, 2nd & 3rd
In - charge HSE | 23-Nov-2020 | 4.0 | bullet under 2.1, 2.6, 3.1.1.1 & | CR # 0482
3.1.1.2,
Table Of Contents
Section/ Sub | Title Page No.
Section No.
Section-1 Scope & Purpose 2
Section-2 Responsibilities 2
Section-3 Procedure 4
Section-4 Annexure 22

Prepared by:

Reviewed by:

Approved by:

In-charge HSE

Head — RCM

e\

Chief Internal Auditor &
Chief Executive Officer

© 2015- MLCFL

Page 1 of 22

COVID-19 Safety measure: This document is e-signed by the CEO and other signatories ‘consent is available on email with QMS department.




% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

Title Emergency Response Plan
SECTION 1 SCOPE AND PURPOSE

1.1. Scope

This SOP shall apply to a broad range of emergencies which are included but not limited
to Fires, Diseases, Earthquake, Terrorism, Flood, and Hurricane or any other natural
calamities at Maple Leaf Cement Factory.

1.2. Purpose

This SOP is aimed at establishing a comprehensive procedure to deal with any disastrous
event mentioned in the scope for reporting, evacuating, controlling and roles &
responsibilities of HSE staff including training of MLCFL employees.

SECTION 2 RESPONSIBILITIES
2.1, In - charge HSE
In — charge HSE shall be responsible to:

o Ensure that emergency response plan i.e SOP is distributed and understood by
MLCFL employees '

+ Coordinate with Head RCM, Head A&IR and concerned HOD

« Monitor Plant emergency response plan on behalf of Plant management/designated
officers

» Manage emergency drills and evaluations on regular basis at Plant site.

2.2. HSE area Managers

HSE Area Managers must be familiar with all aspects of Emergency Response and
Evacuation Plan and assist to employees in all emergencies that may occur at MLCFL.
HSE area manager shall:

« Know all buildings layouts and varicus escape routes

o Know the location of, and how to operate available fire extinguishers, in the
buildings.

¢ Know the hazardous areas to be avoided during the evacuation

« In case of any person is missing or trapped, Emergency Response Team shall rescue
the perscn in a safe way by using all available equipments and with the support of
medical unit team/local rescue service

e Maintain discipline and control the panic situation during the evacuation process

© 2015- MLCFL " Page 2 of 22

COVID-19 Safety measure: This document is e-signed by the CEO and other signatories ‘consent is available on email with QMS department.




- @ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan IZ‘Z"_'S'SS_?;;S: Ap1p Il'fggé?z%itse :

2.3. First Responder

First Responders shall be the individual who first comes across or is aware of the
emergency and shall:

¢ Quickly assess the scene and immediately communicate with CCR/help line operator

» In the case of fire emergency, raise the alarm to warn all persons present in the area

e Make area safe for the casualty(s), if possible for him/her otherwise move casualty(s)
to safe location (if safe to do so)

¢ Provide First Aid Care, if trained for it

¢ Handover to designated First Aider, communicate information on injuries, action
taken and cause of injury (if known)

. 2.4, Shift Engineers

The shift Engineers, shall be the first point of contact for the first responder and shall be
responsible for:

o Notify first aiders in Trauma Center to mobilize, Ref. Annexure A
« Swap through the respective building to make sure everyone has evacuated
« Notify emergency response team and Head HSE. Ref. Annexure A

2.5. First Aiders
The responsibilities of first aiders shall be:

» To assess the scene and condition of casualty
» To provide initial first aid care and stabilize patient(s)
¢ To remain with patient(s) and wait for ambulance

2.6. Maple Health Care Medical Unit Team (Paramedic Staff/ Ambulance Drivers)

Ambulance shall proceed to the location as scon as possible with revolving light/siren in
“ON” condition. All other vehicles shall give way to ambulance. Paramedical staff shall
accompany the ambulance.

* Provide care to stabilize / treat patient(s) before transferring to hospital

» Communicate Medical evacuation requirements when appropriate to the
Head HSE

« First Aider must accompany patient(s) to the hospital (if required)

© 2015- MLCFL Page 3 of 22

COVID-19 Safety measure: This document is e-signed by the CEQO and other signatories ‘consent is available on email with QMS depariment.



ig MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

Title Emergency Response Plan

2.7. Emergency Response Team (ERT)

Emergency response team shall be responsible to extinguish the fire, provide first aid to
injured person(s) if trained, and help in evacuation and damage control by all possitle
available means. ERT shall shutdown the equipment by using the emergency switchzs
and after that they shall inform the CCR operator. Fire truck shall proceed to the location
as soon as possible with revolving light/siren in “ON” condition. All other vehicles shall
give way to fire truck and duty security staff shall ensure the route clearance. Aftar
completion of all actions ERT team is responsible to:

o Ensure that fire is completely extinguished
e Submit a comprehensive Emergency Report to Head HSE

SECTION 3 PROCEDURES:

3.1, Fire Emergencies:

In the case of fire emergency, first responder shall raise the alarm to warn all persons
present in the area. First responder shall warn all persons present in area by repeatecly
shouting “Fire, Fire, Fire”, “Emergency, Emergency, Emergency”. After incident
communication on “Emergency Number 2289 (Ext.), he/she along with designated
firefighting team of each arca shall try to extinguish the fire with appropriate instail:d
equipments i.e. water, sand, suitable fire extinguishers and fire hydrants etc. (ONLY {F
he/they are trained to do so).

Firefighting team shall immediately inform the concerned department to cut of the fual,
electric, and gas supply and inform emergency response team about the event. Those in
vicinity having heard the voice alarm shall rush to the allocated assembiy points.
Firefighting team shall:

Organize and control the fire extinguishing efforts at initial stage

Secure and prevent wounded persens if possible by not risking their own lives
Remove sensitive / precicus pieces of equipment to a safe piace if possible while not
risking their own lives

3.1.1, Medical Emergencies:
3.1.1.1. Medical Unit
Paramedic staff at the Maple Health Care Center (MHCC) shall manage the

medical emergencies as per HSE SOP MLCFL/HSE/S-003. Medical emergenci2s
at Plant to be treated in MHCC for stabilizing before referring to Hospita!.

'© 2015- MLCFL Page 4 of 22

COVIN-19 Safety measure: This document is e-signed by the CEO and other signatorics “consent is available on email with QMS department.




¢ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan gav_'ggg_zr)(fztg: Aplp ;f:gﬁz%alt;:
3.1.1.2, Ambulance ‘

3.1.1.3.

3.1.1.4.

Injured person(s) at Plant site shall be transported to hospital using ambulance
as per HSE SOP MLCFL/HSE/S-003,

Severe Weather & Natural Disasters:

Severe weather and natural disasters are often unforeseen, in case of severe
weather and natural disasters following procedure shall be adopted:

Earthquake:

Employee shall remain calm and await instructions from the Head HSE or the
designated HSE officer.

Employees shall be evacuated as per instructions of HSE area manager
and/or the designated HSE officer.

Employees shall keep themselves away from overhead fixtures, windows,
filing cabinets, and electrical power.

Employees shall assist handicap personnel in finding a safe place

3.2, Bomb/terrorism threats:

All bomby/ terrorism threats received shall be treated as a serious threat. It is essential
that whoever receives the call pays attention and record the required following
information:

Detail about the explosive device

Detail of the caller’s voice and demeanor — e.g. accent, level of calmness etc.
Any background noise from the callers end — e.g. machinery, traffic, animals etc.
The recipient of the call shall immediately inform head S&GS

3.3. Evacuation procedure:

A standard building evacuation system comprises of following three components:

3.3.1. The circulation path:

« Circulation path is a continuous and unobstructed route for evacuation leading to
the assembly area (rooms, corridors, doors, stairs, smoke proof enclosures,
horizontal exits, ramps, exit passageways, moving walkways etc.).

© 2015- MLCFL N " Page’5 of 22

COVID-19 Safety measure: This document is ¢-signed by the CEO and other signatories ‘consent is available on email with QMS department.




% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure {SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan R;rg::_ggztg: Apf iifggtlﬁz%itse :

3.3.2. Notification System(S):

* Notifications could be manual or automated.

3.3.2.1. Manual System:

o First responder shall warn all persons present in area by raising the
emergency alarm

o Dial 2299 to report the incident and inform them about nature and location of
the incident. The first responder shall notify details of the building.

3.3.2.2. Automated Response System (Smoke/Heat Sensors):

¢ On detection of smoke or heat by the automated sensors, sound alarm shall
blow to alert building occupants regarding fire on a specific floor/building.
Occupants shall proceed towards assembly area and remain there until “All
Clear” announcement is given by Emergency Response Team after
extinguishing fire through fire extinguishers or hydrants. In case, heat or
smoke is not detected by the sensors but bserved by any individual (first
responder), he/she has to activate alarm by pushing alarm switch provided in
all buildings.

3.3.2.3. Emergency Assembly Points:

Nt hly Ferd

00000

'© 2015- MLCFL " Page 6 of 22
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
. Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
Fmergency Response Plan | 24-Dec2020 | 11-Feb-2015
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ﬂv MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HSE/S-008

Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0

MLCF/Works
Revision Date:

Applicable Date:

Title

| 24-Dec-2020

11-Feb-2015
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EMERGENCY ASSEMBLY POINTS AT L-III
© 2015- MLCFL Page 8 of 22
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ﬂ- MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
mergency Respon Plan " 11-Feb-2015

24-Dec-2020

EMERGENCY ASSEMBLY POINTS AT HO

© 2015- MLCFL o ) N " Page9 of 22
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a MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:

Title Emergency Response Plan 24-Dec-2020 |  11-Feb-2015

3.3.2.4. Evacuation Routes:

Evacuation routes at management house GCD are shown in following maps.

Evacuation Routes Management House GCD

Central Room

B

Evacuation Routes CCR Building GCD First Floor

© 2015- MLCFL “"Page 10 of 22
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% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan g‘fﬁgg_gﬁg: Apf Ilifsgé?z%i?:
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% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works

Standard Operating procedure (SOP)

Rev#4.0

MLCF/HSE/S-008

Title

Emergency Response Plan

Revision Date:
24-Dec-2020

Applicable Date:
11-Feb-2015
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
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ﬂ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure {SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:

Title Emerge R
ergency Response Plan 24-Dec-2020 |  11-Feb-2015

oy

Evacuation Routes HO Building First Floor
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$ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan RZTSISS_ZDOaZtg: Apf Ilifsebﬁz%itse :

EVACUATION PLAN FOR GROUND FLOOR CFPP
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
. Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
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, e oo Pl | 24Dec2020 | 11-Feb-2015
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EVACUATION PLAN FOR 1% Floor CFPP
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MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan Rze;/_i ggg.goa;g: Apf Efsgﬁz%itse :

STEAM TURBINE

EVACUATION PLAN FOR 2™ Floor CFPP
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@ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works

Standard Operating procedure (SOP)

Rev#4.0

MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date:

Applicable Date:

Title

Emergency Response Plan

24jDec-2020

_11-Feb-2015

EVACUATION PLAN FOR Top Floors CFPP
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# MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008
Title Emergency Response Plan gtz\tiggg_%aztg: Apf Ilii:g;)tz%alt: :

Coal Yard
I

< i e

V ] Starage Mrah ] i

B = s i Spi e

EVACUATION PLAN FOR 1-1I1

3.3.2.5. Signage (Urdu/English) -

Employees to evacuate the building in following sequence observing safety
signs.

o Proceed to the nearest emergency exit in an orderly manner using stairs.

Do not use the elevators.

Assist anyone who is having difficulty during evacuation process.

Listen for any additional instructions from safety officer.

Assemble in designated area.

Ensure that safety officer is aware of your presence. Notify safety officer
about anyone who is still missing. Wait for instructions until it is safe to return.

©® 2015- MLCFL Page 19 of 22
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' & MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-C08

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

Title Emergency Response Plan
3.4. Drills (Fire & Medical)

All employees are required to participate in periodic drills both at plant site and Head
office. The purpose of these drills is to ensure that all employees have become familiar
with emergency response plan, evacuate their respective areas, familiar with emergency
exits and their orderly use. During the drill building employees shall follow the procedure
set forth in this document.

HSE Department shall be responsibie for maintaining the schedule and record log for the
emergency drills. The time required for each drill shall be about 10 minutes, followed by
a short discussion on the outcome of the drill.

First responde
8 ) [ )
Emergency
First Alder f+—Medical Emergency HELP Line Response Team
_ -y S e

~ Fire Emergency
ft————— ——

3.5. Communication Chart

— ™

Fire Truck L tnvestigation of
é M Accident
e _J
Safety Area A R
Manager
- J
& :
1 ! |
Admin & IR GM Works
Department I
L S

Communication Chart
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

Title Emergency Response Plan

3.6. Program Evaluation

In — charge HSE, Head A&IR and Head RCM shall review and evaluate the Emergency
Response plan on yearly basis or as and when required.

3.6.1.Trainings

All empioyees engaged in plant operations shall be trained by HSE in coordination
with HR department as per approved annual training plan. The training shall mainly
include the following topics:

Fire Emergencies Response
Medical Emergencies Response
Natural Disaster Response

Terrorism Response
Atleast one drill in a year shall be carried out after the completion of trainings.

Record of such drills shall be maintained by HSE Department

© 2015- MLCFL Page 21 of 22
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“ MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/Works Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#4.0 MLCF/HSE/S-008

Revision Date: | Applicable Date:

Title Emergency Response Plan 24-Dec-2020 11-Feb-2015

SECTION 4 ANNEXURES:

Emergency Response Team & Contacts Annexure A
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- MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HSE/S-008

Standard Operating procedure (SOP)

Rev#2.0

Annexure A

Title

Emergency Response Plan

Revision Date:

11-Jun-2020

Applicable Date:

11-Feb-2015

Annexure Revision History

o,
1 Delete fire igHtIhg Team and add
Irfan Tahir In — Charge HSE | 18-Jan-2018 1.0 Emergency Response Team. Add | CR # 0235
updated contact numbers.
M, Irfan Taher | In—Charge HSE | 03-Dec-2019 2.0 List updated. CR # 0440
Prepared by Reviewed by Approved by

In-charge HSE

APPROVED BY ALL CONCERNED ((

o

f

OVID-19)

Head - RCM

Chief Internal Auditor & Chief

Executive Officer

©® 2015 - MLCFL

MLCF/HSE/S008-A

Pagelof4




- MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HSE/S-008 Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#2.0 Annexure A
i Revision Date: Applicable Date:
Title Emergency Response Plan 11-Jun-2020 11-Feb-2015
Emergency Response Team & Contacts
Plant Site:
Head RCM Tel, No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2202
ea Mobile/Cell No.: +92 (0) 3000308502
Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2335
In - charge HSE Mobile/Cell No.: +92 (0) 300 0308536
Head A&IR Tel No. 0459 392238 Ext: 2400 &2401
Mobile No. 0300 0308510
In - charge S&GS Tel No. 0459 392238 Ext:2404
Mobile No. 0300 0308595
First aiders:
First Aider 1 Trauma Center GCD Tel, No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2311
First Aider 2 Trauma Center GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2311
First Aider 3 Trauma Center GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2311
Fire wardens:
Fire Warden 1 Fire warden GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2299
Fire Warden 2 Fire warden GCD Tel, No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2299
Fire Warden 3 Fire warden GCD Tel, No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2299
Fire Warden 4 Fire warden GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2299
Fire Warden 5 Fire warden GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2311
Fire Warden 6 Fire warden GCD Tel, No.: (0459 392238 Ext: 2311
Fire Warden 7 Fire warden GCD Tel, No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2311
Fire Warden 8 Fire warden GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Exi: 2311
Fire Warden 9 Fire warden GCD Tel, No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2452
Fire Warden 10 | Fire warden GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2452
Fire Warden 11 | Fire warden GCD Tel. No.: 0459 392238 Ext: 2452
Fire Warden 12 | Fire warden L-III Tel. No.: 0300 0308799
Fire Warden 13 | Fire warden L-III Tel. No.: 0300 0308799
Fire Warden 14 | Fire warden L-III Tel, No.: 0300 0308799
Fire Warden 15 | Fire warden L-III Tel. No.: 0300 0308799
Fire Warden 16 | Fire warden L-III Tel. No.: 0300 0308799
Fire Warden 17 | Fire warden L-III Tel. No.: 0300 0308799
Fire Warden 18 | Fire warden L-III Tel. No.: 0300 0308799
APPROVED BY ALL CONCERNED (COVID-19)
© 2015 - MLCFL MLCF/HSE/S008-A Page 2 of 4




o MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HSE/S-008 Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#2.0 Annexure A
Title Emergency Response Plan Rle I"?:JO nn_zl?gg : A[;pllﬁitél_ezgla ;e:

Emergency Services Contact Telephone Numbers:

Fire department 2299

Trauma center/ambulance 2311/2299

Police 15

Security +92(0) 459 392238 Ext: 2223 & 2416

Utility Supplier Emergency Contact Telephone Numbers

+92(0) 459 392238 Ext:2361,2362(GCD)

Flectric 2449(SCD), 2473 (PGRD)
Water +92(0) 459 392238 Ext: 2451
Gas +92(0) 459 392238 Ext: 2473
Telephone +92(0) 459 392238 Ext: 2211
# Emp No. Name - Designation Department
1 5394 M. MANAN Manager Finance
2 5381 M. ASAD Manager Production
3 5329 M. IRFAN HAIDER DM Stores
4 5390 SALMAN MIRZA DM HSE
5 5388 M. HAMMAD ASHRAF DM PG & Distribution
6 5302 QUNDIL ASGHAR DM Production
7 9119 UMAIR KHAN DM Marketing & Supply Chain
8 5375 HAMZA AL AM Admin & IR
9 5295 SYED AMMAR ALI KAZMI AM HR
10 6796 M. SAEED AM Finance
11 5385 SALMAN QADIR AM HSE
12 5393 LAEEQ AHMAD AM HSE
13 5364 M. ATIF RAHIM AM HSE
14 5296 SHAHID ALI AM Mechanical
APPROVED BY ALL CONCERNED (COVID-19)
© 2015 - MLCFL MLCT HSE/ BSOS A Page 3 of 4




€% \APLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HSE/S-008 Standard Operating procedure (SOP) Rev#2.0 Annexure A
Title Emergency Response Plan Rf;’_ii?nn_zDoaztg: Aplpl[if:ae%lfzzgf;e:
15 5244 M. WAJID ULLAH AM Mechanical
16 8944 SHARIF ULLAH AM Marketing & Supply Chain
17 7892 NOUMAN HANEEF Executive Marketing & Supply Chain
18 8933 H. M”Hﬁz’mf RAFIQ Executive Marketing & Supply Chain
19 8943 M. BILAL Executive Marketing & Supply Chain
20 9088 M. ASHFAQ Executive Marketing & Supply Chain
21 7650 HABIB UR REHMAN Officer Admin & IR
22 7931 ARBAB ASHRAF Officer Stores
23 7306 M. KASHIF SHABBIR AE RCM
24 7314 SAQIB NOMAN AE Electrical
25 7786 MUJAHID ABBAS AE Electrical
26 7813 KABIR KHAN AE Electrical
27 7577 AZHAR NADEEM AE Mechanical
28 7940 MEHRBAN KHAN Jo PG & Distribution
29 7906 AQEEL ABBAS JO Stores
30 6792 IMRAN AKBAR Jo Stores
31 7659 MUMTAZ AHMED JO Stores
32 7987 WAQAS ASHIQ Jo PG & Distribution
33 7916 SAIFULLAH Jo RCM
34 7726 AFTAB AHMED JO Marketing & Supply Chain
35 7716 TAHIR MEHMOOD JO Electrical
36 7656 HIKMAT ULLAH KHAN Jo Mechanical
37 7568 TAHIR MAHMOOD JO Mechanical
38 7992 HAFEEZ ULLAH KHAN JO Mechanical
39 7515 NASIR SHAHZAD Jo Mechanical
40 7513 M. FAISAL RAUF Jo Production
41 7934 SALEEM IQOBAL JO__ Production
APPROVED BY ALL CONCERNED (COVID-19)
© 2015 - MLCFL ML - Page40f4




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maj)le Leaf POWBI’ leited Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill (Regulation 3(4){a){(A)(e) 3(vii) *Plant
characteristics {generation voltage, frequency etc.) are as follows;

Generation Voltage: 6.3kV three phase three-wire system
Power Factor at rated power: 1
Frequency: 50H:z

Generation characteristic: nverter has built-in features of controllable active power ramp following
grid disturbance or normal connection, voltage regulation, and frequency response. There are no
additional control metering and instrumentations.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited ™ ®23¢%7!

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill (Reguiation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 3(viii) *Control,
metering, instrumentation and protection “it is to inform that there are no additional control metering
and instrumentations.”




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Miple Leaf Power Limited Fax 92042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule II! (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e) 3(ix) *Estimated
Capacity Factor at site is 18.60.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Map}e Leaf Power Limited Fax9-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3(4)(a)(A)(e)3(x) *Degradation
Factor is 0.40% p.a.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited 920236671

With reference to the requirement as per clause, "Schedule Ill (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)!1. Itis to
inform that MLPL total 10 MW and 15 MW load to a single BPC consumer Maple Leaf Cement
Factory Limited through 05 feeders and single line diagram is attached.




Single Line Diagram - 10 MWp Solar PV Plant
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Single Line Diagram - 15 MWp Solar PV Plant
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fax92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, "Schedule 1l (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D) 2. Consumer
class/category, sub-category on the basis of sanctioned load and voltage level" it is to inform that
Maple leaf Power Limited is supply electricity to its single Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) Maple
Leaf Cement Factory Limited his parent Company with voltage level 6.3 KV.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)

Maple Leaf Power Limited oo

Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3{4}{a)(D)3 Tariff categories
of consumer classes to be served” it is to inform that Maple Leaf Power is supplying power to its Parent
Company “Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd” as Bulk Power Cansumet.

The Tariff for Electricity billing is mutually agreed between Maple Leaf Power Ltd and its Parent Company
“Maple Leaf Cement Factory Ltd” BPC.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power lelted Fax: 92-042-36368721

Wwith reference to the requirement as per clause, Schedule lll (Regulation. 3(4)(a)(D)4* Demand and
consumption pattern on different time periods. The Average demand and consumption pattern of Load
in KWH of Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited is given in below table from July 2022 to June 2023.

Demand & Consumption Pattern of Load (KW) in different time
period of a Year

Month Plant-| Plant-!i Plant-IIl Plant-Iv ;I’a(n;t- TotaIIVIDL:;and Tot::l;Z;ply
Jul-22 2,234.8 | 18,299.3 | 14,5120 0.0 4,366.7 39,4128 17,4804
Aug-22 1,189.0 | 12,657.7 | 14,456.8 0.0 4,260.7 32,564.2 13,164.8
Sep-22 | 3,178.4 | 20,058.8 | 20,967.3 0.0 4,285.1 48,489.6 24,450.3
Oct-22 | 3,661.5 | 19,752.1 | 21,992.8 0.0 3,110.9 48,517.3 25,269.6
Nov-22 | 6,349.2 | 23,083.6 | 8,389.7 | 3,238.9 | 4,428.2 45,489.6 30,868.7
Dec-22 | 4,948.1 | 20,526.3 | 24,643.6 | 1,885.6 | 4,202.0 56,205.6 33,119.0
jan-23 | 1,975.4 | 10,951.5 | 27,279.8 | 4,595.8 | 2,234.8 47,037.2 14,200.6
Feb-23 { 2,323.4 } 25,080.0 | 26,121.0 | 5,306.1 | 3,233.3 62,063.7 26,243.2
Mar-23 | 1,348.0 | 16,544.2 | 11,983.4 | 11,631.8 | 4,459.3 45,966.7 13,526.3
Apr-23 5,012.8 | 4,3179 | 18,362.5 | 15,585.7 | 2,977.7 46,256.5 10,568.8
May-23 | 1,175.1 | 15,1144 | 25,302.7 57346 | 2,763.4 50,090.3 15,0116
Jun-23 | 728.0 | 3,653.3 | 25,799.6 | 10,992.1 | 4,696.8 45,869.8 22,477.0




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited  Focoz0s3eesra

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ill {(Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)5. * Procurement
Plan for meeting expected loads (inciuding own generation and/or long term and short-term PPAs, as the
case may be)” based on the annual load requirements Maple Leaf Power Limited will supply up to
288,787.2 MW (CFPP), 16,353.4 MW from 10 MW (Solar Plant) and 24,503.837 MW from its 15 MW (Solar
Plant) to its Bulk Power Consumer. It is not applicable to Maple Leaf Power Limited as power from FESCO
is purchased by Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited not Maple Leaf power plant.



42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)

Maple Leaf Power Limited oone

Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule III (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)6.* 12-month
projections on expected load, number of consumers and expected sale of units for each consumer
category “. It is already informed in above provisions that MLPL has only one BPC Maple Leaf Cement
Factory Limited. MLPL will supply average hourly load in kwh from its 10 MW Solar Power Plant and 15
MW Solar Power Plant in following months to its BPC;

S.NO | Month f‘:agc'i '::V‘\',::‘;
1 Jul 5,099
2 Aug 4,878
3 Sep 5,336
4 Oct 4,686
5 Nov 4,354
6 Dec 3,790
7 Jan 3,653
8 Feb 3,673
9 Mar 4,451
10 Apr 5,218
11 May 5,404
12 Jun 5,390




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaft Power Limited Fo%023¢%7!

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Il (Regulation 3{4}(a)(D),7 5-year Investment
Plan indicating schemes/models/framework for undertaking supply of electric power (including
frameworks for providing non-discriminatory services and acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service
territories)”. It is to inform that MLPL is currently investing in 10MW and 15 MW Solar Power Plant for
which the application is made for generation and supply license for supply of electricity to MLCF and no
further investment is being plan.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Ma£le Leaf POWBI‘ Limlted Fax: 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule 1l {Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)8, Training and
development procedures and manuals” is attached.




[\

-

Q MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#1.0 Annexure A
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
29-Jul-2015 14-Jan-2015
Annexure Revision History
Add Civil defense,
SM-HR 25-Jul-2015 1.0 Housekeeping & Security SO | CR - 0070
trainings
Prepared by Reviewed by Xﬁpproved by
/S INC N/
/
d-HR Chief Executive Officer & Chief
d-HR (HO) ead= Internal Auditor

® 2015 - MLCFL
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: ! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027

Company Policy

Rev#1.0 Annexure A
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
29-Jul-2015 14-Jan-2015
Mandatory Management Trainings
Title/Position Trainings
Assistant Manager/ e Team Building (In-house)
Deputy Manager » Emotional Intelligence & Seven Habits (In-house)

need basis)

Effective Communication Skills (PIMs or equivalent)
Basics of Business English (PIM or equivalent)

Finance For Non-Fihancial Managers (CEQ’s discretion on

Civil Defense (On need basis)

Manager

need basis)

Problem Solving & Decision Making Skills (In-house)
Forecasting Techniques for Managers (PIM or equivalent)
Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEO's discretion on need basis)

Finance For Non-Financial Managers (CEQ’s discretion on

Civil Defense (On need basis)

r. Manager

Civil Defense (Cn need basis)

Finance For Non-Financial Managers (In house)
Enhancing Leadership Skills {PIM or equivalent Institution)
Effective Communication in the Business World (LUMS)

Six Sigma Green/Black Beit (CEQ’s discretion on need basis)

© 2015 - MLCFL
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. ﬂ ! MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#1.0 Annexure A
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
29-Jul-2015 14-Jan-2015

Dy. General Manager

Building High Performance Team (LUMS)
Management Development Program (LUMS)

Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEO’s discretion on need basis)

General Manager

Corporate Business Strategy (Articles based on Michael Porter’s
Business Strategy)

Selective Advanced Courses & Degrees (The selection of course /
degree will be done by CEO on need basis)

Six Sigma Green/Black Belt (CEQ's discretion on need basis)

Staff (Non-Management) » Plant Housekeeping (On need basis)
e Security SOPs awareness (Outsourced Security Staff)
Prepared By: Reviewed By: Approved By:
Manager HR Head HR CEO
4
gD COP
[ ]
AN
Q'( » 3/
© 2015 - MLCFL ';.L.CFLIHR/ P027-A Page 3 of 3
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e = & MAPLE LEAF FACTORY LT
R0 Sompany Poley Rev #: 0.0 Aroee s ‘
Tite Training and Development Revision Date! Apphcable Date:
= 15:260:2015
Annexyre Ravision History
——futhor —Date 1 Rev# | " Oeserigtion Tatlonaia of
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& MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LINITED
MLCF/HR/P-027 Compaxty Policy Revr0.0 Annexure 8
Tite Training and Daveloprent Redsion Date: Appicatle Dete:
[ Annual Training Plan {Year ——) — ]
{In-house) / Target Estimated Cost Training Trainer /
Tralning Title (External) e No. of Partidpants (Rs} Month Duration Location faci Remarks
Total Estimated Cost 0
R, }/bj

.

-
© 2015 MLCFL
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o MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
eTe——

MLCF/HR{P-027 Company Policy Rev #:0.0 Annexyre C
Titte Trad nd Revision Date: Applicable Dave:
ning and Development . 14:320-2015
Annexura Ravision History
Author Rev# Description RatonsieofChangs =~ |

© 2015 MLCFL

MLCF/HR/PD27-C
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- MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

. MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev #: 0.0 Annexure C
P " . Revision Date: Applicable Date:
Title T [+
raining and P = 14-J2p-2015
Participants List
Sr # Department Name Designation Remarks

© 2015- MLCFL
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i g MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED

_ |} MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure D
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
14-Jan-2015

Annexure Revision History

i

. Prepared by Reviewed by Approved by

// ,
hief Executive Officér ief |

internal Auditor

/ Page 1 of 2
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: !% MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/HR/P-027 Company Policy Rev#0.0 Annexure D
Title Training and Development Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
-—- 14-Jan-2015
Program Title:
Date:
Venue;
Facilitator:
Schedule of the Day
Time Activity Description
. . Start time - End time |, Participants Arrival
Starttime —End time | .. \wolcome Address
Start ime —End time | ., gacgion 1
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"P MAPLE LEAF CEMENT FACTORY LIMITED
MLCF/HR Company Policy Rev#1.0 MLCF/HR/P-027
Revision Date: | Applicable Date:
Title Training and Development 11 DEC 208 14-Jan-2015
SECTION 1 SCOPE and PURPOSE
1.1, Scope

Policy is applicable to “Assistant Managers & above” at Plant site and Head Office
including Regional Offices.

1.2, Purpose

To develop World Class Management / Leaders in MLCFL by providing employees with
exceptional training & development opportunities.

q SECTION 2 RESPONSIBILITIES

¢ Human Resource Department

SECTION 3 POLICY

3.1. General

3.1.1,Mandatory Management Trainings as approved by CEO (Annexure A) shall be organized
by HR department.

3.1.2.HR Department shall prepare a Comprehensive “Annual Training Plan (Annexure B)" as
per Company’s fiscal year for AMs & above, keeping in view the Mandatory Management
Trainings. However, additional trainings can be added to the Annual Training Plan
subject to the requirement / management discretion.

3.1.3.Annual Training Plan shall clearly indicate In-house / Qutsourced trainings along with
the estimated cost (budget) to be sent to the CEO for approval by May 30th of every
year.

3.1.4.Any addition or deletion of prescribed courses in the Annual Training Plan shall be done
through mutual discussion of the CEO, concerned HOD / GM and Head HR.

3.1.5.1t shall be mandatory for all Assistant Managers & above to attend specific training
courses mentioned in MLCF Annual Training Plan,

3.1.6.Completion of mandatory courses is one of the pre-requisites for promotion / increment
but does not guarantee automatic eligibility.

© 2015 - MLCFL
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3.1.7.If an employee is unable to attend the designated course(s) due to compelling
tircumstances, he / she shall have to seek prior approval from the CEO through HR
department by email, for his / her omission from the designated training course.
However, HR shall have to ensure that the said employee shall attend the subsequent
course,

3.1.8.GM’s & above individual trainings would be determined on need basis. CEQ shall decide
regarding trainings for them at the time of their Annual Performance Evaluation.

3.1.9.HR Department shall act as a facilitator and provide necessary support to the training
participants / trainer in terms of their traveling, ticketing, and hotel stay as per
MLCF/HR/P-005, if required, in order to complete the training course.

3.1.10. Employees post training performance shall also be evaluated through Annual
Performance Reviews. Detail of attended trainings shall be mentioned in HR System
which shall be attached with Employees Annual Performance Appraisal form
(MLCF/HR/F-037) for review.

3.1.11.If an incumbent is hired at a level higher than Assistant Manager, Head HR in
consultation with respective HOD, shall determine what waiver with regard to
mandatory trainings to be granted to the incumbent through Employee Training Waiver
form (Annexure I) which shall be placed in employee personal file). These waivers can
be determined on the basis of education or equivalent trainings.

3.1.12. At the time of hiring from outside, HR Department shall check the training courses as
per Maple Leaf Training program that employee should have attended prior to the grade
in which he is inducted. If he has not attended the relevant previous courses, then it
shall be the responsibility of HR to ensure that the new inductee must complete requisite
training(s) in the subsequent training program.

3.2. Training Arrangements / Execution

3.2.1.HR department shall upload the upcoming trainings information on MNet as per
approved Annual Training Plan.

3.2.2,For every training, list of participants (Annexure C) shall be finalized by HR in
coordination with respective HODs.

3.2.3.HR department shall announce the training program by sending an email to all
participants keeping in loop their respective HODs.

3.2.4.Training Schedule as per approved format (Annexure D) along with course outline, list
of participants & dress code details shall be attached in the email.

3.2.5.Reminders (Verbal / Email) shall be given by HR to the participants a day before
training.

© 2015 - ML -~ TCONTROL ~apyl 00000 Page 3 of 5
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Title Training and Development 1 DEC 2018 14-Jan-2015

3.2.6.TA / DA in this connection shall be admissible as per approved Travei In-Country
(MLCF/HR/P-005) / Overseas policy (MLCF/HR/006).

3.2,7.To ensure all training arrangements, a checklist (Annexure E) shall be filled by the HR
representative

3.2.8.Training contents shall be prepared on the Company’s approved presentation format
(Annexure F)

3.2.9.Participants’ attendance shall be marked by HR representative before start of the
training on the approved system generated attendance sheet (Annexure G)

3.2.10. Training rules (as given below) have to be strictly followed by all participants:

> Punctuality to be observed

> Celiphones to be kept off or silent

> No smoking during the session

» Limited movement during the session

3.2.11. Training certificates / souvenirs as per approved format (Annexure H) shall be awarded
to participants upon successful completion of the training.

3.2.12. Training Manual / record folder shall be maintained after completion of the training
encompassing the following:

» Training Presentation

» Training schedule

> List of participants & attendance record in HR system
> Training arrangements checklist

3.2.13. Training pictures and presentation (if required) shall be uploaded on MNet,

© 2015 - MLCFL S S ~ Pagedof$
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SECTION 4 ANNEXURE

Mandatory Management Trainings

Annual Training Plan
List of Participants
Training Schedule

Training Arrangements Checklist

Training Presentation

Training Attendance sheet

Training Certificate / Souvenir

Employee Training Waiver Form

(Annexure A)

(Annexure B)

(Annexure C)

(Annexure D)

(Annexure E)

(Annexure F)
(Annexure G)

(Annexure H)

(Annexure I)

Policy Review: The Policy shall be reviewed by Head-HR after every two years unless required
otherwise.,
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited Fa 92-042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule 11l (Regulation 3(4){(a){D}10 i. * Proposed
Service Territory”. It is to inform that MLPL will supply power to Maple Leaf Cement Limited (MLCL} within
its territory at IskanderAbad near Daud Khel, District Mianwali, Punjab.
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42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Mgple Leaf Power Limited Fex 5%042-36368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule 111 (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)10 ii. * Billing and
collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering)”. It is to inform that following billing and
collection procedures (including provisions for remote metering} will follow;

a)

b)

c)

d)

f}

8)

The Company shall, within five (5) working days from the issuance of FESCO tariff in each
month following the Supply Date, prepare and issue an invoice for the previous month
containing the amounts due from the Power Purchaser to the Company for the Energy
purchased during the previous month.

The invoice shall be prepared for Energy for the preceding month in accordance with the
readings of the Metering System located at the Interconnection Facility.

The Power Purchaser shall pay all amounts shown in the invoice within ten {10) working days
of the date of the invoice (“Due Date”).

If the Power Purchaser fails to pay the invoiced amounts on the Due Date, such failure shall
attract liquidated damages calculated at the Delayed Payment Rate.

The Power Purchaser shall make all payments by wire transfer or any other banking mode
into the account designated by the Company from time to time.

Both Parties shall pay, if applicable, their respective taxes as applicable on them (if any) as
per the prevailing law.

All disputes relating to payments made under this Agreement shall be settled in accordance
with Article 14. Y L




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Fax: 92-042-36368721

Maple Leaf Power Limited

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule III (Regulation 3(4)(a)}(D)10 iii. * Ability to
access consumer metering systems and other services/equipment”. It is to inform that MLCF and MCPL
Acknowledge and agree that:

MLPL will install meters on the outgoing feeder switchgears for metering and charging the
electricity consumption of its Bulk Power Consumer (BPC).




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel: 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maple Leaf Power Limited ™ 023657

With reference to the requirement as per clause, “Schedule Ili (Regulation 3(4)(a)(D)10 IV. * Emergency

provisions and protocols as attached.




42-Lawrence Road,
Lahore, (Pakistan)
Tel; 92-042-36302261
& 36302262

Maj)]e Leaf Power Limited Fex92-04236368721

With reference to the requirement as per clause, "Schedule ill (Regulation 3(4)(a}{D) 10 v. Basis of
commaon services for commercial and residential consumers and their allocation thereof", it is to inform
that this clause is not applicable on MLPL by supplying electricity to its Bulk Power Consumer (BPC) Maple
Leaf Cement Factory Limited (MLCFL).
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